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IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION
OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
COMPANY FOR AN ORDER OR
ORDERS AUTHORIZING IT TO ISSUE,
INCUR, AND AMEND EVIDENCES OF
LONG-TERM INDEBTEDNESS AND
SHORT-TERM INDEBTEDNESS, TO
EXECUTE NEW SECURITY
[NSTRU]\,{ENTS TO SECURE ANY SUCH
INDEBTEDNESS, TO REPAY AMOUNTS
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DECLARATORY ORDER
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I. VERIFIED APPLICATION

i

Pursuant to Sections 40-285, 40-301, and 40-302 of the Arizona Revised Statutes

("A.R.S .") ,  Ar izona Public  Service  Company ( the  "Company")  hereby files  this

Application seeking one or more orders which, together, will authorize the Company to:

(i) incur the Continuing Long-Term Debt (as defined herein), (ii) redeem, refinance,

refund, renew, reissue, roll-over, repay, and re-borrow tram time to time such Continuing

Long-Term Debt, and establish and amend the terms and provisions of Continuing Long-

Term Debt from time to time, (iii) incur the Continuing Short-Term Debt (as defined

herein), (iv) redeem, refinance, refund, renew, reissue, roll-over, repay, and re-borrow

ham time to time such Continuing Short-Term Debt, and establish and amend the terms



a nd provis ions  of Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt from time  to time , (v) de te rmine  the  form

of s e curity, if a ny, for the  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd the  Continuing S hort-Te rm

De b t,  e xe cu te  a nd  de live r one  o r more  S e cu rity In s trume n ts  (a s  de fine d  he re in ) in

conne ction with  the  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd the  Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt,

a nd e s ta blis h a nd a me nd the  te rms  a nd provis ions  of a ny s uch S e curity Ins trume nts  from

time  to time , a nd (vi) re imburs e  a ny a mounts  pa id by P inna cle  We s t Ca pita l Corpora tion

("P inna cle  We s t") unde r a ny Gua ra nte e  (a s  de fine d he re in).

AP S  fu rth e r re q u e s ts  a  d e c la ra to ry o rd e r th a t co n firms  th a t o n ly tra d itio n a l

inde bte dne s s  for borrowe d mone y (a nd not the  othe r type s  of a rra nge me nts  de s cribe d in

pa ra gra ph 13 of this  Applica tion) cons titute s  a n "e vide nce  of inde bte dne s s " unde r A.R.S .

S e ctions  301 a nd 302 a nd tha t, the re fore , such othe r a rra nge me nts  (of the  type  de scribe d

in pa ra gra ph 13) ne ithe r re quire  prior Commis s ion a uthoriza tion nor count a ga ins t the

Continuing Long-Te rm De bt or Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt a uthoriza tions  re que s te d in

this  Applica tion.

P urs ua nt to A.A.C. Rl4-2-806, P inna cle  We s t he re by tile s  this  Applica tion s e e king

a n ongoing wa ive r of or a uthoriza tion unde r A.A.C. R14-2-803 to a llow P inna cle  We s t to

gua ra nte e  the  inde bte dne ss  of the  Compa ny from time  to time .

AP S  a nd P inna cle  We s t re que s t is s ua nce  of the  orde r or orde rs  s ought in  th is

Ap p lica tio n  n o  la te r th a n  J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 0 7  s o  th a t AP S  will h a ve  s u ffic ie n t fin a n c in g

a uthority to  s upport its  obliga tions  without in te rruption. AP S  a nd P inna cle  We s t a ls o

re que s t tha t the  orde r or orde rs  s ought in this  Applica tion be come  e ffe ctive  imme dia te ly

upon the  issuance  the reof.

1 1 .  S UP P O R TING  S TATE ME NTS
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In support of this Application, the Company and Pinnacle West respectfully state

as follows:

1. Both the  Compa ny a nd P inna cle  We s t a re  corpora tions  duly orga nize d a nd

e xis ting unde r the  la ws  of the  S ta te  of Arizona . The ir principa l pla ce  of bus ine s s  is  400

2



North Fifth  S tre e t, P hoe nix, Arizona , 85004, a nd the ir pos t office  a ddre s s  is  P .O. Box

53999, P hoe nix, Arizona  85072-3999.

2. The  Compa ny is  a  public s e rvice  corpora tion principa lly e nga ge d in s e rving

e le ctricity in the  S ta te  of Arizona .

3. The  Compa ny is  a  wholly-owne d subs idia ry of P inna cle  We s t.

4. On Octobe r 18, 2006, e a ch of the  Compa ny's  a nd P inna cle  We s t's  Boa rd of

Dire ctors  a pprove d the  filing of this  Applica tion with the  Commis s ion.

5. The  a ttorne y for the  Compa ny in  th is  proce e ding is  Thoma s  L. Mum a w.

The  a ttorne y for P inna cle  We s t in this  proce e ding Robe rt J . Me tli of S ne ll & Wilme r LLP .

6. This  Applica tion  is  s upporte d  by the  Affida vit of Ba rba ra  M. Gome z, the

Vice  P re s ide nt a nd Tre a s ure r of both the  Compa ny a nd P inna cle  We s t (the  "Affida vit"),

which is  a ttached he re to a s Exh ib it A.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

1 2

13

1 4

15

1 6

1 7

18

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

23

2 4

25

2 6

2 7

28

Financing Needs and Issues

7. Th e  Co mmis s io n 's  De c is io n  No . 5 5 0 1 7 ,  d a te d  Ma y 6 ,  1 9 8 6  (th e  "l9 8 6

Orde r"), a llows  the  Compa ny, a mong othe r things , to ha ve , a t a ny one  time  outs ta nding in

1986 or the re a fte r, long-te rm inde bte dne s s  (including curre nt ma turitie s  the re of) in  a n

a ggre ga te  principa l a mount of up to $2,698,917,000. S uch a uthoriza tion a lso pe rmits  a ny

re de mptions , re fina ncings , re fundings , re ne wa ls , re is s ua nce s , a nd roll-ove rs  of a ny s uch

outs ta nding inde bte dne s s , the  incurre nce  or is sua nce  of a ny long-te rm inde bte dne s s , a nd

the  a me ndme nt or re vis ion  of a ny te rms  or provis ions  of or re la ting  to  a ny long-te rm

indebtedness , a s  long a s  tota l long-te rm indebtedness  a t any one  time  outs tanding does  not

e xce e d  $2 ,698 ,917 ,000  during  a ny pe riod  of more  tha n  th irty da ys . The  1986  Orde r

s pe cifie s  tha t the  na ture  a nd te rms  of a ll s uch is s ua nce s  a nd s a le s  of s uch long-te rm

inde bte dne s s  ma y be  de te rmine d  by the  Compa ny by re fe re nce  to  conditions  in  the

fina ncia l ma rke ts  a t the  time  or time s  of s uch is s ua nce s . A copy of the  1986 Orde r is

a tta che d to this  Applica tion a s Exhib it B.

8. In  C o m m is s io n  De c is io n  No .  6 5 7 9 6 ,  d a te d  Ap ril 4 ,  2 0 0 3  (th e  "2 0 0 3

Fina ncing  Orde r"), the  Commis s ion  a uthorize d  the  Compa ny to  is s ue  $500 million  of

_  3  _



long-te rm de bt a nd to loa n the  proce e ds  the re of to P inna cle  We s t or P inna cle  We s t Ene rgy

Corpo ra tion  ("P WEC") fo r the  pu rpos e  o f re pa ying  P inna c le  We s t de b t incu rre d  to

fina nce  cons truction of the  Arizona  e le ctric ge ne ra ting pla nts  built to  s e rve  AP S  na tive

loa d  a nd owne d by P WEC a nd tha t we re  la te r tra ns fe rre d  to  the  Compa ny. In  Ma y of

2003, the  Compa ny is s ue d $300 million of its  4.650% Note s  due  2015 a nd $200 million

of its  5.625% Note s  due  2033 (the  "2003 Fina ncing Orde r De bt")1. The  2003 Fina ncing

Orde r spe cifie d tha t the  2003 Fina ncing Orde r De bt would not be  counte d a ga ins t the  the n

e xis ting  continuing  de bt limits  a u thorize d  by the  Commis s ion  in  the  1986 Orde r. The

incre a s e d a mount re que s te d for the  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt limit in this  Applica tion

include s  the  2003 Fina ncing Orde r De bt. The  1986 Orde r a nd the  2003 Fina ncing Orde r

a re  re fe rre d  to  he re in  a s  the  "Orde rs " The  Affida vit de s cribe s  the  be ne fits  to  the

Compa ny a nd its  cus tome rs  tha t ha ve  de rive d from the  Orde rs  during the  twe nty ye a rs

s ince  the  1986 Orde r wa s  is s ue d. S e e  "Be ne fits  of His torica l Fina ncia l Fle xibility" in the

Affidavit.

9. In vie w of the  growth of the  Compa ny a nd its  cus tome r ba s e  during the  20

ye a r pe riod  fo llowing the  is s ua nce  of the  1986 Orde r, a s  we ll a s  cha nge s  in  fina ncia l

ma rke t conditions , the  Compa ny re que s ts  Commis s ion a uthoriza tion to incre a se  the  long-

te rm inde bte dne s s  limita tion s e t forth in the  1986 Orde r, s o tha t the  Compa ny ma y ha ve ,

a t a ny one  time  outs ta nding from the  da te  of s uch a uthoriza tion or.the re a fte r, up to a n

a ggre ga te  principa l a mount of long-te rm inde bte dne s s  of $4.2  b illion . Th e  Affid a vit

de scribe s  the  Compa ny's  outs ta nding long-te rm inde bte dne s s , the  re a sons  for its  re que s t

for a dditiona l fina ncing a uthority, a nd the  ba s is  of the  re que s te d incre a s e . S e e  "AP S '

Long-Te rm De bt Fina ncing  Ne e ds " in  the  Affida vit. The  Compa ny re que s ts  tha t s uch

a uthoriza tion pe rmit a ny re de mptions , re fina ncings , re fundings , re ne wa ls , re is s ua nce s ,

roll-ove rs , re pa yme nts , a nd re -borrowings  of a ny s uch outs ta nding inde bte dne s s , the

incurre nce  or is s ua nce  of a ny a dditiona l long-te rm inde bte dne s s , a nd the  e s ta blis hme nt,
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outstanding.
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l amendment,
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or re vis ion of a ny te rms  or provis ions  of or re la ting to a ny long-te rm

inde bte dne s s , a s  long a s  tota l long-te rm inde bte dne s s  (including curre nt ma turitie s

thereof) a t any one time outstanding does not exceed $4.2 billion for any period of more

than thirty days . Such authoriza tion will a llow the  Company to mainta in its  flexibility to

refund and/or incur or issue  long-term indebtedness  as  market conditions dicta te . At no

time, however, will the Company be able to exceed the proposed long-term indebtedness

limita tion  fo r a ny pe riod  of more  tha n  th irty da ys  without fu rthe r Commis s ion

authorization. (All long-tenn indebtedness outstanding on the date  of the order or orders

of the  Commis s ion in this  ma tte r or the re a fte r is s ue d or incurre d purs ua nt to a Ns

paragraph being herein referred to as  "Continuing Long-Term Debt.") The authorization

sought in die s  pa ra gra ph 9 would supe rse de  the  long-te rm inde bte dne s s  limita tion

authorized by the  1986 Order and would be  inclusive  of the  debt issued pursuant to the

2003 Financing Order.

10. A.R.S. Section 40-302.D allows the Company to issue short-term debt in an

amount not to exceed 7% of its  capita liza tion without Commiss ion approva l. However,

S e ction 40-302.D re s tric ts  the  re funding or ro ll-ove r of a ny s uch note s . . The

Commission's  Decis ion No. 54230, da ted November 8, 1984 (the  "l984 Order"), a llows

the Company to reissue, renew, and resell any such short-term indebtedness and to refund,

refinance , and roll-over any such short-te rm indebtedness  with or into additional short-

te rm indebtedness , as  long as  such 7% limit is  not exceeded. The Company requests

authority to issue  short-te rm debt a t any time  and from time  to time  (excluding current

ma turitie s  of long-te rm de bt) in a n a mount not to e xce e d the  s um of: (i) 7% of the

Company's  capita liza tion and (ii) $500 million. The  Affidavit describes  the  Company's

outstanding short-term indebtedness, the  reason for its  request for additional short-term

financing authority, and the basis of the requested increase. See "APS' Short-Term Debt

Financing Needs" in the  Affidavit. The Company requests  that such authorization permit

any redemptions, refinancings, refundings, renewals, reissuances, roll-overs, repayments,

and re-borrowings of any such outstanding indebtedness, the incurrence or issuance of any

- 5 _
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a dditiona l short-te rm inde bte dne ss , a nd the  e s ta blishme nt, a me ndme nt, or re vis ion of a ny

te rms  or provis ions  of or re la ting to a ny s hort-te rm inde bte dne s s , a s  long a s  tota l s hort~

te rm inde bte dne s s  a t a ny one  time  outs ta nding (e xcluding curre nt ma turity of long-te rm

de bt) doe s  not e xce e d, for a ny pe riod of more  tha n thirty da ys , the  s um of: (i) 7% of the

Compa ny's  ca pita liza tion a nd (ii) $500 million without furthe r Commis s ion a uthoriza tion.

(All s h o rt-te rm in d e b te d n e s s  o u ts ta n d in g  o n  th e  d a te  o f th e  o rd e r o r o rd e rs  o f th e

Commis s ion in  th is  ma tte r or the re a fte r is s ue d or incurre d purs ua nt to  th is  pa ra gra ph

be ing he re in re fe rre d to a s  "Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt.")

l l . The  Compa ny propos e s  to  de te rmine  the  na ture  of the  Continuing Long-

Te rm De b t a nd  Con tinu ing  S hort-Te rm De b t (o r the  ind ividua l compone n ts  o f e a ch

is s ua nce  of Continuing Long-Te rm De bt or Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt), the  ma turitie s

the re of, d ie  in te re s t a nd/or d is count ra te s  the re on, the  ne ce s s ity for a nd form of a ny

s e curity the re for, the  a pplica ble  fina ncia l ma rke ts  (e .g., whe the r dome s tic or fore ign) or

le nde rs , the  na ture  (e .g., whe the r public or priva te ) of the  offe rings  or borrowings , a nd the

type  or type s  o f tra ns a ction  in  which  de b t would  be  s o ld  o r incurre d  by re fe re nce  to

conditions  in  the  fina ncia l ma rke ts  a t the  time  or time s  of commitme nt or s a le . Te rms

wou ld  be  ne go tia te d  with  the  in te n t o f ob ta in ing  the  mos t fa vo ra b le  re s u lts  fo r the

Compa ny a nd its  cus tome rs . The  s e curity, if a ny, for a ny s uch de bt by the  Compa ny

could cons is t of a  mortga ge  or othe r lie n a s  dis cus se d in pa ra gra ph 12 be low or a  le tte r of

cre dit of a  third pa rty, bond purcha se  a gre e me nt, or othe r se curity ins trume nt.

12. In  th e  e ve n t th a t th e  ra tin g  o n  th e  C o m p a n y's  lo n g -te rm  u n s e c u re d

inde bte dne s s  is  ra te d non-inve s tme nt gra de  or if ma rke t conditions  othe rwis e  dicta te , the

Compa ny ma y find  it ne ce s s a ry o r a dva n ta ge ous  to  s e cure  a ll o r a ny portion  o f the

.Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd  the  Con tinu ing  S ho rt-Te rm De b t. The  Compa ny

re que s ts  a uthority to e nte r into a  ne w mortga ge  a nd de e d of trus t or s imila r ins trume nt tha t

e s ta blis he s  a  lie n on a ll or s ubs ta ntia lly a ll of the  Compa ny's  prope rty, including a fte r-_

a cquire d prope rty, a s  s e curity for a ll or a ny pa rt of the  Compa ny's  inde bte dne s s . The

Compa ny a ls o re que s ts  a uthority to e nte r into s e pa ra te  s e curity ins trume nts  of va rious

_ 6 _



1 type s  tha t e s ta blish lie ns  on se pa ra te  prope rtie s  or groups  of prope rtie s  of the  Compa ny to

2 s e cure  pa rticula r is s ue s  or groups  of is s ue s  of inde bte dne s s . (Any s uch mortga ge  a nd

3 de e d of trus t or othe r s e curity ins trume nt to be  e nte re d into purs ua nt to this  pa ra gra ph

4 be ing he re in re fe rre d to a s  a  "S e curity Ins trume nt.") Any s uch S e curity Ins trume nt ma y

5 be  used to secure  indebtedness  previous ly is sued a s  we ll a s  new indebtedness  is sued a fte r

6 the  da te  of the  fina ncing orde r re que s te d by this  Applica tion. The  Affida vit de s cribe s  the

7 mortga ge  a nd de e d of trus t pre vious ly u tilize d  by the  Compa ny a nd its  te rmina tion  in

8 2004, a nd furthe r de s cribe s  the  ba s is  a nd ra tiona le  for the  re que s ts  in this  pa ra gra ph 12,

9 Se e  pa ra gra phs  13 a nd 22 in the  Affida vit.

10 13. The Affid a vit describes recent changes in a ccounting rule s and

l l in te rpre ta tions  tha t ha ve  a lte re d  a nd  ma y continue  to  a lte r the  ba s is  for tre a tme nt of

12 va rious  fina ncia l a rra nge me nts  a s  inde bte dne s s . For e xa mple , the  Affida vit de s cribe s

13 ce rta in circums ta nce s  in  which a  long-te rm powe r purcha s e  a gre e me nt, long-te rm fue l

14 s upply contra ct, or s imila r a gre e me nts  ma y be  tre a te d a s  a  ca pita l le a s e  or a  s ubs ta ntive

15 consolida tion a nd thus  be  tre a te d a s  inde bte dne ss  on the  Compa ny's  ba la nce  she e t unde r

.16 Ge ne ra lly Acce pte d Accounting P rinciple s . The  Compa ny re que s ts  tha t the  Commis s ion

17 confirm tha t on ly tra d itiona l inde bte dne s s  fo r borrowe d mone y (a nd  no t the  type s  o f

18 a rra nge me nts  de scribe d in the  pre ce ding se nte nce ) is  subje ct to A.R.S . S e ctions  301 a nd

19 302  a nd  tha t,  the re fo re , s uch  o the r a rra nge me nts  will no t re qu ire  p rio r Commis s ion

20 a uthoriza tion or count a ga ins t the  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a uthoriza tion re que s te d in

21 this  Applica tion. The  Affida vit furthe r de s cribe s  die  ba s is  a nd ra tiona le  for AP S ' re que s ts

22 in this  pa ra gra ph 13. S e e  pa ra gra ph 21 in the  Affida vit.

23 14. From time  to time , it ma y be  a dva nta ge ous  for P inna cle  We s t to gua ra nte e

24 de bt is sue d, incurre d, or sold by the  Compa ny. P inna cle  We s t re que s ts  e ithe r a n ongoing

25 wa ive r of A.A.C. Rule  14-2-803 in  tha t re s pe ct or, a lte rna tive ly, tha t the  Commis s ion

26 e xpre s s ly gra nt to P inna cle  We s t a uthority to gua ra nte e  the  Compa ny's  de bt from time  to

27 time  in inde te rmina te  a mounts  (the  "Gua ra nte e s"). The  Compa ny a lso se e ks  a uthoriza tion

28 to re imburse  P inna cle  We s t for a ny a mounts  tha t P inna cle  We s t is  re quire d to pa y unde r

_ 7 _
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a ny such Gua ra nte e , a long with inte re s t on such a mounts  until the  da te  of re imburse me nt

a t a  ra te  not grea te r than the  ra te  of inte res t payable  on the  debt so Guaranteed and pa id by

P inna cle  We s t. The  Affida vit de s cribe s  ce rta in  of the  circums ta nce s  in  which  s uch a

Gua ra nte e  ma y be  re quire d or a dva nta ge ous  a nd furthe r de scribe s  the  ba s is  a nd ra tiona le

for the  re que s ts  in this  pa ra gra ph 14. Se e  pa ra gra ph 23 in the  Affida vit.

Purpos es

15. Th e  C o m p a n y p ro p o s e s  th a t th e  n e t p ro c e e d s  fro m  its  is s u a n c e  o f

Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt will be  a pplie d, dire ctly or

indire ctly, to  a ugme nt the  funds  a va ila ble  from a ll s ource s  to  fina nce  its  cons truction,

re source  acquis ition and ma intenance  programs , to redeem or re tire  outs tanding securitie s ,

to re pa y or re fund othe r outs ta nding long-te rm or s hort-te rm de bt, a nd to me e t ce rta in of

the  Compa ny's  working ca pita l a nd othe r ca sh re quire me nts .

16. The  purpos e  of a ny Gua ra nte e s  of Compa ny de bt by P inna cle  We s t would

be  to a llow the  Company to achieve  grea te r a cce ss  to the  financia l ma rke ts .
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Ge ne ra l

17. In  the  Compa ny's  op in ion , the  p ropos e d  is s ua nce  o r incu rre nce  o f the

Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd the  Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt, the  e s ta blis hme nt a nd

a me ndme nt of a ny te rns  a nd provis ions  of a ny long-te rm or s hort-te rm inde bte dne s s , the

e xe cution a nd de live ry of the  Se curity Ins trume nts , a nd the  e s ta blishme nt a nd a me ndme nt

of a ny te rms  a nd provis ions  of the  S e curity Ins trume nts , a ll a s  conte mpla te d he re in, a re

for la wful purpose s  tha t a re  within its  corpora te  P owe rs  a nd a re  compa tible  with the  public

inte re s t, with sound fina ncia l pra ctice s , a nd with the  prope r pe rforma nce  by the  Compa ny

of s e rvice  a s  a  public s e rvice  corpora tion a nd will not impa ir its  a bility to  pe rform tha t

s e rvice . The  Compa ny is  furthe r of the  opinion tha t the  fore going, a ll a s  conte mpla te d

he re in, a re  rea sonably necessa ry or appropria te  for such purpose s  and tha t such purpose s

a re  not, wholly or in pa rt, re a sona bly cha rge a ble  to the  Compa ny's  ope ra ting e xpe nse s  or

to income , e xce pt to the  e xte nt re quire d by ge ne ra lly a cce pte d a ccounting principle s  or by

o th e r a c c o u n tin g  re q u ire me n ts  a p p lic a b le  to  th e  Co mp a n y,  in c lu d in g  re g u la to ry

_ 8 _
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2 1

22

re quire me nts . To  the  e xte n t tha t the  pu rpos e s  s e t fo rth  he re in  ma y be  cons ide re d

re a sona bly cha rge a ble  to ope ra ting e xpe nse s  or to income , the  Compa ny re que s ts  tha t the

orde r or orde rs  of the  Commiss ion in this  ma tte r a uthorize  such cha rge  or cha rge s .

18. A.A.C. Rl4-2-803 re quire s  notice  to  the  Commis s ion of "re orga niza tions "

by a  public utility holding compa ny s uch a s  P inna cle  We s t. A "re orga niza tion" include s

the  "a cquis ition or dive s titure  of a  fina ncia l inte re s t in  a n a ffilia te  or a  [Cla s s  A] utility."

A.A.C. R14-2-80l(5). The  Compa ny is  a  Cla s s  A utility, a nd thus  both  it a nd P inna cle

We s t a re  s ubje ct to the  provis ions  of Rule  803. In De cis ion No. 58063, da te d Nove mbe r

3, 1992, the  Commis s ion inte rpre te d the  a fore me ntione d la ngua ge  to a ls o include  a ny

incre a s e  or de cre a s e  of a n e xis ting "fina ncia l inte re s t" in a  utility in e xce s s  of a  s pe cifie d

"e xe mpt a mount," which in the  ca s e  of the  Compa ny a nd P inna cle  We s t, is  $100 million

pe r ye a r, e ve n if the  incre a se /de cre a se  did not cha nge  the  s ta tus  of the  utility a s  a  wholly-

owne d s ubs idia ry of the  public utility holding compa ny. The  propos e d Gua ra nte e s  could

re s ult in  a n  incre a s e  in  P inna cle  We s t's  e xis ting  fina ncia l in te re s t in  the  Compa ny in

e xce s s  of $100 million pe r ye a r. The  te s t for whe the r a  "re orga niza tion" ca n be  re je cte d

by the  Commis s ion  unde r Ru le  14 -2  803  is  whe the r the  "re o rga n iza tion" wou ld : (1 )

imp a ir th e  fin a n c ia l s ta tu s  o f th e  p u b lic  u tility,  (2 ) p re ve n t th e  p u b lic  u tility fro m

a ttra cting ca pita l on fa ir a nd re a s ona ble  te rms , or (3) impa ir the  a bility of the  public utility

to provide  s a fe , re a s ona ble , a rid a de qua te  s e rvice . The  propos e d Gua ra nte e s  cle a rly will

not ha ve  a ny of the s e  ne ga tive  impa cts  on the  Compa ny. Ra the r the y will e nha nce  the

fina ncia l s ta tus  of the  Compa ny, pe rmit the  Compa ny to a ttra ct ca pita l a nd a cce s s  the

ca pita l ma rke ts  on te rms  tha t a re  more  fa vora ble , a nd a re  e s s e ntia l to  the  Compa ny's

a bility to provide  sa fe , re a sona ble , a nd re lia ble  s e rvice . The  Compa ny note s  tha t pursua nt

to A.A.C. R14-2-806.C, if the  Commis s ion fa ils  to a pprove , dis a pprove , or s us pe nd for

furthe r cons ide ra tion  a n  a pp lica tion  fo r wa ive r with in  th irty da ys  fo llowing  filing  o f a

ve rifie d a pplica tion for wa ive r, the  wa ive r s ha ll be come  e ffe c tive  on the  31s t da y

following the  filing of the  applica tion.
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19. The  Compa ny re que s ts  tha t notice  of the  filing of this  Applica tion be  give n

in conformity with A.R.S . S e ction 40-302.

20. The  Compa ny re que s ts  tha t the  orde r or orde rs  s ought by this  Applica tion

be come  e ffe ctive  imme dia te ly upon the  is sua nce  the re of.

. 21. The  mos t curre nt public fina ncia l s ta te me nts  of the  Compa ny a nd P inna cle

We s t, which a re  include d in the ir mos t re ce nt combine d Qua rte rly Re port on Form 10-Q

file d  with  the  S e curitie s  Excha nge  Commis s ion , a re  a tta che d  to  th is  App lica tion  a s

E xh ib it c .

WHEREFORE, the  Compa ny a nd P inna cle  We s t a s k tha t the  Commis s ion ca us e

notice  of the  filing of this  Applica tion to be  give n a s  a bove -re que s te d, hold such a  he a ring

or he a rings  a s  the  Commis s ion finds  a re  ne ce s s a ry a t a  time  or time s  to  be  s pe cifie d,

ma king s uch inquiry or inve s tiga tion a s  the  Commis s ion ma y de e m of a s s is ta nce , a nd

ma ke  a ny findings  re quire d by A.R.S . S e ctions  40-285, 40-301, a nd 40-302, or A.A.C.

R14-2-803 a nd R14-2-806, a s  a pplica ble , re la tive  to  the  is s ua nce s  a nd incurre nce s  of

Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt, the  e xe cution a nd de live ry

Of th e  S e cu rity In s tru me n ts ,  . th e  e s ta b lis h me n t a n d  a me n d me n t o f a n y te rNs  a n d

provis ions  of a ny long-te rm or s hort-te rm inde bte dne s s  or a ny s uch S e curity Ins trume nts ,

the  is sua nce  of the  Gua ra nte e s , a nd the  re imburse me nt by the  Compa ny of a mounts  pa id

by P inna cle  We s t unde r the  Gua ra nte e s , a ll a s  conte mpla te d he re in, a nd the re a fte r ma ke

one  or more  imme dia te ly e ffe ctive  orde rs  which, toge the r, (i) a uthorize  the  Compa ny to

is s ue , s e ll, a nd incur the  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd the  Continuing S hort-Te rm

De bt, re de e m, re fina nce , re fund, re ne w, re is sue , roll-ove r, re pa y, a nd re -borrow from time

to time  s uch Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt, a nd e s ta blis h

a nd a me nd the  te rms  a nd provis ions  of long-te rm a nd s hort-te rm inde bte dne s s  from time

to  time , (ii) a u thorize  the  Compa ny to  de te rmine  the  fo rm of s e curity, if a ny, fo r the

Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd the  Continuing S hort-Te rm De bt, e xe cute  a nd de live r

the  Security Ins truments , and e s tablish and amend the  te rms  and provis ions  of the  Security

Ins trume nts , a s  ma y be  de e me d a ppropria te  by the  Compa ny in  conne ction  with  the

_ 10 _



Continu ing  Long-Te rm De bt a nd  the  Continu ing  S hort-Te rm De bt, (iii) s ta te  tha t the

is s ua nce s  a nd incurre nce s  of the  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd the  Continuing S hort-

Te rm De bt a nd the  e s ta blis hme nt a nd a me ndme nt of the  te rms  a nd provis ions  of a ny

outs ta nding long-te rm or short-te rm inde bte dne ss  a re  re a sona bly ne ce ssa ry or a ppropria te

for the  purpos e s  s e t toM in  th is  Applica tion  a nd  tha t s uch  purpos e s  a re  with in  thos e

pe rmitte d by A.R.S . S e ction 40-301, (iv) pe rmit such purpose s  to the  e xte nt tha t the y ma y

be  re a s ona bly cha rge a ble  to ope ra ting e xpe ns e s  or to income , (v) a uthorize  a  continuing-

wa ive r of or a uthoriza tion unde r R14-2-803 with re s pe ct to P inna cle  We s t Gua ra nte e s  of .

Compa ny inde bte dne s s , (vi) a uthorize  the  Compa ny to re imburs e  P inna cle  We s t for a ny

pa yme nt on a ny s uch Gua ra nte e s , with inte re s t a s  conte mpla te d he re in a nd (vii) confirm

tha t on ly tra d itiona l inde b te dne s s  fo r bo rrowe d  mone y (a nd  no t .  the  o the r type s  o f

a rra nge me nts  de scribe d in pa ra gra ph 13 of this  Applica tion) a re  subj e t to A.R.S . S e ctions

301 a nd 302 a nd tha t, the re fore , such a rra nge me nts  will not count a ga ins t the  Continuing

Lo n g -Te rm De b t o r Co n tin u in g  S h o rt-Te rm De b t a u th o riz a tio n s  re q u e s te d  in  th is

Applica tion or re quire  prior Commis s ion a pprova l,

Fina ncing orde rs  of the  kind re que s te d he re in re quire  ve ry s pe cific la ngua ge  to

s a tis fy pros pe ctive  le nde rs . Thus , propos e d la ngua ge  for ce rta in ke y pa ra gra phs  of the

orde r re que s te d in this  ma tte r is  a tta che d to this  Applica tion a s Exh ib it D.

Da te d a t P hoe nix, Arizona  this / 9 4 da y of De ce mbe r, 2006.

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

By: 's , u pa
Ba rba ra M. Gome z
Vice  P re s ide nt a nd Tre a sure r

ATTEST :
J
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By:

I

ATTORNEY FOR ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
COMP ANY

. " | I7414 />n44
ThomasL nfaaw
Arizona Pu lie  Service  Company

PINNACL

By : n _ _Q
.,a rlba ra  M. Gome z
Vice  P re s lde nt a nd Tre a sure r

I CAP L CO RATION

Betsy Pre
Associate

lm n
secretary
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ATTORNEY FOR P INNACLE WES T CAP ITAL
CORP ORATION

Kobe rt J . Me tli r
S ne ll & Wilme r LLP
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1 STATE OF ARIZONA

County of Maricopa

Barbara M. Gomez, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

Tha t she , Barba ra  M. Gomez, is  the  Vice  Pres ident and Treasure r of Arizona

Public Service  Company, tha t she  has  read the  foregoing Applica tion- and knows the

contents  thereof as  it re la tes  to Arizona Public Service Company, and that the  same is

true  in  s ubs ta nce  a nd in fa ct, e xce pt a s  to  ma tte rs  the re in s ta te d on informa tion a nd

belief, and as to those she believes them to be true.

m W 1

Barbara M. Gomez
/ - #

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this / s day of December, 2006.

L L L

Notary Public
6' 1

My commis s ion e xpire s :
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4, _r~ "
¢:FFOCIALSEAL

L I N D A  G .  R E D M A N
NOTARY PUBLIC~ARIZONA

MARICCPA COUNTY
My Comm. Expires Fob. 8, 2007
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I

Gil
g 19/

a 1 '.'lm
c aET"'*".'~' '~o»

Pygmy'

OPF\C1ALSEAL
L IN D A  G .  R E D MA N

NCTAHY PUBLIC-ARlZONA
MARICOPA COUNTY

M lomm. Expires Fob. 8, 2007

1 S TATE OF ARIZONA

* County of Maricopa

Barbara M. Gomez , being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

That she, Barbara M. Gomez, is the Vice President and Treasurer of Pinnacle

West Capital Corporation, that she has read the foregoing Application and knows the

contents thereof as it relates to Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, and that the same is

true in substance and in fact, except as to matters therein stated on information and

)
)as.

)

belief and as to those she believes them to be the.
r

Barbara M_ l{0mez

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this /9' day of December, 2006.

Nota ry P ub ic

My comm1ss39n..elgQ1res
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EXHIBITS

Exhibit A Affida vit of Ba rba ra  M. Gome z, the  Vice  P re s ide nt a nd Tre a sure r
of each of the  Company and P innacle  Wes t.

Exhib it B Arizona  Corpora tion Commis s ion Orde r in De cis ion No. 55017,
da te d Ma y 6, 1986.

Exhib it C P inna cle  We s t Ca pita l Corpora tion a nd Arizona  P ublic S e rvice
Compa ny Qua rte rly Re port on Form 10-Q for the  qua rte r e nde d
September 30, 2006.

Exh ib it D Certa in Language  for P roposed Orde r.
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IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION
CF PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL
CORPORATION FOR AN ORDER OR
CRDERS AUTHORIZING IT TO
GUARANTEE THE INDEBTEDNESS OF
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

1 BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

2

3 COMMISSIONERS

4

5

6

JEFF HATCH-MILLER, Chairman
WILLIAM A. MUNDELL
MIKE GLEAS ON
KRIS TIN K. MAYES
BARRY WONG

7 DOCKET no. E-01345A-06-

8

9

1 0 AFFIDAVIT OF
BARBARA M. GOMEZ

11

12

13

14

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION
OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
COMPANY FOR AN ORDER OR
ORDERS AUTHORIZING IT TO ISSUE,
INCUR, AND AMEND EVIDENCES OF
LONG-TERM INDEBTEDNESS AND
SHORT-TERM INDEBTEDNESS, TO
EXECUTE NEW SECURITY
INSTRUMENTS TO SECURE ANY SUCH
INDEBTEDNESS, TO REPAY AMOUNTS
PAID UNDER ANY PINNACLE WEST
CAPITAL CORPORATION GUARANTEE
OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
COMPANY INDEBTEDNESS AND FOR
DECLARATORY ORDER

15

16

17

18

1 9 S TATE OF ARIZONA

20

)
)s s .

)

2 1

County of Maricopa

I, Barbara M. Gomez, upon my oath, do swear and attest as follows:

22 Genera l

23

24

25

26

27

1. My na me  is  Ba rba ra  M. Gome z. I a m Vic e P re s ide nt a nd Tre a s ure r for body

Arizona  P ublic S e rvice  Compa ny ("AP S " or "Compa ny") a nd P inna cle  We s t Ca pita l Corpora tion

("P innacle  Wes t"). I am re s pons ible  for the  Treas ury functions  a t AP S  and P innacle  Wes t.

2. The  a s s e rtions  of fact conta ined Within the  Verified Applica tion of the  Company to

which this  Affidavit is  a ttached a re  true  and correct to my knowledge  and be lie f.

28



I

1 3.

2

The  purpos e  of this  Affida vit is  to te s tify, from my pe rs ona l e xpe rie nce  a nd

involve me nt a s  the  Tre a sure r, re ga rding the  ra tiona le  be hind the  re que s ts  conta ine d in the

3 Applica tion.

4 Specific Background Facts

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

The  Arizona  Corpora tion Commis s ion 's  ("Commis s ion") De c is ion No. 55017,

da ted May 6, 1986 (the  "1986 Orde r"), a llows  the  Comp8-Fly to have  outs tanding a t any one  time

long-te rm inde bte dne s s  (inc luding curre nt ma turitie s ) in  a n  a ggre ga te  princ ipa l a mount of

$2,698,917,000. The  1986 Order permits  the  Company to is sue , redeem or re finance  and es tablish

a nd a me nd the  te rms  of its  long-te nn de bt, a s  long a s  the  tota l outs ta nding long-te rm de bt doe s

not e xce e d $2,698,917,000 during a ny pe riod of more  tha n thirty da ys . The  fa ct tha t the  long-

te rm de bt limit ca n a ctua lly be  e xce e de d for a  pe riod of thirty da ys  or le s s  e na ble s  AP S  to is s ue

1 2 ne w long-te rm de bt in  a dva nce  of a n  upcoming  p la nne d  re de mption .

5 .13 In  Commis s ion De c is ion No. 65796 da te d April 4 , 2003 (the  "2003 Fina nc ing

14 Orde r"), the  Commis s ion a uthorize d the  Compa ny to is s ue  $500 million of long-te rm de bt a nd to

15 loa n the  proce e ds  to  P inna c le  We s t or P inna c le  We s t Ene rgy Corpora tion ("P WEC"). The

16

17

18

19

I

I

22

23

24

25

26

27

purpos e  of the  inte rcompa ny loa n wa s  to  re pa y the  P inna c le  We s t de bt incurre d to  fina nce

cons truction of the  Arizona  e le ctric ge ne ra ting pla nts  built to s e rve  AP S  na tive  loa d a nd owne d

by P WEC. In  Ma y of 2003,AP S  is s ue d $300 million of its  4 .65% Note s  due  2015 a nd $200

m illion  o f its  5 .625% No te s  due  2033 . The  P WEC Arizona  ge ne ra tion a s s e ts  we re  la te r

20 tra ns fe rre d to the  Compa ny, a nd the  inte rcompa ny loa n wa s  re pa id, The  $500 million of long-

21 te rm de bt tha t re ma ins  on AP S ' books  toda y in e ffe ct fina nce d the  ne w ge ne ra tion a s s e ts . The

2003 Fina ncing Orde r s pe cifie d the  $500 million of de bt tha t AP S  is s ue d would not be  counte d

aga ins t the  continuing debt limits  authorized by the  Commis s ion in the  1986 Orde r.

6. By me a ns  of the  1986 Orde r a nd the  2003 Fina ncing Orde r the  Commis s ion ha s

a uthorize d AP S  to is s ue  a  tota l of $3,I98,917,000 of long-te rm de bt. The  Compa ny is  a s ldng the

Commis s ion to incre a s e  the  continuing long-te rm de bt limit in its  Applica tion.

in a n a mount not to e xce e d 7% of its  ca pita liza tion without Commis s ion a pprova l. Howe ve r,28

4.

7.

2



1

2

3

54230 da te d Nove m be r 8, 1984 (the  "l984 Orde r") a llows  the  Com pa ny to re fund or roll-ove r

any such short-te rm debt as  long as the  7% limit is  not exceeded .

4 Benefits of Historical Financial Flexibility

5

6

7

8

9

The  1986 Orde r a nd 2003 Fina ncing Orde r ha ve  provide d s ignifica nt fina ncing

fie zdbility tha t ha s  se rve d the  Compa ny's  cus tome rs  e xtre me ly we ll for, in the  ca se  of the  1986

Orde r, the  pa s t 20 ye a rs . The  Compa ny a cce s s e d the  fre que ntly vola tile  ca pita l ma rke ts  in

tim e ly a nd e ffic ie nt m a nne r, the re by re ducing the  Com pa ny's  fina ncing cos ts  a rid the  cos t of

capita l re flected in customer ra tes .

10

11

12

13

During  the  pe riod  from  1985  to  the  p re s e n t,  the  Com pa ny ha s  is s ue d  ne a rly

$7 billion in long-te rm de bt, ta king a dva nta ge  of troughs  in the  inte re s t ra te  cycle  a nd turning

ove r the  Compa ny's  e ntire  de bt ca pita liza tion a bout thre e  time s . As  a  re sult, a ve ra ge  long-te rm

de bt cos ts  ha ve  droppe d from 10.5% in 1985 to 5.2% in 2005. S e e  Atta chme nt A for a  gra phica l

r

14 re pre s e nta tion  of the  de c line  in  AP S ' long-te rm  de bt cos ts . In  1992  a lone ,  the  Com pa ny

15

16

17 10.

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

volunta rily re fina nce d $650 million of de bt, producing tota l inte re s t sa vings  of some  $120 million

over the  then rema ining life  of the  re financed debt.

The  conce pt of a n ove ra ll limit on the  a mount of long-te rm de bt outs ta nding, a s

conta ine d in the  1986 Orde r, ha s  provide d AP S  fina ncia l fle xibility to ta ke  a dva nta ge  of optima l

financia l conditions  a t the  time  of each financing. This  flexibility occurs  in a  number of a reas .

Firs t, the re  is  the  ability to time  the  financing a t die  optima l point in te rms  of financia l marke t

conditions , S EC disclosure  re quire me nts , a nd ca sh flow re quire me nts . Ma rke ts  a re  vola tile , a nd

ha ving the  a bility to quickly e nte r the  ma rke ts  to is sue  ne w de bt yie lds  be tte r fina ncing pricing

a nd te rms . S e cond, the re  is  the  a bility to s ize  the  borrowing a t the  optima l le ve l. S ince  AP S

kne w it could e nte r the  ma rke t a s  ma ny time s  a s  ne ce ssa ry a s  long a s  it s ta ye d within the  limit, it

could do sma lle r de bt is sua nce s  if tha t we re  a dva nta ge ous  a t the  time . Third, the re  is  the  a bility

to obta in the  be s t te rm s  a va ila ble  a t the  tim e . S ince  the  Com pa ny wa s  give n the  a bility to

negotia te  the  te rms deemed appropria te , it could adapt to changing marke t conditions  and ge t the

best te rms ava ilable  a t the  time  of the  financing.

9.

8.
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I l. AP S ' long-te rm  de bt portfolio  com pa re s  quite  fa vora bly with  its  pe e rs . The  m os t

a pplica ble  inde x a va ila ble  for com pa ris on purpos e s  is  the  Le hm a n Brothe rs  Ele c tric  Utility Inde x

("inde x"), which  is  com pris e d  of ove r 250 bonds  is s ue d  by a bout 100 com pa nie s . The  we ighte d

a ve ra ge  coupon of the  Inde x a t ye a r-e nd 2005 wa s  6.10%, which e xce e de d AP S ' a ve ra ge  coupon

on its  ta xa b le  de b t o f 5 .86% by 24  ba s is  po in ts . AP S  wa s  a b le  to  a ch ie ve  a  lowe r cos t o f long-

te rm  de bt while  ha ving s lightly longe r da te d bonds . AP S  ha s  a n a ve ra ge  ye a rs  to  m a turity on its

ta xa ble  de bt of 12.0 ye a rs , which is  0.5 ye a rs  longe r tha n the  11.5 ye a r a ve ra ge  life  of the  Inde x.

12. The  Com pa ny ha s  a ls o  done  a n  e xc e lle n t job  o f m a na g ing  its  ta x-e xe m pt bond

portfo lio . AP S  ha s  ou ts ta nding  a pproxim a te ly $656 m illion  of ta x-e xe m pt de bt, the  proce e ds  of

which  fina nce d  po llu tion  con tro l e qu ipm e nt a t its  coa l a nd  nuc le a r powe r p la n ts . In  a d d itio n ,

AP S  ha s  re fina nce d the  ta x-e xe m pt bonds  s e ve ra l tim e s  in  orde r to  obta in lowe r inte re s t ra tes o r

m ore  fa vora ble  cre dit e nha nce m e nts . At De ce m be r 3 l, 2005, the  a ve ra ge  cos t of the  ta x-e xe m pt

de bt wa s  3 .25%, a nd  the  a ve ra ge  life  wa s  24  ye a rs . The  fina nc ing  fle xib ility o f the  1986  Orde r

ha s  e na ble d AP S  to obta in this  low cos t form  of fina ncing, which re s ults  in a  lowe r cos t of ca pita l

re fle cte d in cus tome r ra te s .

13. AP S  re de e m e d the  la s t of its  s e cure d de bt in  April of 2004. P rior to  tha t tim e  AP S

ha d is s ue d de bt tha twa s  s e cure d by s ubs ta ntia lly a ll of the  prope rty of AP S  purs ua nt to  the  1946

Mo rtg a g e  a n d  De e d  o f Tru s t. Th e  1 9 4 6  Mo rtg a g e  wa s  a lm o s t 6 0  ye a rs  o ld  a t th e  tim e  o f

te rm ina tion, a nd Ir did not re fle c t curre nt m a rke t s ta nda rds  for utility s e cure d bond inde nture s . It

a ls o conta ine d ce rta in  re s tric tive  cove na nts . By e lim ina ting the  1946 Mortga ge , AP S  ha s  gre a te r

fina nc ia l fle xib ility. Howe ve r, the re  m a y com e  a  tim e  whe n  it is  a dva nta ge ous  for AP S  to  e n te r

into a  ne w mortga ge  or othe r se curity a gre e me nts  a nd once  a ga in is sue  se cure d de bt.

14. AP S  m a na ge s  its  de bt portfolio  with the  goa l of ha ving a n a ppropria te  m ix of fixe d

a rid  flo a tin g  ra te  in s tru m e n ts . Th e  Bo a rd  o f Dire c to rs  h a s  e s ta b lis h e d  a  P in n a c le  We s t

c ons o lida te d  lim it on  floa ting  ra te  de b t o f 20% o f c a p ita liz a tion . AP S  ha d  l0 .2% floa ting  ra te

de bt a t De ce m be r 31, 2005. Mos t of the  floa ting ra te  de bt is  in the  ta x-e xe m pt ins trum e nts , which

ha ve  le s s  vola tility of in te re s t ra te s  tha n  ta xa ble  de bt. This  is  a nothe r e xa m ple  of how the  1986

23
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1 Orde r ha s  e na ble d  the  Compa ny to  ma na ge  its  de b t portfo lio  s o  a s  to  be ne fit the  Compa ny a nd  its

2 cus tome rs .

3 15.

4

5

6

7

8

9 16 .

10

A.R.S .  S e c tio n  4 0 -3 0 2 .D a n d  th e  1 9 8 4  Ord e r e n a b le  th e  Co m p a n y to  is s u e  s h o rt-

te rm  d e b t u p  to  7 %  o f c a p ita liza tio n .  AP S  m e e ts  its  s e a s o n a l wo rkin g  c a p ita l re q u ire m e n ts  with

s h o rt-te rm  b o rro win g s ,  o fte n  in  th e  fo rm  o f c o m m e rc ia l p a p e r. S in c e  th e  s ta tu to ry lim it  is  a

pe rce nt of ca pita liza tion, a S  the  Compa ny ha s  grown in  s ize  a rid  its  ca pita l s truc ture  ha s  incre a s e d,

the  a moun t o f s ho1 t~te rm de b t c a pa c ity ha s  a ls o  inc re a s e d . Th is  ha s  p rovide d  AP S  the  fle xib ility

to  continue  to  me e t its  g rowing  working  ca p ita l ne e ds .

The  Com pa ny ha s  c on tinuous ly c om plie d  with  e a c h  o f the  te rm s  a nd  c ond itions  o f

th e  1 9 8 6  Ord e r a n d  th e  2 0 0 3  F in a n c in g  Ord e r a n d  is  in  c o m p lia n c e  with  s u c h  Ord e rs  a s  o f th e

11

12 1 7 .

13

14

15

16

17

18

da te  o f th is  App lica tion .

The  Compa ny ha s  ope ra te d  unde r the  1986 Orde r a nd- the  2003 Fina nc ing  Orde r in

a  m a nne r tha t is  c om pa tib le  with  s ound  F ina nc ia l po lic y a nd  the  pub lic  in te re s t.  By ha ving  re a dy

a cce s s  to  the  ca p ita l ma rke ts  a s  we ll a s  the  a b ility to  re fina nce  e xis ting  de bt whe n  the  opportun ity

a ris e s ,  the  Com pa ny is  a b le  to  re duc e  in te re s t c o s ts ,  wh ic h  re s u lts  in  lowe r c us tom e r ra te s .  The

ne w fina nc ing  a u thority re que s te d  in  the  Applica tion  would  e na b le  AP S  to  con tinue  to  ma na ge  its

de bt re quire me nts  de s p ite  cha nging  fina nc ia l ne e ds  a nd  conditions ; Thus , the  re que s te d  fina nc ing

orde r is  compa tib le  with  s ound  fina nc ia l po licy a nd  the  pub lic  in te re s t.

19 AP S ' Lo n g -Te r m  De b t F in a n c in g  Ne e d s

20 18.

2 1

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

At S e p te m b e r  3 0 ,  2 0 0 6 ,  th e  C o m p a n y h a d  to ta l o u ts ta n d in g  lo n g - te rm  d e b t

(a u th o riz e d  u n d e r th e  1 9 8 6  O rd e r a n d  th e  2 0 0 3  F in a n c in g  O rd e r) in  a n  a g g re g a te  p rin c ip a l

a m o u n t o f $ 2 ,9 6 2 ,0 7 l,0 4 3 . Th is  a m o u n t in c lu d e s  c u rre n t m a tu rit ie s  o f lo n g -te rm  d e b t. O n

No ve m b e r 1 5 ,  2 0 0 6 ,  AP S  h a d  a  b o n d  m a tu rin g  in  th e  a m o u n t o f $ 8 3 ,6 9 5 ,0 0 0  At De c e m b e r 3 1 ,

2 0 0 6  th e  a m o u n t o f lo n g -te rm  d e b t is  e xp e c te d  to  b e  a p p ro xim a te ly $ 2 .8 8  b illio n . As  s ta te d

a bove , the  1986  Orde r a nd  2003  Fina nc ing  Orde r co lle c tive ly limit long-te rm de b t to  a n  a ggre ga te

princ ipa l a mount o f $3 ,198 ,917 ,000 . Compa ring  the  e xpe c te d  ye a r~e nd  2006  de b t ba la nce  to  the

lim it  o n  lo n g -te rm  d e b t s h o ws  th a t AP S  wo u ld  h a ve  a u th o riz a tio n  to  is s u e  a p p ro xim a te ly a n

a d d itio n a l $ 3 0 0  m illio n .
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1 19.

2

In light of the  proje cte d growth of the  Com pa ny a nd its  cus tom e r ba s e , a nd the

re s ulta nt pro je c te d  fu ture  fina nc ing ne e de d to  fund the  Com pa ny's  ca pita l e xpe nditure  a nd

3 Compa ny re que s ts  Commis s ion

4

ma in te na nc e  p rogra m a nd  o the r c a s h  re qu ire me nts ,  the

a uthoriza tion to incre a s e  the  long-te rm de bt limita tion by a pproxima te ly $1 billion s o tha t the

5 This

6

Company may have  up to an aggregate  principal amount of long-term debt of $4.2 billion.

amount would include  die  $500 million currently authorized in the  2003 Financing Order. The

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

1.5

16

a dditiona l $1 billion is  a pproxima te ly thre e  ye a rs  of e xte rna l fina nc ing re quire me nts . See

Atta chme nt B for de ta ils  on the  de riva tion of the  a dditiona l $1 billion of long-te rm de bt a uthority

reques ted. Abs e nt th is  h ighe r continuing de bt limit, AP S ' a bility to  a cce s s  the  de bt ca pita l

ma rke ts  in a  time ly ma nne r to ta ke  a dva nta ge  of fa vora ble  ma rke t conditions  will be  s e ve re ly

impa cte d. AP S  would be  re quire d to re que s t Commis s ion a uthoriza tion for e a ch de bt is s ua nce

once  the  curre nt limit is  me t a nd would ne e d to  s e e k a uthoriza tion we ll in  a dva nce  of e a ch

is s uance  to ens ure  the  authoriza tion was  in place  a t the  time  the  funding was  required. In addition

to ha mpe ring the  Compa ny's  a bility to a dva nta ge ous ly a nd s tra te gica lly a cce s s  the  de bt ca pita l

ma rke ts , which could  unne ce s s a rily inc re a s e  the  Compa ny's  cos t of ca pita l, th is  would  be

adminis tra tive ly ine fficient for both the  Commis s ion and the  Company.

17 20. AP S  re que s ts  to continue  the  a bility to de te rmine  the  te rms  of a ny long-te rm de bt

18

19

is s ua nce s . Ma turity, inte re s t ra te , dis count a nd othe r fa c tors  would be  ne gotia te d in orde r to

obta in the  most favorable  te rms possible  for the  Company and its  customers .

20 Other Components of Long-Term Debt Authorization
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22
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28

21. The  Company a ls o s eeks  to confirm tha t the  new continuing debt limit applie s  only

to de bt for borrowe d mone y. As  a  re s ult of cha nge s  in a ccounting principle s  a nd inte rpre ta tions ,

the re  could be  ins tances  in which othe r types  of financia l obliga tions  may be  cla s s ified a s  debt in

the  Compa ny's  fina nc ia l s ta te me nts  in  orde r to  be  in  complia nce  with  Ge ne ra lly Acce pte d

Accounting P rinciple s . For example , the re  a re  currently is s ues  rega rding the  accounting for long-

te rm power purchas e  agreements . De pe nding on the  le ngth a nd na ture  of the  a gre e me nt, s uch

arrangements  may be  clas s ified as  capita l leases  and re flected as  debt on the  ba lance  shee t of the

Company. S imila r is s ues  could apply to othe r contracts , s uch a s  long-te rm fue l s upply contracts .

6



1

2

3

4

5

This  could pote ntia lly e rode  the  de bt-is suing ca pa bility of AP S  a nd gre a tly a ffe cts  the  a bility of

the  Compa ny to pla n its  norma l fina ncing a ctivitie s  if the s e  a rra nge me nts  a re  include d in the

continuing de bt lim it or re quire  prior a uthoriza tion. By finding tha t s uch a rra nge me nts  a re  not

s ubje ct to A.R.S . S e ctions  301, e t s e q., the  ne w continuing de bt lim its  will the n only a pply to

tra ditiona l borrowings ,  a nd the  Com pa ny will not be  a t the  m e rcy of cha nge s  in  a ccounting

6 regulations.

7 22.

8

9

10

12

13

In the  future  AP S  may find it necessa ry or advantageous  to secure  its  debt with the

prope rty of the  Compa ny. AP S ' cre dit ra tings  a re  curre ntly jus t one  notch a bove  non-inve s tme nt

gra de . If AP S ' cre dit ra ting we re  to fa ll to non-inve s tme nt gra de , its  a cce s s  to the  de bt ca pita l

ma rke ts  would be  s e ve re ly curta ile d. Eve n if AP S  we re  a ble  to loca te  non-inve s tm e nt gra de

inve s tors , the re  would like ly be  much more  re s trictive  cove na nt re quire me nts . The se  re s trictions

could include  limita tions  on the  use  of proceeds , draconian financia l te s ts , and re s trictions  on free

ca sh flow. In such a n e nvironme nt, AP S  ma y be  re quire d to is sue  se cure d de bt in orde r to obta in

14 the necessary financing. In  a d d it io n ,  th e re  m a y b e  a n  in te re s t  ra te  o r fin a n c ia l m a rke t

15
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21

22 23.

23
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28

e nvironme nt in which it is  a dva nta ge ous  for AP S  to is s ue  s e cure d de bt. While  the  1986 Orde r

a llowe d AP S  to us e  its  a s s e ts  to  s e cure  de bt,  this  a uthoriza tion wa s  gra nte d unde r die  1946

Mortga ge ,  which  ha s  s ince  be e n  re tire d . The re fore ,  AP S  is  a ls o  re que s ting  Com m is s ion

a uthoriza tion to ple dge  or m ortga ge  AP S  a s s e ts  a s  s e curity for its  de bt. This  would  inc lude

a u tho rity to  e n te r in to  a  ne w m ortga ge  a nd  de e d  o f tru s t tha t e s ta b lis he s  a  lie n  on  a ll o r

subs tantia lly a ll of the  Company's  prope rty, a s  we ll a s  the  authority to ente r into sepa ra te  security

instruments  for one  or more  pa rticula r debt issuances.

It may be  advantageous  for P innacle  West to gua rantee  AP S  debt issuances . AP S '

de bt is  curre ntly re gis te re d with the  S e curitie s  a nd Excha nge  Com m is s ion ("S EC") unde r the

re ce ntly e na cte d short-form re gis tra tion forms  a nd proce dure s . In the  e ve nt the  Compa ny is  not

ra te d inve s tme nt gra de  by a t le a s t one  na tiona lly re cognize d s ta tis tica l ra ting orga niza tion a t the

time  of a  de bt is sua nce , a  P inna cle  We s t gua ra nte e  would be  ne ce ssa ry unde r the  S EC rule s  to

a llow continue d utiliza tion of the se  short-form re gis tra tion forms  a nd proce dure s . With a  pa re nta l

gua ra nte e , the  Compa ny would ha ve  gre a te r a cce s s  to the  public  fina ncia l ma rke ts . P inna cle

7



1

2

3

4

We st re que s ts  a  wa ive r of or a uthority unde r A.A.C. R14-2-803 to gua ra nte e  the  Compa ny's  de bt

a s  ne e de d from time  to time . The  Compa ny a lso se e ks  a uthoriza tion to re imburse  P inna cle  We st

for a ny a m ounts  tha t P inna cle  We s t is  re quire d to pa y unde r a ny s uch gua ra nte e , a long with

associa ted interest.

5 APS' Short-Term Debt Financing Needs

6 24.
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13 25.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

In a ddition to a n incre a se  in the  long-te rm de bt limit, the  Compa ny a lso re que s ts

te rm de bt in a n a mount not to e xce e d 7% of its  ca pita liza tion without Commiss ion a pprova l. The

1984 Orde r a llows the  Company to re finance  and roll-ove r short-te rm debt a s  long a s  the  7% limit

is  not e xce e de d. AP S  is  re quire d to obta in a pprova l from the  Commis s ion to e xce e d the  limit.

Ba s e d  on  its  curre n t ca p ita liza tion ,  AP S ' s hort-te rm  de bt is  lim ite d  to  a pproxim a te ly $420

million. As  of S e pte mbe r 30, 2006, AP S  ha d no short-te nn de bt outs ta nding.

As  AP S  continue s  to grow, so doe s  its  ne e d for working ca pita l. The  7% limit ha s

a de qua te ly me t the  se a sona l working ca pita l re quire me nts  of Me  utility for ma ny ye a rs . Howe ve r,

AP S ' loa d growth ha s  re sulte d in a n incre a se d e xposure  to contra cte d commodity a nd purcha se d

powe r. The s e  contra c ts  ha ve  ca s h colla te ra l provis ions  tha t ca n re s ult in  s ignifica nt liquidity

de ma nds  on the  Compa ny a s  ma rke t price s  cha nge . AP S  ha s  re ce ntly e xpe rie nce d cha nge s  in

ca s h colla te ra l pos itions  in the  ma gnitude  of $100 million in jus t s e ve ra l da ys . If AP S  we re  to

become  a  non-investment grade  company, the  magnitude  of the  colla te ra l changes  would be  even

more  e xtre me  s ince  counte rpa rtie s  re quire  a dditiona l colla te ra l de pe nding on cre dit qua lity. The

incre a s e d liquidity re quire d to re s pond to vola tile  a nd incre a s ing colla te ra l re quire m e nts  ha s

resulted in the  need for short-te rm debt in excess  of the  currently authorized amount.

23 26.
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The  Com pa ny re c e n tly c om ple te d  a n  a s s e s s m e n t o f its  liqu id ity ne e ds  a nd

de te rmine d tha t a n a dditiona l $500 million wa s  ne ce ssa ry. In S e pte mbe r of 2006, AP S  close d a

$500 million re volving cre dit fa cility which wa s  syndica te d in the  ba nk ma rke ts  prima rily with its

e xis ting group of le nde rs . This  fa cility is  in a ddition to the  $400 million re volving cre dit fa cility

tha t is  use d for norma l working ca pita l re quire me nts . In orde r to hilly utilize  the  short-te rm de bt

ca pa bility provide d by the  ne w re volve r, a dditiona l Commiss ion a uthority is  re quire d.
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11

12

If die  s hort-te rm de bt limit is  not incre a s e d, AP S  would ha ve  to is s ue  long-te rm

de bt to fund its  s hort-te rm  ne e ds . This  is  a n  une conom ic  s o lu tion  a nd  doe s  no t fo llow the

fina ncia l principle  of fina ncing short-te rm ne e ds  with short-te rm de bt.

28. Ba s e d on the  re ce nt a na lys is  of liquidity ne e ds ,  inc luding working ca pita l a nd

pote ntia l colla te ra l ca lls , the  Compa ny ha s  de te rmine d dirt a s  a dditiona l $500 million of s hort-

te rm de bt a uthoriza tion would be  a de qua te . The  Compa ny is  re que s ting the  short-te rm de bt limit

be  incre a se d to the  sum of 7% of ca pita liza tion a rid $500 million, a nd tha t the  Commiss ion orde r

continue  to flow the  re fina ncing a nd roll-ove r of such short-te rm de bt.

AP S  re que s ts  to  continue  the  a bility to  de te rm ine  the  te rm s  of a ny s hort-de bt

is sua nce s  a nd to se cure  a ny such inde bte dne ss  if ne ce ssa ry or a dva nta ge ous . Ma turity, inte re s t

ra te , discount a nd othe r fa ctors  would be  ne gotia te d in orde r to obta in the  mos t fa vora ble  te rms

possible  for the  Company and its  customers .

13 Summary

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

30. The  fina ncing fle xibility provide d in pre vious  Commiss ion orde rs  ha s  s e rve d the

Com pa ny's  cus tom e rs  e xtre m e ly we ll by a llowing the  Com pa ny to a cce s s  fre que ntly vola tile

capita l ma rke ts  in a  time ly and e fficient manne r, the reby reducing the  Company's  financing cos ts

a nd the  cos t of ca pita l re fle cte d in cus tome r ra te s . AP S  fa ce s  a  growing cus tome r ba se  re quiring

s ign ific a n t c a p ita l e xpe nd itu re s  tha t will ne c e s s ita te  a dd itiona l long-te rm  de b t fina nc ing .

Additiona l short-te rm de bt ca pa city is  a lso re quire d for growing liquidity ne e ds . The  Compa ny is

s e e king a  ne w fina ncing orde r tha t a uthorize s  the  highe r long- a nd s hort-te rm de bt lim its  a nd

21

22

23

othe r re que s te d compone nts . This  ne w fina ncing orde r would a llow AP S  to continue  to me e t the

growing financing needs  in an e fficient and cost e ffective  manner tha t bene fits  AP S ' cus tomers .

Dated this l5*day of D=<<mL< r, 2006.

FURTHER AFFIANT S AYETH NOT.24

25
8 4

Ba rba ra  M. Gome z

26

27

28

9
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DOCKETED BY

6.74

Arizona Corporation Commission

DOCKETED
1 DEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

MAY 0 6 1986

2

4

RENZ D. JENNINGS
CHAIRMAN

3 HARCIA W EEKS
c ot tmls s lonrs n

SHARON B. z1E1;DAL
COMMISSIONER

5
DOCKET NO. U-13/45-B6-003

6

'7
DECISION no. . 4 4 0 / ' 7

8

g

IN 'mg MATTER OF THE APPLICATION )
OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY )
FOR AN ORDER OR OFDERS AUTHORIZING IT )
TO ISSUE, INCUR AND AMEND EVIDENCES OF )
LONG-TERM INDEBTEDNESS. 'Iv ISSUE OR )
INCUP. NUCLEAR Fun; DEBT, AND 'ro )
EXECUTE A NEW  SUPPLE}{3;TAL INDENTURE OR )
l`nD18n'nJREs. )

) ORDER

10

1 1
Open Meeting
April 30, 1986
Phoenix, Arizona

12
BY THE Q31/a4Iss1on:

13 On December 31, 1985, Arizona Public Service Company ("APS"') filed a n

14 .
Application with the Arizona Corporation Commission ("Commission") wherein APS

15
s o u g h t  a u t h o r i z a t i o n  t o . a m o n g  o t h e r  t h i n g s , implement various f inancings .

16
On February 25, 1986, the Residential Utility Consumer Off ice ("PlJCO")

l'7
f i l e d a n A p p l i c a t i o n t o I n t e r v e n e h e r e i n .

1 8 .
Procedural Order dated March 4, 1986.

19

Said Application was granted by

On April 17, 19B6, the Commission' s  U t i l i t i e s D i v i s i o n S ta ff ( " S t : a f f " )

20
filed a Memorandum recommending approval without hearing of the proposed

21
Attached thereto was written testimony by a Staff Seniorfinancing program.

22
Rate Analyst", which testimony supported Staff's overall recommendation.

23 .* * * * * *

24
Having considered the Application, the e x h i b i t s and deaf t testimony

25
submitted therewith. as well as Staff's memorandum and attached testimony, and

26
being fully advised in the premises, the Commission finds, concludes and orders

2 7
n a :  :

28

DR002169

x
pl,



U-1345-86-003

FINDINGS OF FACT

4" APS is an Arizona corporation engaged in providing electric service
2

3
to the public within port ions of Arizona pursuant to authority granted by this

4 Commission.

2 . By its Application, as suppl cemented by A.PS's deaf t testimony i n th is
5

m a t te r , APS requests one o r more orders  seek ing the fo llo win g  :
6

(a ) authorization to issue. sel l , and incur in 1986
7

8
or pursuant to lending, purchase, or underwriting

9
commitments obtained in 1986, in one or more

10
transactions, up to $275,000,000 in aggregate

1 1
principal amount of additional eviniences of long-term

12
indebtedness (al l such evidences of indebtedness

hereinafter being referred to as "New Debt")

14
it being specif ied that the nature and terms of all

15
such issuances and sales of  New Debt  would be determined

16
by APS by reference to conditions in the financial

17
markets al: Cha time or times of commitment.

18
(b) authorization to increase the long-term indebtedness

19
limitation authorized in the Commission's Order in

20
Decision No. 54230, dated November 8. 1984, that allowed

2 1
APS, among other things, to have, at any one time

22
outstanding in 1985 or thereafter, long-term indebtedness

23 (including current maturities thereof) in an aggregate

24 principal amount of $2.374,093,000, so as to allow

25 APS to have. at any one time outstanding, up to an

26 aggregate principal amount of long-term indebtedness

27 (including current maturities thereof) of $2,698,917,000.

such authorizationto permit any redemptions, refinancings,

I

23

13

1/fb TW;'\r-4 et run 9 1 1 . ( " ' - / / /

I
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U-1345_-6_003

refundings, renewals, reissuances and roll~overs of any

2
such outstanding indebtedness, the incurrence or

3
issuance of any additional long-term indebtedness, and the

4 amendment or revision of any terms of provisions of or

relating to any 0on8-term indebtedness, as long as I
5

q total long-term indebtedness at any one time outstanding
6

'7
does not exceed (without fur the: Commission authorization) i

I\

8 $2,698.917.000 during any period of more than this Ty days,

9 it being specified chat the nature and terms of all such

10 issuances and sales of such long-term indebtedness

would be determined by APS by reference to conditions

12 in the financial markets at the time or times of such

1 3 issuances (all such long-term indebtedness to be issued i

14 pursuant to this authorization being herein referred to I
I

15 as "Continuing Debt"), and such authorization to

16 supercetie the long-:emu indebtedness limitation

l'7 authorized by Decision No. 54230.

18 (c) authorization in connection with providing security

19 for any New Debt or Continuing Debt, to execute and

20 deliver one or more new supplemental indentures to its

2 1 Mortgage and Deed of Trust in the event it is
\

22 deemed appropriate by APS to do so;

23 (d) author izat ion for APS to f inance i t s  nuclear  fue l

24 requi r 'an ants in connection with the operation of

25 the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station by

26 instiutin8 a financing program involving the issuance

27 of APS of commercial paper, intermediate-:erm notes,

28
8
'Q
3

In \134 r<Q//'7
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u-13 145-86-003

1
and/or other evidences of indebtedness in en Bggregate

2
principal amount: of up to $200,000,000, all of which

3
may const i tute long-term debt  (col lect iv ely.  the

4
"Nuclear Fuel Debt"), and in connection therewith. no

issue or incur evidences of indebtedness in 1986 or
5

6
thereafter, and to refund or rol l -over al l  or a portion

'7
of  the Nuclear Fuel Debt. any shot t:-term debt to be issued i

I
8

in connect ion therewi th to be in addi t ion to shot  t - term

g
debt prev iously authorized by the Commission or per-

lO
mit ted by A.R.S. Sect ion 40-302.D, i t  being speci f ied

that the nature and terms of  any issuances and sales

1 2
of Nuclear Fuel Deb: would be determined by ANS by

reference to conditions i n  the f i nanc ial  markets Ar  the

14
time or times of commitnnenc.

!

I
J

I
l
I

15 iv On Apr i l  17, 1986, Staff f i led a Memorandum and wri t ten test imony

16 supper ting the Application and recommending summary approval thereof.

17 4. The New Debt and the Cont i nu ing Debt  wi l l be utilized for APS's

18 construction program,
.

the ref inancing,  ret i rement .  or redempt ion of

19 securities, the repayment of shot t-term debt which pre vious ly

I
I

:

i

I

II
i

out5tand1 ng i

f inanced

2 0 con s t r u c t i on Pr° j  acts, and, i f necessary. the payment of car rain o f APS's

21 working captial and other cash requirements. The  Nucle a r Fue l Debt w i l l be

22 used to f i nance APS's nuclear f uel requirements for the Palo Verde Nuclea r

i
E
1
I

i

I
1

I
I

E
t

E23 Generating Station, and/or to refund or roll-over the Nuclear Fuel Debt. 9

I

E

24 5. The cast s o f  nuc l ear  f ue l  wi l l  be  charged to  opera t i ng  ex pense or

25 income as such fuel is consumed.

6. The Nuclear Fuel Debt would not exceed $200,000,000 ch rough a26

27 combination of intermediate-:erm domes t i ca l l y issued debt (not t o exceed

I

i

CB $50.000,000) I a European commercial paper: program, and a shot t-term European

13

I . L /1 \'\ar'{=1' ON N m 4 " § 0 / 7
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U-1345-86-003

1 1 oan facility. The Nuclear Fuel Debt may exceed APS's net nuclear fuel assets

2 (up to the $200,000,000 limit) .

5
7 . The exact timing of any issuances to be made pursuant no the

4 requested author izat ion would be dictated by then prev ai l ing market Condisons

5 would the terms and condi t ionsa s of such issuances, i nc l ud i ng the t ype Qr

secure cy
6

(mar gage. deed of trust. letter of cre dit. standby purchase

agreement,
7

etc.), if 'any. provided therefor.

8. The reasonableness of  such t iming as wel l  as of  terms and condi t ions
8

9  o f sale would be gov erned 'by the exercise in good f  wi th of  prudent  business

10 ju<5gemen:-

9. APS does not anticipate that i t w i l l ac tua l l y  hav e t o  i ssue a l l  o f

12 the debt for which authorization is being sought.

13 10. The f inancing f lex ibi l i ty  sought  herein and as prev iously granted by

14 Decision No. 54230 has permitted APS to take advantage of rapid and sometimes

15 unant icipated changes in the capi tal  markets.

16 11 I Upon the i ssuance of  a l l  the debt  f or  which author i zat ion i s sought

l'7  h e re in . APS would have adequate operat ing income to serv ice such debt under

1 8 existing rates for electric service.

19 12. A f t e r  i ssuanc e  o f  a l l  t he  deb t  f o r  wh i c h  au t ho r i z a t i on  i s  sough t

2 0 herein.. APS's f i nanc i a l  ra t i os as co i n terest  cov erage,  l ong- term  debt , cash

2 1 flow, and common equity would be below those of  comparable investment grade

2 2 investor-owned u t i l i t i e s , thus creating some risk of Dow n-rating CO

23 sub-investment grade.

24 13. Al though such a down-rat ing would be signi f i cant l y  harmf ul  to both

25 APS and i ts ratepayers.  the r i sk  of  i t s occurrence i s smal l  and can be f ur  thee

26 reduced by  e i ther  APS recei v i ng ra te re l i e f  i n  i t s pending rate appl i cat i on o r

27 by a reduct ion in discret ionary expendi tures or by a combinat ion of  both.

28 14. There is no reason to bel ieve that any other form of  long-term

TI
9"

x -5/8
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1 financing would on a risk adjusted basis prove to be less expensive to APS and

2 its ratepayers.

3
15. With the possible exception of the Nuclear Fuel Debt and the payment

of ce rta in
4

of APS's working captial and other cash requirements, none of the

5 purposes for which debt is to be issued pursuant to the authorization sought

6 herein is reasonably chargeable to operating expense or income.

'7
1 6 . The p r op o se d f i n a n c i n g and t h e a u t h o r i z a t i o n s i n c o n n e c t i o n

8 therewith are reasonably necessary for the purposes set for Rh herein and in the

9 A p p l i c a t i o n .

10
17. The proposed financing program is compatible with sound financial

11 practices and with APS's obligations as a public service corporation and will

lg not impair its ability to provide service to the public.

13 18 . The proposed f i nanc ing  p rog ram has been approved by APS's board of

1 4 d i r e c t o r s .

15
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

16 1 . APS is a public service corporation within the meaning of Ar tile XV

17 the Arizona Constitution and A.R.S.of 5540-301, et seq.

18
z . The Commission has jurisdiction over APS and of the subject matter

l g o f  t h e  A p p l i c a t i o n .

3 The proposed financing plan. as described he re in and in  ANS 's
20
21 Application, is for lawful purposes within the corporate Powers of APS and is

22 compatible .with :he p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t .

23
ORDER

24
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED tha t A r i zona P u b l i c Se rv i ce Company be. and the

25 same is hereby authorized"

26 (a) tO issue, s e ll, and incur up to $275,000,000 in aggregate

27 principal amount of New Debt, to issue. sell, and incur the

28 Continuing Debt, and to amend the terms and provisions of

Flax'-4 4:-1 r\1'1 H r
.v .f.. A
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1
outstanding long-term indebtedness '

2
(b) to execute and deliver one or more supplemental indentures to

3
the Arizona Public Service Company's Mortgage and Deed of Trust

4
as may be deemed appropriate by Arizona Public Service Company

5
in connection with the New Debt and Continuing Debt:

6
(c) to issue. s e ll, and incur up to $200,000,000 in aggregate

7
principal amount of Nuclear Fuel Debt: and,

B
(d) -to pay related expenses, all as contemplated in the Application

g
and by the exhibits and testimony fi l ed i n connection

10 therewith.

1 1 IT IS E`UR'lHER otuJERx~:n that Arizona P ublic Se rvice Com party i s hereby

12 authorized to sign and deliver such documents and to engage in such acts a s are

1_3 reasonably necessary to effectuate the authorization granted hereinabove.

14 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the purposes for which the proposed issuances

15 of New Debt and Continuing Debt are herein authorized are to augment the funds

1 6 a va ila ble fro m all sources no finance Ariz ona P ublic Service Company's

17 construction program, co redeem or retire outstanding securit ies, no repay o r

18 refund othe r outstanding long-term debt, no repay short-term debt which has

lg prev iously financed construction projects, and, if  necessary, to meet ceca in

20 working capital and other cash requirements, regardless of the extent to which

21 such purposes may be reasonably chargeable to operative expenses or to income.

22 IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED that the purposes whichfo r the proposed issuances

23 of  Nuclear Fuel Debt are herein authorized are t o finance the Arizona Public

24 Service Company's nuclear fuel requirements in connection with the operation of

25 :he Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station, and/or no refund or rol l-over the

26 Nuclear Fuel Debt, which purposes are hereby specifically authorized regardless

27 of the extent co which they may be reasonably chargeable to operative expenses

28 or no income .

v ~ a
_ . ' _.' .. v
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Commission's authorization of the above

2 f inancing does nor constitute approval of any par titular expenditure of the

3 proceeds derived thereby for the purposes of setting just and reasonable rates.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Decision shall become effective
4.

5 immediately.

BY ORDER OF THE ARIZONA coxpoRAT1on COMMISSION.
6

'7
1
I
I

8
/7

Me
g

`

QIAIRMAN COMMISSIONER
(_M4411 8 .~

COIi.NI OMER

l o

1 1

12

IN WITNESS WHEREUF, I .
Secretary of the Arizona
hereunto set my hand and
this Commission to be
City of Phoenix. this
1986.

13

JAMES MATTHEWS. Executive
Corporation Commission, have
caused the of f icial seal of

a f f ixed  a t  the  Cap i to l ,  in  the
Q day of .

14

~/
JAMES MATTH S
Executive Secretary

I

15 /'

16 DISSENT
'ILl/djp
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FORM 10-Q
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WAS HINGTON, D.C. 20549

(Mark One)

x Q UARTERLY REP O RT P URS UANT TO  S ECTIO N 13  O R 15(d )
O F THE S ECURITIES  EXCHANG E ACT G F 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2006

OR

I:I TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 1S(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the trans ition period from to

Commission
File Number

IRS Employer
Identification No.

1-8962 86-0512431

1-4473

Exact Name of Each Registrant as specified in
its charter; State of Incorporation; Address;

and Telephone Number
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
(an Arizona corporation)
400 North Fifth Street, P.O. Box 53999
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-3999
(602) 250-1000
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(a.n Arizona corporation)
400 North Fish Street, P.O. Box 53999
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-3999
(602) 250-1000

86-0011170

- l

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes X No _
Yes X No

ro accelerated Hier D

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See
definition of "accelerated filer" and "large accelerated filer" in Rule l 2b-2 of the Exchange Act.
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
Large accelerated filer 8 Accelerated filer [J
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
Large accelerated filers] Accelerated filer El Non-accelerated filer 8

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant is a shell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule l2b-2).
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION Yes No Q;
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY Yes No X

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock as of the latest practicable date .
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION Number of shares of common stock, no par value,

outstanding as of August 4, 2006: 99,477,663

Number of shares of common stock, $2.50 par value,
outstanding as ofAulz 1st 4, 2006: 71,264,947

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

Arizona Public Service Company meets the conditions set forth in General Instruction I-l(l)(a) and (b) of Form
I0-Q and is therefore tiling this form with the reduced disclosure format allowed under that General Instruction.

This combined Form I0-Q is separately filed by Pinnacle West Capital Corporation and Arizona Public Service
Company. Each registrant is filing on its own behalf all of the information contained in this Form I0-Q that relates to such
registrant and, where required, its subsidiaries. Except as stated in the preceding sentence, neither registrant is filing any
information that does not relate to such registrant, and therefore maces no representation as to any such information.
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GLOSSARY

ACC - Arizona Corporation Commission

ADEQ - Arizona Department of Environmental Quality

ALJ - Administrative Law Judge

APB -. Accounting Principles Board

APS - Arizona Public Service Company, a subsidiary oldie Company

APS Energy Services .- APS Energy Services Company, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company

Clean Air Act .-- Clean Air Act, as amended

Company -- Pinnacle West Capital Corporation

DOE .-. United States Department of Energy

EITF - FASB's Emerging Issues Task Force

El Dorado -. El Dorado Investment Company, a subsidiary of the Company

EPA - United States Environmental Protection Agency

ERMC Energy Risk Management Committee .

FASB .- Financial Accounting Standards Board

FERC --. United States Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

FIP - Federal Implementation Plan

GAAP - accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

IRS -- United States Internal Revenue Service

kph - kilowatt-hour

Moody's .- Moody's Investors Service

MWh .- megawatt-hour, one million watts per hour

Native Load -- retail and wholesale sales supplied under traditional cost-based rate regulation

NPC -- NevadaPower Company

NRC -- United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission

OCI -- other comprehensive income

Off-System Sales-.- sales of electricity iron generation owned by the Company that is over and
above the amount required to serve APS' retail customers and traditional wholesale contracts

Palo Verde -- Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station

Pinnacle West - Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, the Company

Pinnacle West Energy -. Pinnacle West Energy Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company

PRP - potentially responsible party

PSA - power supply adjustor
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PWEC Dedicated Assets - the following power plants, each of which was transferred by Pinnacle
West Energy to APS on July 29, 2005: Redhawk Units l and 2, West Phoenix Units 4 and 5 and
Saguaro Unit 3

Salt River Project -- Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District

SEC .- United States Securities and Exchange Commission

SFAS - Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

Silverhawk .-- Silverhawk Power Station, a 5'70-megawatt, natural gas-fueled, combined-cycle electric
generating facility located 20 miles north of Las Vegas, Nevada

Standard & Poor's - Standard & Poor's Corporation

SunCor - SunCor Development Company, a subsidiary of the Company

Sundance Plant - 450-megawatt generating facility located approximately 55 miles southeast of
Phoenix, Arizona

Superfilnd -. Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act

Trading - energy-related activities entered into with the objective of generating profits on changes in
market prices

2005 Form 10-K - Pinnacle West/APS Annual Report on Form 10-K for die fiscal year ended
December 3 l, 2005

VIE - variable interest entity
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(unaudited)
(dollars andshares inthousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

$ 712,718
89,925

l 12,603
9,782

925,028

s 579,652
71,172
84,259
20,259

755,342

263,944
72,716

168,332
98,412
89,297
32,700
8,430

733,831

191,197

160,590
57,593

153,097
67,713
85,323
34,638
17,556

576,510

178.832

3,633
12,022
(5,815)

9,840

2,952
8,684

(3,846)

7.790

45,882
(4,959)

40,923

50,077
(3,544)

46,533

160,114
49,271

110,843

I40:089
54,988

85,101

s

1,311

112,154 s

(58,366)

26,735

OPERATING REVENUES
Regulated electricity segment
Marketing and trading segment
Real estate segment
Other revenues

Total

OPERATING EXPENSES
Regulated electricity segment fuel and purchased power
Marketing and trading segment fixed and purchased power
Operations and maintenance
Real estate segment operations
Depreciation and amortization
Taxes other than income taxes
Other expenses

Total

OPERATING INCOME

OTHER
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Other income (Note 14)
Other expense (Note 14)

Total

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest charges
Capitalized interest

Total

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Net of income tax expense (benefit) of S855 and $(37,673) (Note 17)

NET INCOME

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING .- BASIC

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING ... DILUTED

99,221

99,640

96,192

96,299

s 1.12
1.13

s 0.88
0.28
0.88
0.28

EARNINGS  P ER W EIGHTED - AVERAGE
COMMON S HARE  OUTS TANDING

Income from continuing operations  - bas ic
Net income -- bas ic
Income from continuing operations  -- d ilu ted
Net incom e - diluted

DIVIDENDS  DECLARED P ER S HARE s S

Sec Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(unaudited)
(dollarsland shares in thousands, except per share amounts)

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

s 1,178,844
174,927
220,457
21,006

1,595,234

$ 995,682
160,429
154,195

30,394

1,340,700

421,339
146,891
346,759
169,742
176,918
68,273
16,952

1,346,874

248,360

239,013
128,402
308,181
123,047
176,267
69,203
25,930

1,070,043
270,657

7,434
17,489

(10,356)

14,567

5,555
9,487

(8,232)

6,810

93,408
(8,983)
84,425

96,042
(6,833)

89,209

178,502
56,064

122,438

188,258
73,558

114,700 \

s

2,171

124,609 s
(63,517)
51,183

OPERATING REVENUES
Regulated electricity segment
Marketing and trading segment
Real estate segment
Other revenues

Total
OPERATING EXPENSES

Regulated electricity segment fuel and purchased power
Marketing and trading segment fuel and purchased power
Operations and maintenance
Real estate segment operations
Depreciation arid amortization
Taxes other than income taxes
Other expenses

Total
OPERATING INCOME
OTHER

Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Other income (Note 14)
Other expense (Note 14)

Total
INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest charges
Capitalized interest

Total
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAXES
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONHNUED OPERATIONS

Net of income tax expense (benefit) of$l,4l2 and $(40,992) (Note la)

NET INCOME

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING -. BASIC

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING - DILUTED

99,168 94,089

99,562 94,189

EARN INGS PER WEIGHTED .- AVERAGE
COMMON SHARE OU TSTAN DING

Income from continuing operations _ basic
Net income - basic
Income from continuing operations- diluted
Net income _ diluted

DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE

s s

s

1.23
1.26
1.23
1.25
1.00 S

1.22
0.54
1.22
0.54
0.95

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

June 30,
2006

December 3 I ,
2005

AS S ETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Customer and other receivables
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Materials and supplies (at average cost)
Fossil fuel (at average cost)
Assets from risk management and trading

activities (Note 10)
Assets held for sale (Note 17)
Other current assets

s 15,608
510,086

(4,868)
112,891
25,210

154,003
502,681

(4,979)
109,736
23,658

Total current assets

473,551
22,568
78,607

1,233,653

827,779
202,645

75,869

1,891,392

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS
Real estate investments - net
Assets from long-term risk management and

trading activities (Note 10)
Decommissioning trust accounts (Note 18)
Other assets

Total investments and other assets

453,947 390,702

321,131
306,981
118,034

1,200,093

597,831
293,943
1 11,931

1,394,407

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant in service and held for future use
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total
Construction work in progress
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
Nuclear fuel, net of accumulated amortization

Net property, plant and equipment

10,974,195
3,725,592

7,248,603
337,949
101,293
57,394

7,745,239

10,727,695
3,622,884

7,104,811
327,172
90,916
54,184

7,577,083

DEFERRED DEBITS
Deferred foe] and purchased power regulatory asset (Note 5)
Other regulatory assets
Other deferred debits

Total deferred debits

174,666
176,018
120,030

470,714

172,756
151,123
135,884

459,763

TO TAL AS S ETS s 10,649,699 s 11,322,645

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONDENSEDCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

June 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

LIABILITIES AND COMMON STOCK EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Accrued interest
Short-term borrowings
Current maturities of long-term debt
Customer deposits
Deferred income taxes
Liabilities from risk management and trading

activities (Note 10)
Other current liabilities (Note 10)

Total current liabilities

$ 293,386
336,338
26,455

174,019
85,601
66,952
24,845

$ 377,107
289,235
31,774
15,673

384,947
60,509
94,710

399,368
153,245

1,560,209

720,693
297,425

2,272,073

LONG-TERM DEBT LESS CURRENT MATURITIES 2,815,665 2,608,455

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER
Deferred income taxes
Regulatory liabilities
Liability for asset retirements
Pension liability
Liabilities from long-term risk management

and trading activities (Note l0)
Unamortized gain -. sale of utility plant
Other

1,200,030
570,697
277,592
284,060

1,225,253
592,494
269,011
264,476

Total deferred credits and other

243,886
43,469

369,162

2,988,896

256,413
45,757

363,749

3,017,153

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 5, 12, 13
and 15)

2,067,377
(1,245)

2,079,774
(895)

2,078,879 2,066,132

COMMON STOCK EQUITY
Common stock, no par value
Treasury stock

Total common stock
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (Note l l):

Minimum pension liability adjustment
Derivative instruments

Total accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings

Total common stock equity

(97,277)
84,233

(13,044)
1,219,094
3,284,929

(97,277)
262,397
165,120

1,193,712
3,424,964

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND COMMON STOCK EQUITY $ 10,649,699 $ 11,322,645

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PINNA CLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

s 124,609 s 51,183

l8B,863
(94,565)
92,656
(7,434)
16,481
I 1,730

91,057
185,613
(33,785)

(5,555)
(36,209)
(17,436)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Silvcrhawk impairment loss
Depreciation and amortization including nuclear fuel
Deferred Ml and purchased power
Deferred fuel and purchased power amortization
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Deferred income taxes
Change in mark-to-market valuations

Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Customer and other receivables
Materials, supplies and fossil fuel
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Other current liabilities

Proceeds from the sale of real estate assets
Real estate investments
Change in risk management and trading - assets
Change in risk management and trading _ liabilities
Change in collateral
Change in other long-tenn assets
Change in other long-team liabilities
Net cash flow provided by operating activities

(764)
S80

3,806
(91,543)
50,074
5,754

15,482
(61,758)
64,893

(132,448)
(155,354)

4,532
20,63 I

56,225

344
(15,773)
(27,571)

(107,299)
70,268
16,726
41,259
(39,968)
16,360
5,603

91,969
6,016

41,344

334,146

(363,795)
(8,983)

(302,880)
(6,833)

(185,046)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures
Capitalized interest
Purchase of Sundance
Proceeds from the sale of Silvahawk
Purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sale of investment securities
Proceeds firm nuclear decommissioning Must sales
Investment in nuclear decommissioning mist
Other
Net cash How used for investing activities

207,620
(280,527)
280,527
114,875

(125,246)
1,618

(173,911)

(l,579,906)
1 ,431 ,348

82,764
(90,8 x4>

2,724
(648,643)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of long-Lenn debt
Short-term borrowings and payments - net
Dividends paid on common stock
Common stock equity issuance
Otdmer
Net cash flow prow'ded by (used for) financing activities

255,984
(353,549)
158,336
(99,227)

8,910
8,837

(20,709)

664,003
(430,673)

16,253
(90,364)
271,069
21,246

451,534

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (138,395)

154,003

l37,037

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 163,366

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD s 15,608 s 300,403
.--.A

Supplcmcntd disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for:

Income taxes, net of refunds
Interest, net of amounts capitalized

s
s

251
87,290

s
s

7,733
87,617

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements,
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 . Consolidation and Nature of Operations

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pinnacle
West and our wholly-owned subsidiaries: APS, Pinnacle West Energy, APS Energy Services,
SunCor and El Dorado. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions between the
consolidated companies have been eliminated. Our accounting records are maintained in accordance
with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. We have reclassified certain prior year amounts to conform to the current year
presentation.

2. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments which we
believe are necessary for the fair presentation of our financial position, results of operations and cash
flows for the periods presented. We suggest that these condensed consolidated financial statements
and notes to condensed consolidated financial statements be read along with the consolidated
financial statements and notes to consolidated financial statements included in our 2005 Form 10-K.

3. Quarterly Fluctuations

Weather conditions cause significant seasonal fluctuations in our revenues. In addition, real
estate and trading and wholesale marketing activities can have significant impacts on our results for
interim periods. For these reasons, results for interim periods do not necessarily represent results to
be expected for the year.

4. Changes in Liquidity

In January 2006, Pinnacle West infused into APS $2 IO million of the proceeds from the sale
of Silverhawk. See "Equity Infusions" in Note 5 for more information.

On February 28, 2006, Pinnacle West entered into an Uncommitted Master Shelf Agreement
with Prudential Investment Management, Inc. ("Prudential") and certain of its affiliates. The
agreement provides the terms under which Pinnacle West may offer up to $200 million of its senior
notes for purchase by Prudential affiliates at any time prior to December 3 l , 2007. The maturity of
notes issued under the agreement cannot exceed five years. Pursuant to the agreement, on
February 28, 2006, Pinnacle West issued and sold to Prudential affiliates $l75 million of its 5.91%
Senior Notes, Series A, due February 28, 2011 (the "Series A Notes"),

On April 3, 2006, Pinnacle West repaid $300 million of its 6.40% Senior Notes due April
2006. Pinnacle West used the proceeds of the Series A Notes, cash on hand and commercial paper
proceeds to repay these notes.

On August 3, 2006, APS issued $400 million of debt as follows: $250 million omits 6.25%
Notes due 2016 and $150 million of its 6.875% Notes due 2036. A portion of the proceeds will be
used to pay at maturity approximately $84 million ofAPS' 6.75% Senior Notes due November 15,
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2006, to fund its construction program and for other general corporate purposes. A portion of the
proceeds may also be used to pay any liability determined to be payable as a result of the review by
the Internal Revenue Service of a tax refund the Company received in 2002.

The following table shows principal payments due on Pinnacle West's and APS' total longs
term debt and capitalized lease requirements (dollars in millions) as of June 30, 2006:

Year .

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

Thereafter

Total

S

s

Pinnacle West

s 86
2

130
27

227
2,438

2,910 S

APS

85
I

1
1

224
2,261

2,573

5. Regulatory Matters

APS General Rate Case

On January 3 I, 2006, APS filed with the ACC updated financial schedules, testimony and
other data in the general rate case that APS originally filed on November 4, 2005. As requested by
the ACC staff, the updated information uses the twelve months ended September 30, 2005 as the test
period instead of the test year ended December 3 l, 2004 used in APS' original filing. As a result of
the updated filing, APS is requesting a 2l.3%, or $453.9 million, increase in its annual retail
electricity revenues effective no later than December 3 l, 2006. The original tiling requested a
l9.9%, or $409.1 million, retail rate increase.

The updated requested rate increase is designed to recover the following (dollars in millions):

Upda te d Filing
(January 3 I , 2006)

Annua l
Revenue
Increase

Percentage
Increase

Orig ina l F iling
(Nove mbe r 4, 2005)
Annua l

Revenue
Increase

Percentage
Increase

Increased fuel and purchased power
Capital structure update
Rate base update, including acquisition of
Sundance Plant

Pension funding
Other items

$ 299.0
98.3

14.0%
4.6%

s 246.8
96.8

12.0%
4.7%

46.2
41.3

(30.9)

2.2%
1.9%

(l .4)%

42.5
41.2

(18.2)

2.1%
2.0%

(0.9)%

Total increase $ 453.9 21.3% $ 409.1 19.9%

The request is based on (a) a rate base of $4.4 billion as of September 30, 2005, (b) a base
rate for fuel and purchased power costs of $0.031904 per kilowatt-hour based on estimated 2006

to



PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

prices, and (c) a proposed capital structure of 45% long-term debt and 55% common stock equity,
with a weighted-average cost of capital of 8.73% (5.4l% for long-tenu debt and 11.50% for common
stock equity). The requested increase in annual retail electricity revenues from the original filing is
based solely on increased fuel and purchased power costs, slightly offset by other items (see die
above Chan). If the ACC approves the requested base rate increase for fuel and purchased power
costs (see clause (b) of this paragraph), subsequent PSA rate adjustments and/or PSA surcharges
would be reduced because more of such costs would be recovered in base rates.

The updated request does not include the PSA annual adjustor rate increase of approximately
5% that took effect February 1, 2006, the PSA surcharge increase of approximately 0.7% that took
effect May 1, 2006, or APS' pending application for a 1.9% PSA surcharge rate increase. See
"Power Supply Adjustor" below. The interim rate increase described immediately below would, if it
becomes permanent, accelerate the recovery of a portion of the fuel and purchased power component
of the general rate case request.

Interim Rate Increase

On January 6, 2006, APS filed with the ACC an application requesting an emergency interim
rate increase of $299 million, or approximately 14%, to be effective April 1, 2006. APS later
reduced this request to $232 million, or approximately 1 l%, due to a decline in expected 2006
natural gas and wholesale power prices. The purpose of the emergency interim rate increase was
solely to address APS' under-collection of higher annual fuel and purchased power costs. On May 2,
2006, the ACC approved an order in this matter that, among other things:

authorized an interim PSA adjustor, effective May 1, 2006, that resulted in an interim
retail rate increase of approximately 8.3% designed to recover approximately
$138 million of fuel and purchased power costs incurred in 2006 (this interim
adjustor, combined with the $15 million PSA surcharge approved by the ACC (see
"Surcharge for Certain 2005 PSA Deferrals" below), resulted in a rate increase of
approximately 9.0% designed to recover approximately $149 million of iiuel and
purchased power costs during 2006),

provides that amounts collected through the interim PSA adjustor "remain subject to
a prudence review at the appropriate time" and that "all unplanned Palo Verde outage
costs for 2006 should undergo a prudence audit by [the ACC] Staff" (see "PSA
Deferrals Related to Unplanned Palo Verde Outages" below);

encoura ges  pa rties  to APS ' genera l ra te  ca s e  to "propos e modifica tions  to the  PSA
tha t will a ddres s  on a  perma nent ba s is , the  is s ues  with timing of recovery when
deferra ls  a re  la rge  a nd growing",

affirmed APS' ability to defer fuel and purchased power costs above the prior annual
cap of $776.2 million until the ACC decides the general rate case, and

encourages APS to diversity its resources "through large scale, sustained energy
efficiency programs, [using] low cost renewable energy resources as a hedge against
high fossil fuel costs."

a
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As noted above, the interim PSA adjustor would, if it becomes permanent, accelerate the recovery of
a portion of the fuel and purchased power component of APS' general rate case and is not an
additional increase.

Power Supply Adjustor

PSA Provisions

The PSA approved by the ACC in April 2005 as part of APS' 2003 rate case provides for
adjustment of retail rates to reflect variations in retail fuel and purchased power costs. On
January 25, 2006, the ACC modified the PSA in certain respects. The PSA, as modified, is subject to
specified parameters and procedures, including the following:

APS will record deferrals for recovery or refund to the extent actual retail pixel and
purchased power costs vary from the base fuel amount (currently $0.020743 per
kph) ;

the deferrals are subject to a 90/10 sharing arrangement in which APS must absorb
10% of the retail fuel and purchased power costs above the base fuel amount and may
retain 10% of the benefit from the retail fuel and purchased power costs that are
below the base fuel amount,

amounts to be recovered or refunded through the PSA adjustor are limited to a) a
cumulative plus or minus $0.004 per kph from the base fuel amount over the life of
the PSA and b) a maximum plus or minus $0.004 change in the adjustor rate in any
one year,

the recoverable amount of annual retail fuel and purchased power costs through
current base rates and the PSA was originally capped at $776.2 million, however, the
ACC has removed the cap pending the ACC's final ruling on APS' pending request
in the general rate case to have the cap eliminated or substantially raised,

the PSA will remain in effect for a minimum five-year period, but the ACC may
eliminate the PSA at any time, if appropriate, in theevent APS files a rate case before
the expiration of the five-year period (which APS did by filing the general rate case
noted above) or ifAPS does not comply with the terms of the PSA, and

APS is prohibited from requesting PSA surcharges until after the PSA annual
adjustor rate has been set each year. The amount available for potential PSA
surcharges will be limited to the amount of accumulated deferrals through the prior
year-end, which are not expected to be recovered through the annual adjustor or any
PSA surcharges previously approved by the ACC.

2006 PSA Annual Adj Astor The effective date of the PSA's annual adjustor is February 1,
2006 and the adjustor rate was set at the maximum $0.004 per kilowatt-hour effective February 1,
2006. The change in the-adjustor rate represents a retail rate increase of approximately 5% designed
to recover $1 10 million of deferred file] and purchased power costs over the twelve-month period
beginning February 1, 2006.

1 2



PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Surcharge for Certain 2005 PSA Deferrals On April 12, 2006, the ACC approved APS '
request to recover $15 million of 2005 PSA deferrals over a twelve-month period beginning
May 2, 2006, representing a temporary rate increase of approximately 0.7%. Approximately $45
million of 2005 PSA deferrals remain subject to a pending application (see "PSA Deferrals Related
to Unplanned Palo Verde Outages" below), the balance of the 2005 PSA deferrals is being recovered
under the 2006 PSA annual adjustor described in the preceding paragraph.

PSA Deferrals Related to Unplanned Palo Verde Outages On February 2, 2006, APS
filed with the ACC an application to recover approximately $45 million over a twelve-month period,
representing a temporary rate increase of approximately l.9%, proposed to begin no later than die
ACC's completion of its inquiry regarding the unplanned 2005 Palo Verde outages.

As noted under "Interim Rate Increase" above, the ACC has directed the ACC staff to
conduct a "prudence audit" on unplanned 2006 Palo Verde outage costs. PSA deferrals related to
these 2006 outages are estimated to be about $70 million.

Proposed Modifications to PSA (Requested In General Rate Case)

In its pending general rate case, APS has requested the following modifications to the PSA:

The cumulative plus or minus $0.004 per kph limit from the base fuel amount over
the life of the PSA would be eliminated, while the maximum plus or minus $0.004
limit to changes in the adjustor rate in any one year would remain in effect,

The $776.2 million annual limit on the retail fuel and purchased power costs under
APS' current base rates and the PSA would be removed or increased (although APS
may defer Mel and purchased power costs above $776.2 million per year pending the
ACC's final ruling on APS' pending request to have the cap eliminated or
substantially raised),

The current provision that APS is required to file a surcharge application with the
ACC after accumulated pretax PSA deferrals equal $50 million and before they equal
$100 million would be eliminated, thereby giving APS flexibility in determining
when a surcharge filing should be made,

The costs of renewable energy and capacity costs attributable to purchased power
obtained through competitive procurement would be excluded from theexisting
90/10 sharing arrangement under which APS absorbs 10% of the retail fuel and
purchased power costs above the base fuel amount and retains 10% of the benefit
from retail fuel and purchased power costs that are below the base fuel amount, and

10% of any realized gains or losses resulting from APS' hedges of retail fuel and
purchased power costs would be retained or absorbed by APS before being subject to
the 90/10 sharing provision under the PSA.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Equity Infus ions

On November 8, 2005, the ACC approved Pinnacle West's request to infuse more than $450
million of equity into APS during 2005 or 2006. These infusions consist of about $250 million of the
proceeds of Pinnacle West's common equity issuance on May 2, 2005 and about $210 million of the
proceeds from the sale of Silverhawk in January 2006 (see Note 17). Pinnacle West has made these
equity inMsions into APS.

Federa l

P ric e  Mit ig a t io n  P la n

In July 2002, the FERC adopted a price mitigation plan that constrains the price of electricity
in the wholesale spot electricity market in the western United States. The FERC adopted a price cap
of $250 per MWh for the period subsequent to October 31 , 2002. On February 13, 2006, the FERC
increased this price cap to $400 per MWh for prospective sales. Salesat prices above the cap must
be _justified and are subject to potential refund.

FERC Order

On August l I, 2004, Pinnacle West, APS, Pinnacle West Energy, and APS Energy Services
(collectively, the "Pinnacle West Companies") submitted to the FERC an update to its three-year
market-based rate review pursuant to the FERC's order implementing a new generation market
power analysis. On December 20, 2004, the FERC issued an order approving the Pinnacle West
Companies' market-based rates for control areas other than those of APS, Public Service Company
of New Mexico ("PNM") and Tucson Electric Power Company ("TEP"). The FERC staff required
the Pinnacle West Companies to submit additional data with respect to these control areas, and the
Pinnacle West Companies did so.

On April 17, 2006, the FERC issued an order revoking the Pinnacle West Companies'
market-based rate authority in the APS control area (the "FERC Order"). The FERC found that the
Pinnacle West Companies failed to provide the necessary information about the APS control area to
allow the FERC to make a determination about the FERC's generation market power "screens" in the
APS control area. The FERC found that the Pinnacle West Companies may charge market-based
rates in the PNM and TEP control areas.

As a result of the FERC Order, the Pinnacle West Companies must charge cost-based rates,
rather than market-based rates, in the APS control area for sales occurring after the date of the order,
April 17, 2006. The Pinnacle West Companies are required to refund any amounts collected that
exceed the default cost-based rates for all market rate sales within the APS control area from
February 27, 2005 to April 17, 2006.

The Pinnacle West Companies filed a rehearing request of the FERC Order on May 17, 2006
and requested a technical conference with the FERC staff to discuss the order. The rehearing request
is still pending. The FERC granted the request to hold a technical conference so that FERC staff and
the Pinnacle West Companies may discuss how to implement the cost-based mitigation requirements
of the FERC Order. The technical conference was held on July 10, 2006, and the Pinnacle West
Companies submitted a supplemental compliance filing on July 3 l , 2006. Based upon an analysis of
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the FERC Order and prelim binary calculations of the refund obligations, at this time, neither Pinnacle

West nor APS believes that the FERC Order will have a material adverse effect on its financial

position, results of operations or cash flows .

6. Retirement Plans and Other Benefits

Pinnacle West sponsors a qualified defined benefit and account balance pension plan, a
nonqualified supplemental excess benefit retirement plan, and other postretirement benefit plans for
the employees of Pinnacle West and our subsidiaries. Pinnacle West uses a December 3 l
measurement date for its pension and odder postretirement benefit plans. The market-related value of
our plan assets is their fair value at the measurement date.

The following table provides details of the plans' benefit costs for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2006 and 2005. Also included is the portion of these costs charged to expense,
including administrative costs and excluding amounts billed to electric plant participants or
capitalized as overhead construction (dollars in millions):

Pension Benefits

Three Months Six Months
EndedJune 30, Ended June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005

Other Benefits

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005

$ 9 s ll s 24 $ 23 s 2 s 5 s 10 $ l l

17

(18)

21

(21)

46

(48)

44

(44)

4

(4)

9

(8)

17

(18)

17

(16)

1 2 2
I
4

s 13

(1)
I
4

s 15 s

(1)
l

12

34 s

(2)
1

10
32 s

1

3 $

2

9

4

$ 15

5

s 19

s 5 $ 6 s 14 s 13 s 1 $ 4 $ 6 s 8

Service cost-benefits earned
during the period

Interest cost on benefit
obligation

Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of:

Transition (asset) obligation
Prior service cost

Net actuarial loss

Net periodic benefit cost
Portion of cost charged to

expense
APS' share of costs charged to

expense $- 5 s 6 $ 1 3 s 12 s 1 s 3 s 6 s 7

Contributions

The contribution to our pension plan in 2006 is estimated to be approximately $50 million,
$29 million of which has been contributed through June 30, 2006. The contribution to our other
postretirement benefit plan in 2006 is estimated to be approximately $29 million. APS' share is
approximately 97% of both plans.

7. Business Segments

We have three principal business segments (determined by products, services and the
regulatory environment):
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our regulated electricity segment, which consists of traditional regulated retail and
wholesale electricity businesses (primarily electricity service to Native Load
customers) and related activities and includes electricity generation, transmission and
distribution,

our real estate segment, which consists of SunCor's real estate development and
investment activities, and .

our marketing and trading segment, which consists four competitive energy
business activities, including wholesale marketing and trading and APS Energy
Services' commodity-related energy services.

Financial data for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 and at June 30,
2006 and December 31, 2005 by business segment is provided as follows (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended
June 30:

2006 2005

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

Operating Revenues:

Regulated electricity
Real estate
Marketing and trading
Other

S 713
113
90
9

925

s 580
84
71
20

755

s s

Tota l $ $ $

1,179
220
175
ZN

1,595 $

996
154
161

30
1,341

Ne t Incom e  (Los s ):
Regula ted e lectricity
Rea l es ta te
Ma rke ting a nd tra ding(a )
Othe r

Tota l

$ 95
9
7
1

112

S 69
TO

(55)
1

27

S 82
32
10
1

125

s 83
20

(54)
2

51$ $ s $

(a) The three  a nd s ix months  ended J une 30, 2005 include a  los s  in dis continued
opera tions  re la ted to die  s a le  of S ilverha wk of $59 million a nd $65 million,
re s pective ly.

As  o f
J une 30, 2006

As of
December 31, 2005

$ $
Assets:

Regulated electricity
Real estate

. Marketing and trading

Other

Total $

9,663
564
391
32

10,650 s

9,732
483

1,070
38

11,323
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8. Stock-Based Compensation

Pinnacle West offers stock-based compensation plans for oi8cers and key employees of
Pinnacle West and our subsidiaries.

The 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan ("2002 Plan") allows Pinnacle West to grant
performance shares, stock ownership incentive awards and non-qualified and performance-
accelerated stock options to key employees. We have reserved 6 million shares of common stock for
issuance under the 2002 plan. No more than 1.8 million shares may be issued in relation to
performance share awards and stock ownership incentive awards. The plan also provides for the
granting of new non-qualified stock options at a price per share not less than the fair market value of
the common stock at the time of grant. The stock options vest over three years, unless certain
performance criteria are met, which can accelerate the vesting period. The terms of the options
cannot be longer than 10 years and the options cannot be repriced.

Generally, each recipient of performance shares is entitled to receive shares of common stock
at the end of a three-year period based upon Pinnacle West's earnings per share growth rate during
that three-year period compared to the earnings per share growth rate of all relevant companies in a
specified utilities index. The number of shares of common stock a recipient is entitled to receive is
determined by Pinnacle West's relative percentile ranking during the three-year period.

The 1994 Long-Term Incentive Plan ("l994 Plan") includes outstanding options but no new
options may be granted under the plan. Options vest one-third of the grant per year beginning one
year after the date the option is granted and expire ten years from the date of the grant. The 1994
Plan also provided for the granting of any combination of shares of restricted stock, stock
appreciation rights or dividend equivalents.

In the third quarter of 2002, we began applying the fair value method of accounting for stock-
based compensation, as provided for in SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock~Based
Compensation." In accordance with the transition requirements of SFAS No. 123, we applied the
fair value method prospectively, beginning with 2002 stock grants. In prior years, we recognized
stock compensation expense based on the intrinsic value method allowed in APB No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees."

Elective January 1, 2006, we prospectively adopted SFAS No. l23(R), "Share-Based
Payment." Because the fair value recognition provisions of both SFAS No. 123 and SFAS
No. 123(R) are materially consistent with respect to our stock-based compensation plans, the
adoption of SFAS No. l 23(R) did not have a material impact on our financial statements.

The compensation cost that has been charged against income for share-based compensation
plans was $1 .3 million and $4.1 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006,
respectively compared to $1 .6 million and $2.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30,
2005, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized in the condensed consolidated income
statement for share-based compensation arrangements was $0.5 million and $1 .5 million for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, compared to $0.6 million and $0.9 million for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2005, respectively.
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The following table is a summary of option activity under our equity incentive plans as of
June 30, 2006 and changes doling the six months ending on that date:

Shares
(in thousands)

Weighted-
Avera ge  Exercis e

P rice

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual Term

(Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

(dollars in
thousands)

1,696

(28)
(21)

$ 39.65
33.00

43.92

Options

Outstanding at
January 1, 2006

Exercised
Forfeited or expired

Outstanding at
June 30, 2006

Exercisable at
1,647

1,641

39.70 4.6 s 3,411

June 30, 2006 39.71 4.6 3,400

There were no options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005. The
intrinsic value of options exercised during the three months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $0.2
million and $0.6 million, respectively. The intrinsic value of options exercised during the six months
ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $0.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

The followingtable is a summary of the status of stock compensation awards, other than
options, as of June 30, 2006 and changes during the six months ending on that date:

Nonvested shares

Nonvested at January 1, 2006
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

Nonvested at June 30, 2006

Shares
(in thous a nds )

528
274

(13)
(224)

565

$

Weighted-Avera ge  Gra nt-Da te
Fa ir Va lue

38.23
41 .50
44. 13
36. 10

40.52

As of June 30, 2006, there was $8.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related
to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the plan. That cost is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years. No shares vested during the three
months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005. The total fair value of shares vested during the six months
ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $0.5 million and $2.9 million, respectively.

Cash received from options exercised under our share-based payment arrangements was $0.9
million and $2.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Cash
received from options exercised under our share-based payment arrangements was $0.9 million and
$6.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The actual tax benefit
realized for the tax deductions from option exercises of the share-based payment arrangements was
immaterial for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005.
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Pinnacle West has a current policy of issuing new shares to satisfy share requirements for
stock compensation plans and does not expect to repurchase any shares during 2006.

9. Variablelnterest Entities

In 1986, APS entered into agreements with three separate VLE lessons in order to sell and
lease back interests in Palo Verde Unit 2. The leases are accounted for as operating leases in
accordance with GAAP. We are not the primary beneficiary of the Palo Verde VIEs and,
accordingly, do not consolidate them.

APS is exposed to losses under the Palo Verde sale leaseback agreements upon the
occurrence of certain events that APS does not consider to be reasonably likely to occur. Under
certain circumstances (for example, the NRC issuing specified violation orders with respect to Palo
Verde or the occurrence of specified nuclear events), APS would be required to assume the debt
associated with the transactions, make specified payments to the equity participants, and take title to
the leased Unit 2 interests, which, if appropriate, may be required to be written down in value. If
such an event had occurred as of lune 30, 2006, APS would have been required to assume
approximately $228 million of debt and pay the equity participants approximately $182 million.

10. Derivative and Energy Trading Accounting

We use derivative instruments (primarily forward purchases and sales, swaps, options and
futures) to manage our exposure to the commodity price dskinherent in the purchase and sale of
fuel, electricity and emission allowances and credits, as well as interest rate risk associated with long-
term debt. As of June 30, 2006, we hedged exposures to the price variability of the power and gas
commodities for a maximum of 3.25 years. The changes in market value of such contracts have a
high correlation to price changes in the hedged transactions. In addition, subject to specified risk
parameters monitored by the ERMC, we engage in marketing arid trading activities intended to profit
from market price movements.

Cash Flow Hedges

The changes in the fair value of our hedged positions included in the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Income, after consideration of amounts deferred under the PSA, for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 are comprised of the following (dollars in
thousands);
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Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

$ (2,975) $ 453 $ (3,154) $ 7,777

3 (119) (14) 739

Gains (losses) on the ineffective
portion of derivatives
qualifying for hedge
accounting

Gains (losses) from the change
in options' time value
excluded from measurement
of effectiveness

Gains from the discontinuance
of cash flow hedges 434 385

During the next twelve months ending June 30, 2007, we estimate that a net gain of $47
million before income taxes will be reclassified from accumulated OCI as an offset to the effect of
market price changes for the related hedged transactions, To the extent the amounts are eligible for
inclusion in the PSA, the amounts will be recorded as either a regulatory asset or liability and have
no effect on earnings (see Note 5).

Our assets and liabilities from risk management and trading activities are presented in two
categories, consistent with our business segments.

The following table summarizes our assets and liabilities from risk management and trading
activities at June 30, 2006 and December 3 l, 2005 (dollars in thousands):

June 30, 2006

Current
Assets

Investments
and Other

Assets
Current

Liabilities

Deferred
Credits and

Odder
Net As s e t
(Liability)

$ 330,793 $ 192,384 $ (329,666) $ (161,754) $ 31,757

15,632 (1,114) 14,518

126,604 128,461 (55,085) (81,018) 1 18,962

Regulated electricity :
Mark-to-market
Margin account

and options
Marketing

and trading:
Mark-to-market
Options and

emission
allowances

Total s

522
473,551 $

286
321,131 $

(14,617)
(399,368) s (243,886) $

(13,809)
151,428
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December 3 ] , 2005

Current
Assets

Inves tments
a nd Other

Assets
Current

Lia b ilitie s

Deferred
Credits and

Other
Net Asset
(Lia bility)

$ 516,399 $ 228,873 s (335,801) $ (74,787) $ 334,684

1,814 (124,165) (122,351)

307,883 291,122 (236,922) (181,417) 180,666

Regulated electricity:
Mark-to-market
Margin account

and options
Marketing

and trading:
Mark-to-market
Options and

emission
allowances

Total s

1,683
827,779 S

77,836
597,831. s

(23,805)

(720,693)

(209)

s (256,413) s

55,505

448,504

We maintain a margin account with a broker to support our risk management and trading
activities. The margin account was an asset of $13 million at June 30, 2006 and a liability of$l23
million at December 31, 2005 and is included in the margin account in the table above. Cash is
deposited with the broker in this account at the time futures or options contracts are initiated. The
change in market value of these contracts (reflected in mark-to-market) requires adjustment of the
margin account balance.

Cash or other assets may be required to serve as collateral against our open positions on
certain energy-related contracts. Collateral provided to counterparties was $13 million at June 30,
2006 and $6 million at December 3 l, 2005, and is included in other current assets on the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Collateral provided to us by counterparties was $67 million at June 30,
2006 and $216 million at December 3 l , 2005, and is included in odder current liabilities on the
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Credit Risk

We are exposed to losses in the event of nonperformance or nonpayment by counterparties.
We have risk management and trading contracts with many counterparties. Our risk management
process assesses and monitors the financial exposure of all counterparties. Despite the fact that the
great majority of trading counterparties' securities are rated as investment grade by the credit rating
agencies, there is still a possibility that one or more of these companies could default, resulting in a
material impact on consolidated earnings for a given period. Counterparties in the portfolio consist
principally of financial institutions, major energy companies, municipalities and local distribution
companies. We maintain credit policies that we believe minimize overall credit risk to within
acceptable limits. Determination of the credit quality four counterparties is based upon a number
of factors, including credit ratings and our evaluation of their financial condition. To manage credit
risk, we employ collateral requirements, standardized agreements that allow for the netting of
positive and negative exposures associated with a single counterparty and credit default swaps.
Valuation adjustments are established representing our estimated credit losses on our overall
exposure to counterparties.
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11. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Components of comprehensive income (loss) for the three and six months ended June 30,
2006 and 2005 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months
Endedlune 305

2006 2005 2006 2005

$ 112,154 s 26,735 $ 124,609 s 51,183

(69,124) (24,220) (274,107) 135,424

(676) (9,769) (18,206) (15,688)

Net income
OCI (loss):

Net unrealized gains (losses) on
derivative instruments (a)

Reclassification of realized gain ro
income (b)

Income tax benefit (expense) related
to items of OCI 27,257 13,334 114,149 (46,972)

Total OCI (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss)

(42,543)
$ 69,611

(20,655)
s 6,080

(178,164)
$ (53,555)

72,764
s 123,947

<a) These amounts primarily include unrealized gains and losses on contracts used to hedge
our forecasted electricity and natural gas requirements to serve Native Load, These
changes are primarily due to changes in forward natural gas prices and wholesale
electricity prices.

(b) These amounts primarily include the reclassification of unrealized gains and losses to
realized for contracted commodities delivered during the period.

Commitments and Contingencies

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station

Spent Nuclear Fuel and Waste Disposal

12.

Nuclear power plant operators are required to enter into spent fuel disposal contracts with the
DOE, and the DOE is required to accept and dispose of all spent nuclear fuel and other high-level
radioactive wastes generated by domestic power reactors. AlthOugh the Nuclear Waste Policy Act
required the DOE to develop a permanent repository for the storage and disposal of spent nuclear
fuel by 1998, the DOE has announced that the repository cannot be completed before 2010 and it
does not intend to begin accepting spent nuclear fuel prior to that date. In November 1997, the
United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit (D.C. Circuit) issued a decision
preventing the DOE from excusing its own delay, but refused to order the DOE to begin accepting
spent nuclear fuel. Based on this decision and the DOE's delay, a number of utilities, including APS
(on behalf of itself and the other Palo Verde owners), filed damages actions against the DOE in the
Court of Federal Claims.
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APS currently estimates it will incur $147 million (in 2005 dollars) over the life of Palo .
Verde for its share of the costs related to the on-site interim storage of spent nuclear fuel. At
June 30, 2006, APS had a regulatory asset of $2 million that represents amounts spent for on-site
interim spent fuel storage net of amounts recovered in rates per the ACC rate order that was effective
April l, 2005.

California Energy Market Issues and Refunds in the Pacific Northwest

FERC

In July 200 I , the FERC ordered an expedited fact-finding hearing to calculate refunds for
spot market transactions in California during a specified time frame. APS was a seller and a
purchaser in the California markets at issue, arid to the extent that refunds are ordered, APS should be
a recipient as well as a payer of such amounts. The FERC is still considering the evidence and
refund amounts have not yet been finalized. However, on September 6, 2005, the Ninth Circuit
issued a decision, concluding that the FERC may not order refunds from entities that are not within
the FERC's jurisdiction. Because a number of the entities owing re ds under the FERC's .
calculations are not within the FERC's jurisdiction, this order may affect the level of recovery of
refunds due in this proceeding. In addition, on August 8, 2005, the FERC issued an order allowing
sellers in the California markets to demonstrate that its refund methodology results in an overall
revenue shortfall for their transactions in the relevant markets over a specified time frame. More
tan twenty sellers made such cost recovery filings on September 14, 2005. On January 26, 2006,

the FERC conditionally accepted thirteen of these filings, reducing the refund liability for these
sellers. Correspondingly, this will reduce the recovery of total refunds in the California markets. On
August 2, 2006, the Ninth Circuit issued a decision on the appropriate temporal scope arid the type of
transactions properly subject to the refiind orders. In the decision, the Court preserved the scope of
the FERC's existing refund proceedings, but also expanded it potentially to include additional
transactions, remanding the orders to the FERC for further proceedings. Petitions for rehearing on
this order are due 90 days from the date of issuance. We currently believe the refund claims at FERC
will have no material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations, cash flow or
liquidity.

On March 19, 2002, the State of California filed a complaint with the FERC alleging that
wholesale sellers of power and energy, including the Company, failed to properly file rate
information at the FERC in connection with sales to California from 2000 to the present under
market-based rates. The complaint requests the FERC to require the wholesale sellers to refund any
rates that are "found to exceed just and reasonable levels." This complaint was dismissed by the
FERC and the State of California appealed the matter to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. In an
order issued September 9, 2004, the Ninth Circuit upheld the FERC's authority to permit market-
based rates, but rejected the FERC's claim that it was without authority to consider retroactive
refunds when a utility has not strictly adhered to the quarterly reporting requirements of the market-
based rate system. On September 9, 2004, the Ninth Circuit remanded the case to the FERC for
further proceedings. Several of the interveners in this appeal filed a petition for rehearing of this
decision on October 25, 2004. The petition for rehearing was denied on July 3 l, 2006. On August 4,
2006, the State of California tiled a motion to stay the issuance of the mandate (scheduled to be
issued on August 7, 2006), until the end of the period for seeldng rehearing in the California refund
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proceeding before  the  Ninth Circuit, dis cus s ed a bove . The  outcome of the  fiirther proceedings
ca nnot be  predicted a t this  time.

The FERC also ordered an evidentiary proceeding to discuss and evaluate possible refunds
for the Pacific Northwest. The FERC affirmed the ALJ's conclusion that the prices in the Pacific
Northwest were not unreasonable or unjust and refunds should not be ordered in this proceeding.
This decision has now been appealed to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. Although the FERC
ruling in the Pacific Northwest matter is being appealed and the FERC has not yet calculated the
specific refund amounts due in California, we do not expect that the resolution of these issues, as to
the amounts alleged in the proceedings, will have a material adverse impact on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

On March 26, 2003, the FERC made public a Final Report on Price Manipulation in Wester
Markets, prepared by its staff and covering spot markets in the West in 2000 and 2001. The report
stated that a significant number of entities who participated in the California markets during the
2000-2001 time period, including APS, may potentially have beer involved in arbitrage transactions
that allegedly violated certain provisions of the Independent System Operator tariff. After reviewing
the matter, along with the data supplied by APS, the FERC staff movedto dismiss the claims against
APS and to dismiss the proceeding. The motion to dismiss was granted Oby the FERC on January 22,
2004. Certain parties have sought rehearing of this order, and that request is pending.

FERC Order

See "FERC Order" in Note 5 for a discussion of an order issued by the FERC on April 17,
2006.

Natural Gas Supply

Pursuant to the terms of a comprehensive settlement entered into in 1996 with El Paso
Natural Gas Company, the rates charged for natural gas transportation were subject to a rate
moratorium through December 31, 2005 .

On July 9, 2003, the FERC issued an order that altered the capacity rights of parties to the
1996 settlement but maintained the cost responsibility provisions agreed to by parties to that
settlement. On December 28, 2004, the D.C. Court of Appeals upheld the FERC's authority to alter
the capacity rights of parties to the settlement. With respect to the FERC's authority to maintain the
cost responsibility provisions of the settlement, a party has sought appellate review and is seeking to
reallocate the cost responsibility associated with the changed contractual obligations in a way that
would be less favorable to APS and Pinnacle West Energy than under the FERC's July 9, 2003 order.
Should this party prevail on this point, APS arid Pinnacle West Energy's annual capacity Cost could
be increased by approximately $3 million per year alter income taxes for the period September 2003
through December 2005. This appeal had been stayed pending further consideration by the FERC _
On May 26, 2006, the FERC issued an Order on Remand affirming its earlier decision that there is no
basis for modifying the settlement rates during the remaining term of the settlement. Despite the
May 26 order, the party seeking appellate review is continuing to pursue an appeal of this issue.
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Consistent with its obligations under the 1996 settlement, El Paso filed a new rate case on
June 30, 2005, which proposed new rates, terms and conditions and services to become effective on
January 1, 2006. These rates are subject to refund pending the outcome of a hearing. The cost
impact of this rate case will not have a material adverse effect on APS' financial position, results of
operations, cash flows or liquidity.

Navajo Nation Litigation

In June 1999, the Navajo Nation served Salt River Project with a lawsuit filed in the United
States District Court for the District of Columbia (the "D.C. Lawsuit") naming Salt River Project,
several Peabody Coal Company entities (collectively, "PeabOdy"), Southern California Edison
Company and other defendants, and citing various claims in connection with the renegotiations of the
coal royalty and lease agreements under which Peabody mines coal for the Navajo Generating
Station and the Mohave Generating Station. APS is a 14% owner of the Navajo Generating Station,
which Salt River Project operates. The D.C. Lawsuit alleges, among other things, that the defendants
obtained a favorable coal royalty rate by improperly influencing the outcome of a federal
administrative process under which the royalty rate was to be adjusted. The suit seeks $600 million
in damages, treble damages, punitive damages of not less than $1 billion, and the ejection of
defendants "from all possessory interests and Navajo Tribal lands arising out of the [primary coal
lease]." In July 2001, the court dismissed all claims against Salt River Project.

In January 2005, Peabody served APS with a lawsuit filed in the Circuit Court for the City of
St. Louis naming APS and the other Navajo Generating Station participants and seeking, among
other things, a declaration that the participants "are obligated to reimburse Peabody for any royalty,
tax, or other obligation arising out of the D.C. Lawsuit." Based on APS' ownership interest in the
Navajo Generating Station, APS could be liable for up to 14% of any such obligation. APS believes
Peabody's claims are without merit and intends to contest those claims. Because the litigation is in
preliminary stages, however, APS cannot currently predict the outcome of this matter.

S u p e rfu n d

Superfund establishes liability for the cleanup of hazardous substances found contaminating
the soil, water or air. Those who generated, transported or disposed of hazardous substances at a
contaminated site are among those who are PRPs. PRPs may be strictly, and often jointly and
severally, liable for clean-up. On September 3, 2003, the EPA advised APS that the EPA considers
APS to be a PRP in the Motorola 52nd Street Superfund Site, Operable Unit 3 (OU3) in Phoenix,
Arizona. APS has facilities that are within this superfund site. APS and Pinnacle West have agreed
with the EPA to perform certain investigative activities of the APS facilities within OU3. Because
the investigation has not yet been completed and ultimate remediation requirements are not yet
finalized, nerdier APS nor Pinnacle West can currently estimate the expenditures which may be
required.

In c o m e  Ta xe s

As a result of a change in IRS guidance, we claimed a tax deduction related to an APS tax
accounting method change on the 2001 federal consolidated income tax return. The accelerated
deduction resulted in a $200 million reduction in the current income tax liability and a corresponding
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increase in the plant-related deferred tax liability. In 2002, we received an income tax refund of
approximately.$115 million related to our 2001 federal consolidated income tax return. The 200 l
federal consolidated income tax return is currently under examination by the IRS. As part Of dis
ongoing examination, the IRS is reviewing this accounting method change and the resultant
deduction. During 2004 arid again in 2005, the current income tax liability was increased, with a
corresponding decrease to plant-related deferred tax liability, to reflect the expected outcome of this
audit. We do not expect the ultimate outcome of this examination to have a material adverse impact
on our financial position or results of operations. We expect that it will have a negative impact on
cash flows.

Litigation

We are party to various other claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the ordinary
course of business, including but not limited to environmental matters related to the Clean Air Act,
Navajo Nation issues and EPA and ADEQ issues. In our opinion, the ultimate resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or liquidity.

13. Nuclear Insurance

The Palo Verde participants have insurance for public liability resulting from nuclear energy
hazards to the full limit of liability under federal law. This potential liability is covered by primary
liability insurance provided by commercial insurance canters in the amount of $300 million arid the
balance by an industry-wide retrospective assessment program. If losses at any nuclear power plant
covered by the programs exceed the accumulated funds, APS could be assessed retrospective
premium adjustments. The maximum assessment per reactor under the program for each nuclear
incident is approximately $101 million, subject to an annual limit of $15 million per incident, to be
periodically adjusted for inflation. Based on APS' interest in the three Palo Verde units, APS'
maximum potential assessment per incident for all three units is approximately $88 million, with an
annual payment limitation of approximately $13 million.

The Palo Verde participants maintain "all risk" (including nuclear hazards) insurance for
property damage to, and decontamination of, property at Palo Verde in the aggregate amount of
$2.75 billion, a substantial portion of which must first be applied to stabilization and
decontamination. APS has also secured insurance against portions of any increased cost of
generation or purchased power and business interruption resulting from a sudden and unforeseen
accidental outage of any of the three units. The property damage, decontamination, and replacement
power coverages are provided by Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL). APS is subj et to
retrospective assessments under all NEIL policies if NEIL's losses in any policy year exceed
accumulated funds. The maximum amount of retrospective assessments APS could incur under the
current NEIL policies totals $17.8 million. The insurance coverage discussed in this and the previous
paragraph is subject to certain policy conditions and exclusions.

14. Other Income and Other Expense

The following table provides detail of other income and other expense for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):
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Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005
Other income:

Asset sales
Interest income
SucCor joint venture earnings
Investment gains .- net (a)
Miscellaneous

Total other income

S 8,810
2,285

717

$ $ 9,171
7,190

883

s 383
5,191
2,342

S

210

12,022 $

142
3,872
2,370

923
1,377
8,684 s

245
17,489 $

1,571
9,487

s $

Other expens e:
Non-opera ting cos ts  (b)
Inves tment los ses  .- net (a )
Mis ce lla neous

Tota l other expens e s

(3,828)
(1,066)

(921)
(5,815) s

(3,058) s (7,547) s
(1,097)
(1,712)

S (10,356) $
(788)

(3,846)

(6,156)
(326)

(1,750)
(8,232)

(a) Includes joint venture and other non-operating income.

(b) As defined by theFERC, includes below-the-line non-operating utility costs
(primarily community relations and other costs excluded Boy utility rate recovery).

15. Guarantees

We have issued parental guarantees and letters of credit and obtained surety bonds on behalf
of APS Energy Services. Our credit support instruments enable APS Energy Services to offer
commodity energy and energy-related products. Non-performance or non-payment under the
original contract by APS Energy Services would require us to perform under the guarantee or surety
bond. No liability is currently recorded on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets related to
Pinnacle West's current outstanding guarantees on behalf of its subsidiary. Our guarantees have no
recourse or collateral provisions to allow us to recover amounts paid under the guarantees. At June
30, 2006, we had guarantees totaling $21 million and surety bonds totaling $24 million with a term of
approximately one year for APS Energy Services.

At June 30, 2006, Pinnacle West had approximately $4 million of letters of credit related to
workers' compensation expiring in 2007. We intend to provide from either existing or new facilities
for the extension, renewal or substitution of the letters of credit to the extent required.

APS has entered into various agreements that require letters of credit for financial assurance
purposes. At June 30, 2006, approximately $200 million of letters of credit were outstanding to
support existing pollution control bonds of approximately $200 million. The letters of credit are
available to fund the payment of principal and interest of such debt obligations and expire in 2010.
APS has also entered into approximately $93 million of letters of credit to support certain equity
lessons in the Palo Verde sale leaseback transactions (see Note 9 for further details on the Palo Verde
sale leaseback transactions). These letters of credit expire in 2010. Additionally, at June 30, 2006
APS had approximately $5 million of letters of credit related to counterparty collateral requirements
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expiring in 2006. APS intends to provide from either existing or new facilities for the extension,
renewal or substitution of the letters of credit to the extent required.

We enter into agreements dirt include indemnification provisions relating to liabilities arising
from or related to certain of our agreements. APS has agreed to indemnify the equity participants
and other parties in the Palo Verde sale leaseback transactions with respect to certain tax matters.
Generally, a maximum obligation is not explicitly stated in the indemnification provisions and,
therefore, the overall maximum amount of the obligation under such indemnification provisions
cannot be reasonably estimated. Based on historical experience and evaluation of the specific
indemnities, we do not believe that any material loss related to such indemnification provisions is
likely.

16. Earnings Per Share

The following table presents earnings per weighted average common share outstanding for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

$ 1.12 $ 0.88 $ 1.23 $ 1.22
Basic earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations

Earnings per share - basic

0.01

$ 1.13

(0.60)
$ 0.28

0.03 (0.68)
S 1.26 S 0.54

-

$ 1.11 $ 0.88 S 1 .2 3 $ 1.22
Diluted earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations

Earnings per share - diluted

0.02

s 1.13

(0.60)
$ 0.28

0.02

s 1.25 s

(0.68)
0.54

Dilutive stock options and performance shares increased average common shares outstanding
by approximately 419,000 shares and 107,000 shares for the three months ended June 30, 2006 and
2005, respectively, and by approximately 394,000 shares and 100,000 shares for the six months
ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Options  to purchas e 881,628 s ha res  for the three-month period ended J une 30, 2006 and
808,876 s ha res  for the  s ix-month period ended J une 30, 2006 were  outs ta nding but were  not included
in the computa tion of ea rnings  per s ha re beca us e the options ' exercis e  prices  were grea ter tha n the
a vera ge ma rket price  of the common s ha res . Options  to purcha s e s ha res  of common s tock tha t were
not included in the  computa tion of diluted ea rnings  per s ha re  for tha t s a me rea s on were 491,984
s ha res  for the three-month period ended J une 30, 2005 a nd 503,859 s ha res  for the s ix-month period
ended June 30, 2005.
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17. Discontinued Operations

Silverhawk (marketing and trading segment) - In June 2005, we entered into an agreement
to sell our 75% interest in the Silverhawk Power Station to NPC. The sale was completed on
January 10, 2006. As a result of this sale, we recorded a loss from discontinued operations of
approximately $56 million ($9l million pretax) in the second quarter of 2005. The marketing and
trading segment discontinued operations amounts in the chart below also include the revenues and
expenses related to the operations of Silverhawk.

SucCor (real estate segment) - In 2005 and 2006, SunCor sold commercial properties that
are required to be reported as discontinued operations on Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Income in accordance with SFAS No. 144.

The following table provides revenue and income (loss) before income taxes and after
income taxes classified as discontinued operations on Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in
millions):

Revenue :
Silverhawk
SunCor =- commercial operations

Total revenue $

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

s $ 15
3

18

2
2 s

S ix Months  Ended
J une  30,

2006 2005

s 1 s 43
3 7

4 S 50s

s $ $ 1

3

4

Income (loss) before income taxes:
Silverhawk (a)
SunCor - commercial operations

Total income (loss) before income taxes $

2
2 $

(97)
1

(96) S

s (107)
3

s (104)

s $ $ $
Income (loss) after income taxes:

Silverhawk
SucCor -- commercial operations

Total income (loss) after income taxes s

1
1 $

(59)
1

(58) $

1

2

3 $

(65)
1

(64)

<a) For the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, income (loss) before income taxes
includes an interest expense allocation, net of capitalized costs, of $3 million and $6
million respectively. The allocation was based on Pinnacle West's weighted-average
interest rate applied to the net property, plant and equipment.

18. Nuclear Decommissioning Trust

To fund the costs APS expects to incur to decommission Palo Verde, APS established
extemai decommissioning trusts in accordance with NRC regulations. APS invests the trust funds in
debt and domestic equity securities. APS applies the provisions of SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities," in accounting for investments in
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decommissioning trust funds, and classifies these investments as available for sale. As a result, we
record the decommissioning trust funds at their fair value on our Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Because of the ability of APS to recover decommissioning costs in rates and in accordance
with the regulatory treatment for decommissioning trust funds, APS has recorded the offsetting
amount of unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities in other regulatory liabilities/assets. The
following table summarizes the fair value of APS' nuclear decommissioning trust fund assets at
June 30, 2006 and December 3 l, 2005 (dollars in millions):

Fa ir Va lue

Tota l
Unre a lize d

Ga ins

To ta l
Unre a lize d

Los s es

June 30, 2006
Equity securities
Debt securities

$ $ 53
1

54

$

Tota l s

160
147

307 S s

2

2

S s 50
3

53

$
December 31, 2005

Equity securities
Debt securities

Total $

150
144

294 $ S
1

1

The costs of securities sold are determined On the basis of specific identification. The
following table sets forth approximate gains and losses and proceeds from the sale of securities by
the nuclear decommissioning trust funds (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended June 30,

2006 2005

Six Months Ended June 30,

2006 2005

$ 1
(1)

s s 1

(2)

$ 1

(1)
Realized gains
Realized losses
Proceeds from the sale of
securities 49 43 115 83

The fair value of debt securities, summarized by contractual maturities, at June 30, 2006 is as
follows (dollars in millions):

Less than one year
1 year - 5 years
5 years .. 10 years

Greater than 10 years

Total

Fair Value
June 30, 2006
$ 14

32
38
63

147$
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1 9 . New Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109." This guidance requires us to
recognize the tax benefits of an uncertain tax position if it is more likely than not that the benefit will
be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority. The Interpretation is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. We are currently evaluating this new guidance and believe it
will not have a material impact on our financial statements.
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(unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES
Regulated electricity
Marketing and trading

Total

s 714,727
4,123

718,850

s 581,757
7,000

588,757

OPERATING EXPENSES
Regulated electricity fuel and purchased power
Marketing and trading fuel and purchased power
Operations and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Income taxes
Other taxes

Total
OPERATING INCOME

265,735
1,490

164,373
87,969
46,650
32,666

598,883
119,967

201,871
3,349

138,314
76,808
41,772
31,322

493,436
95,321.

OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS)
Income taxes
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Other income (Note S-3)
Other expense (Note S-3)

Total

953
3,633

10,989
(4,558)
11,017

(1,549)
2,952
7,005

(2,876)
5,532

INTEREST DEDUCTIONS
Interest on long-term debt
Interest on short-term borrowings
Debt discount, premium and expense
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction

Total

34,890
2,985
1,025

(1,673)

37,227

35,612
2,055
1,188

(2,000)
36,855

NET 1NCOME 93,757 $ 63,998

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Notes to
Arizona Public Service Colnpany's Condensed Financial Statements.
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(unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005
ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES

Regulated electricity
Marketing and hading

Tota l

s 1,181,949
13,770

1,195,719

s 1,000,191
29,858

1,030,049

OPERATING EXPENSES
Regulated electricity fuel and purchasedpower
Marketing and trading fuel and purchased power
Operations and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Income taxes
Other taxes

Total
OPERATING INCOME

424,009
2,858

337,726
174,280
43,621
68,214

1,050,708
145,01 l

283,785
31,651

280,608
159,022
58,152
62,767

875,985
154,064

OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS)
Income taxes
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Other income (Note S-3)
Other expense (Note S-3)

Total

1,189
7,434

15,085
(7,528)
16,180

(2,386)
5,555

12,664
(6,234)
9_,599

INTEREST DEDUCTIONS
Interest on long-term debt
Interest on short-term borrowings
Debt discount, premium and expense
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction

Total

69,140
5,01 1
2,198

(3,394)
72,955

71 ,129
3,246
2, 192

(3,947)
72,620

NET INCOME $ 88,236 $ 91,043

See Notes to Pinnacle West's CondenSed Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Notes to
Arizona Public Service Company's Condensed Financial Statements.
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(unaudited)
(dollars 'm thousands)

June 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

AS S ETS

UTILITY PLANT
Electric plant in service and held for future use
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total
Construction work in progress
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
Nuclear fuel, net of accumulated amortization

Utility plant .- net

S 10,919,272
3,718,938
7,200,334

323,975
100,932
57,394

7,682,635

s 10,682,999
3,616,886
7,066,113

314,584
90,327
54,184

7,525,208

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS
Decommissioning Must accounts (Note 18)
Assets 'firm long-term risk management and trading

activities  (Note S-1)
Other assets

Total investments and other assets

306,98 l 293,943

195,3 19
64,654

566,954

234,372
64,128

592,443

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Customer and other receivables
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Materials and supplies (at average cost)
Fossil fuel (at average cost)
Assets firm risk management and trading activities (Note S-1)
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets

49,933
421,621

(3,568)
109,736
23,658

532,923

441,811
(3,438)

I 12,891
25,210

349,657
3,364

18,012
947,507

14,639
1,148,942

DEFERRED DEBITS
Deferred fuel and purchased power regulatory asset (Note 5)
Other regulatory assets
Unamortized debt issue costs
Other deferred debits

Total deferred debits

174,666
176,018
24,153
79,311

454,148

172,756
151,123
25,279
91,690

440,848

TOTAL ASSETS s 9,651,244 s 9,707,441

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Notes to
Arizona Public Service Company's Condensed Financial Statements.

Y
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CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

June 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

CAP ITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

CAPITALIZATION
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital (Note 5)
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Minimum pension liability adjustment
Derivative instruments

Common stock equity
Long-tenn debt less current maturities

Total capitalization

$ 178,162
2,063,098

863,911

$ 178,162
1,853,098

860,675

(86,132)
37,804

3,056,843
2,479,214
5,536,057

(86,132)
179,422

2,985,225
2,479,703
5,464,928

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Commercial paper
Current maturities of long-tenn debt
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Accrued interest
Customer deposits
Deferred income taxes
Liabilities from risk management and trading activities (Note S-l)
Other current liabilities (Note S-1)

Total current liabilities

117,558
84,829

186,510
396,069
25,657
58,493

336,372
90,428

1,295,916

85,620
215,384
360,737
25,003
55,474
64,210

480,138
227,398

1,513,964

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER
Deferred income taxes
Regulatory liabilities
Liability for asset retirements
Pension liability
Customer advances for construction
Unamortized gain - sale of utility plant
Liabilities 80m long-term risk management and trading

activities (Note S-l)
Other

Total deferred credits and other

1,212,106
570,697
277,592
251,116
63,704
43,469

1,215,403
592,494
269,011
233,342
60,287
45,757

167,987
232,600

2,819,271

83,774
228,481

2,728,549

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes  5, 12, 13, 15 and S-4)

TOTAL CAP ITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES $ 9,651,244 s 9,707,441

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Notes
to Arizona Public Service Company's Condensed Financial Statements.
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(unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

s 88,236 s 91,043

186,225
(94,565)
92,655
(7,434)
16,481
2,464

162,641
(33,785)

(5,555)
(1,926)

(12,191)

(13,257)
(4,707)
1,677

(26,765)
38,303

(162,310)
25,063

(120,505)
(5,045)
21,553

38,069

(12,223)
(10,854)

2,566
(61,798)
80,816
84,071

(20,592)
2,244

23,726
3 ,201

291,384

(313 ,479)
(3,394)

(133,026)
133,026
114,875

(125,246)

(301,098)
(3,947)

(185,046)
(769,166)
677,558
82,764

(90,814)
500,000

(3,1 13)

(92,862)

(1,626)

(328,870)

(1,690)
117,558
210,000
(85,000)

240,868

(49,933)
49,933

163,975
(264,975)

$ s

100,000
(42,500)

(43,500)

155,022
49,575

204,597

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cab provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization including nuclear fuel
Deferred fuel and purchased power
Deferred fuel and purchased power amortization
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Deferred income taxes
Change in mark-to-market valuations

Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Customer and other receivables
Materials, supplies and fossil fuel
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Collateral
Other current liabilities

Change in risk management and trading activities - liabilities
Change in other long-term sets
Change 'm other long-term liabilities

Net cash flow provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction
Purchase of Sundance Plant
Purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sale of investment securities
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust sales
Investment in nuclear decommissioning trust
Repayment of loan by Pinnacle West Energy
Other

Net cash How used for investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayment and reacquisition of long-term debt
Short-term borrowings, net
Equity infusion
Dividends paid on common stock

Net cash flow provided by (used for) financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Income taxes, net of refunds
Interest, net of amountscapitalized

s
s 70,103

$
$

(8,829)
73,656

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Notes to Arizona Public Service
Company's Condensed Financial Statements.
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Certain notes to APS' Condensed Financial Statements are combined with the Notes to
Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. Listed below are the Condensed
Consolidated Notes to Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the majority
of which also relate to APS' Condensed Financial Statements. In addition, listed below are the
Supplemental Notes which are required disclosures for APS and should be read in conjunction with
Pinnacle West's Condensed Consolidated Notes.

APS 9
S upplementa l

Footnote
Refe rence

Note S- 1
Note S-2

Condens ed
Cons olida te d

Footnote
Re fe re nce

Note  1
Note  2
Note  3
Note  4
Note  5
Note  6
Note  7
Note  8
Note  9

Note  10
Note  11
Note  12
Note  13
Note  14
Note  15
Note  16
Note  17
Note  18
Note  19

Note  S -3

Consolidation and Nature of Operations
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Quarterly Fluctuations
Changes in Liquidity
Regulatory Matters
Retirement Plans and Other Benefits
Business Segments
Stock-Based Compensation
Variable Interest Entities
Derivative and Energy Trading Accounting
Comprehensive Income
Commitments and Contingencies
Nuclear Insurance
Other Income and Other Expense
Guarantees
Earnings Per Share
Discontinued Operations
Nuclear Decommissioning Trust
New Accounting Standards
Related Party Transactions Note  S -4
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S-1. Derivative and Energy Trading Accounting

APS is exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the commodity price of electricity,
natural gas, coal and emissions allowances. As part of its overall risk management program, APS
uses various commodity instruments that qualify as derivatives to hedge purchases and sales of
electricity, fuels, and emission allowances and credits. As of June 30, 2006, APS hedged exposures
to these risks for a maximum of 3.25 years.

Cash Flow Hedges

The changes in the fair value of APS' hedged positions included in the APS Condensed
Statements of Income, after consideration of amounts deferred under the PSA, for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 were comprised of the following (dollars in thousands):

Six Months Ended
June 30,

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005

$ (2,824) $ 451 $ (3,260) $ 7,868

3 (119) (14) 739

Gains (losses) on the ineffective
portion of derivatives qualifying
for hedge accounting

Gains (losses) from the change in
options' time value excluded from
measurement of effectiveness

Gains from the discontinuance of
cash flow hedges 159 302

During the next twelve months ending June 30, 2007, APS estimates that a net gain of $15
million before income taxes will be reclassified from accumulated OCI as an offset to the effect of
market price changes for the related hedged transactions. To the extent the amounts are eligible for
inclusion in the PSA, the amounts will be recorded as either a regulatory asset or liability and have
no effect on earnings (see Note 5).

APS' assets and liabilities from risk management and trading activities are presented in two
categories, consistent with Pinnacle West's business segments.

The following table summarizes APS' assets and liabilities firm risk management and
trading activities at June 30, 2006 and December 3 l , 2005 (dollars in thousands):
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2006

Current
Assets

Investments
and Other

Assets
Current

Liabilities*

Deferred
Credits and

Other
Net Asset
(Liability)

5 330,793 $ 192,384 s (329,666) $ (161,754) $ 31,757

15,632 -FI (l,114) 14,518

Regulated Electricity :
Mark-to-market
Margin account and

options
Marketing and Trading:

Mark-to-market
Options

Total

3,232 2,935 (5,119)

$ 349,657 $ 195,319 S

(3,951)
(2,755)

(336,372) s (167,987) S

(2,903)
(2,755)

40,617

December 31, 2005

Current
Assets

Investments
and Other

Assets
Current

Liabilities

Deferred
Credits and

Other
Net Asset
(Liability)

$ 516,399 $ 228,873 $ (335,801) $ (74,787) S 334,684

1,814 (124,165) (122,351)

Regulated Electricity:
Mark-to-market
Margin account and

options
Marketing and Trading:

Mark-to-market
Options

Total

5,499 (20,172)

$

13,027
1,683

532,923 $ 234,372 $ (480,138)

(8,778)
(209)

$ (83,774) $

(10,424)
1,474

203,383

We maintain a margin account with a broker to support our risk management and trading
activities. The margin account was an asset of $13 .million at June 30, 2006 and a liability of $123
million at December 3 l, 2005 and is included in the margin account in the table above. Cash is
deposited with the broker in this account at the time futures or options contracts are initiated. The
change in market value of these contacts (reflected in mark-to-market) requires adjustment of die
margin account balance.

Cash or other assets may be required to serve as collateral against APS' open positions on
certain energy-related contracts. Collateral provided to counterparties was $4 million at June 30,
2006 and is included in other current assets on the Condensed Balance Sheets. No collateral was
provided at December 31, 2005. Collateral provided to us by counterparties was $16 million at June
30, 2006 and $175 million at December 31, 2005, and is included in other current liabilities on the
Condensed Balance Sheets. "

S-2. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Components ofAPS' comprehensive income (loss) forthe three and six months ended
June 30, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (dollars in thousands):
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Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

$ 93,757 $ 63,998 s 88,236 $ 91,043

(62,304) (24,147) (225,196) 84,070

2,958 (4,437) (7,157) (5,819)

Net income

OCI (loss):
Unrealized gains (losses) on
derivative instruments (a)

Reclassification of realized (gains)
losses to income (b)

Income tax (expense) benefit related to
items of OCI

Total OCI (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) $

23,175
(36,171)
57,586 $

11,253

(l7,331)

46,667 $

90,735
(141,618)
(53,382) $

(30,807)
47,444

138,487

(a) These amounts primarily include unrealized gains and losses on contracts used to hedge
our forecasted electricity and natural gas requirements to serve Native Load. These
changes are primarily due to changes in forward natural gas prices and wholesale
electricity prices.

(b) These amounts primarily include the reclassification of unrealized gains and losses to
realized gains and losses for contracted commodities delivered during the period.

S-3. Other Income and Other Expense

The following table provides detailof APS' other income and other expense for the three and
Six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

S 8,810
1,970

$ $ s

net

Other income:
Asset sales
Interest income
Investment gains
Miscellaneous

Total other income s

209

10,989 S

142
4,177

981
1,705
7,005 $

9,171
5,504

165
245

15,085 $

383
9,600

479
2,202

12,664

$ $ (2,708) $ (6,527) s (5,335)
Other expense :
Non-operating costs(a)
Investment losses - net
Miscellaneous

Total other expense $

(3,311)
(710)
(537)

(4,558) $

(168)
(2,876) $

(1,001)
(7,528) s

(899)
(6,234)

(a ) As defined by the FERC, includes below-the-line non-operating utility costs
(primarily community relations and other costs excluded from utility rate recovery).
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SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S-4. Related Party Transactions

From time to time, APS enters into transactions with Pirmacle West or Pinnacle West's other
subsidiaries. The following table summarizes the amounts included in the APS Condensed
Statements of Income and Condensed Balance Sheets related to transactions with affiliated
companies (dollars in millions):

Three Months
Ended

June 30,

2006 2005

Six Months
Ended

June 30,

2006 2005

2 S s 3 $ 3

2

5

Electric operating revenues :
Pinnacle West marketing and trading $
Pinnacle West Energy

Total $ 2 $

2

1

3 $ 3 $

Fuel and purchased power costs:

Pinnacle West Energy $ $ 39 $ $ 47

O the r:
P inna c le  W e s t Ene rgy in te re s t income $ $ S s 5

As of

June 30, 2006

As of
December 31, 2005

Net intercompany receivables (parables):
Pinnacle West -.. marketing and trading
APS Energy Services
Pinnacle West

Total

$ $ 82
2

(2)
82$

13
1

(19)
(5) s

Electric revenues include sales of electricity to affiliated companies at contract prices.

Purchased power includes purchases of electricity from affiliated companies at contract prices. APS

purchases electricity from and sells electricity to APS Energy Services, however, these transactions

are settled net and reported net in accordance with EITF 03-1 l, "Reporting Realized Gains and

Losses on Derivative Instruments That Are Subject to FASB Statement No. 133 and Not 'Held for

Trading Purposes' As Defined in EITF Issue No. 02-3."

Intercompany receivables primarily include amounts related to the intercompany sales of
electricity. Intercompany parables primarily include amounts related to the intercompany purchases
of electricity. Intercompany receivables and parables are generally settled on a current basis in cash.
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ITEM 2. MANAGER/[ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with Pinnacle West's Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements and Arizona Public Service Company's Condensed Financial
Statements and the related Notes that appear in Item l of this report.

OVERVIEW

Pinnacle West owns all of the outstanding common stock ofAPS. APS is a vertically-
integrated electric utility that provides retail and wholesale electric service to most of die state of
Arizona, with the major exceptions of about one-half of the Phoenix metropolitan area, the Tucson
metropolitan area and Mohave County in northwester Arizona. APS has historically accounted for
a substantial part of our revenues and earnings, and is expected to continue to do so. Customer
growth in APS' serviceterritory is about dire times die national average and remains a fundamental
driver of our revenues and earnings.

The ACC regulates APS' retail electric rates. The key issue affecting Pinnacle West's and
APS' financial outlook is the satisfactory resolution of APS' retail rate proceedings pending before
the ACC. As discussed in greater detail in Note 5, these proceedings consist of:

a general retail rate case pursuant to which APS is requesting a 21 .3%, or $453.9
million, increase in its annual retail electricity revenues effective no later than
December 3 l, 2006,

an application for a temporary rate increase of approximately l.9%, through a PSA
surcharge, to recover $45 million in retail fuel and purchased power costs relating to
Palo Verde's 2005 unplanned outages that were deferred by APS in 2005 under the
PSA and are subject to the ACC's completion of an inquiry regarding the outages,
and

the ACC's prudence review of amounts collected through the May 2, 2006 interim
PSA adjustor (see "Interim Rate Increase" in Note 5) related to unplanned 2006 Palo
Verde outages. The related PSA deferrals were approximately $70 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2006.

SucCor, our real estate development subsidiary, has been and is expected to be an important
source of earnings and cash flow. Our subsidiary, APS Energy Services, provides competitive
commodity-related energy services and energy-related products and services to commercial and
industrial retail customers M the western United States. El Dorado, our investment subsidiary, owns
minority interests in several energy-related investments and Arizona community-based ventures.

Pinnacle West Energy is our subsidiary that previously owned and operated unregulated .
generating plants. Pursuant to the ACC's April 7, 2005 order in APS' 2003 rate case, on July 29,
2005, Pinnacle West Energy transferred the PWEC Dedicated Assets to APS. See "APS 2003 Rate
Case" in Note 5. Pinnacle West Energy sold its 75% interest in Silverhawk to NPC on January 10,
2006. See Note 17 for discussion of discontinued operations. As a result, Pinnacle West Energy no
longer owns any generating plants and has ceased operations.
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We continue to focus on solid operational performance in our electricity generation and
delivery activities. In the delivery area, we focus on superior reliability and customer satisfaction.
We plan to expand long-term resources and our transmission and distribution systems to meet the
electricity needs of our growing retail customers and sustain reliability.

See "Pinnacle West Consolidated -- Factors Affecting Our Financial Outlook" below for a
discussion of several factors that could affect our future financial results.

EARNINGS CONTRIBUTION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Pinnacle West has three principal business segments (determined by products, services and
the regulatory environment):

our regulated electricity segment, which consists of traditional regulated retail and
wholesale electricity businesses (primarily electric service to Native Load customers)
and related activities and 'includes electricity generation, transmission and
distribution,

our real estate segment, which consists of SucCor's real estate development and
investment activities, and

our marketing and trading segment, which consists of our competitive energy
business activities, including wholesale marketing and trading and APS Energy
Services' commodity-related energy services.

The following table summarizes net income by segment for the three months and six months
ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in millions):

s

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005

95 $ 69
8 l l
7 4
1 1

111 , 85

$

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005
82 83
30 19

9 11
1 2

122 115

$Regulated electricity
Real estate
Marketing and trading
Other
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations .- net of tax:

Real estate (a)
Marketing and trading (b)

Net income

1 1
(59)
27

2

1

1 2 5

1
(65)
51$ 112 s $ $

(a) Primarily relates to sales of commercial properties.
(b) Relates to the loss on the sale of Silverhawk in June 2005 and the operations of

Silverhawk.
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P INNACLE WES T CONS OLIDATED ._ RES ULTS  OF OP ERATIONS

General

Throughout the following explanations of our results of operations, we refer to "gross
margin." With respect to our regulated electricity segment and our marketing and trading segment,
gross margin refers to operating revenues less fuel and purchased power costs. "Gross margin" is a
"non-GAAP financial measure," as defined in accordance with SEC rules. Exhibit 99.1 reconciles
this non-GAAP financial measure to operating income, which is the most directly comparable
financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP). We view gross margin as an important performance measure
of die core profitability of our operations. This measure is a key component of our internal financial
reporting and is used by our management in analyzing our business segments. We believe that
investors benefit from having access to the same financial measures that our management uses. In
addition, we have reclassified certain prior-period amounts to conform to our current-period
presentation .

Deferred Fuel and Purchased Power Costs

APS' retail rate settlement became effective April 1, 2005. As part of the settlement, the
ACC approved the PSA, which permits APS to defer for recovery or refund fluctuations in retail fuel
and purchased power costs, subject to specified parameters. In accordance with the PSA, APS defers
for future rate recovery 90% of the difference between actual retail fuel and purchased power costs
and the amount of such costs currently included in base rates. APS' recovery ofPSA deferrals from
its customers is subject to the ACC's approval of annual PSA adjustments and periodic surcharge
applications. See "Power Supply Adjustor" in Note 5.

Since the inception of the PSA, APS has incurred substantially higher fuel and purchased
power prices than those authorized in APS' current base rates and has deferred those cost differences
in accordance with the PSA. The balance of APS' PSA deferrals at June 30, .2006 was $175 million.
APS estimates that its PSA deferral balance at December 31, 2006 will be approximately $155
million to $175 million, based on APS' hedged positions for fuel and purchased power at June 30,
2006 and recent forward market prices for natural gas and purchased power (which are subj et to
change). The recovery of PSA deferrals through ACC approved adjustors and surcharges recorded as
revenue is offset dollar-for-dollar by the amortization of those deferred expenses.

APS operated Palo Verde Unit 1 at reduced power levels from December 25, 2005 until
March 18, 2006 due to vibration levels in one of the Unit's shutdown cooling lines. During an
outage at Unit 1 from March 18, 2006 to July 7, 2006, APS performed the necessary work and
modifications to remedy the situation. APS estimates that incremental replacement power costs
resulting from Palo Verde's outages and reduced power levels were approximately $78 million
during the six months ended June 30, 2006. The related PSA deferrals were approximately $70
million in that period. The Palo Verde replacement power costs were partially offset by $30 million
of lower than expected replacement power costs related to APS' fossil-fueled generating units during
the six months ended June 30, 2006. As a result, the corresponding deferrals were reduced in that
six-month period by $27 million.

The PSA deferral balance at June 30, 2006 and estimated balance as of December 31, 2006
each includes (a) $45 million related to replacement power costs associated with unplanned 2005
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Palo Verde outages and (b) $70 million related to replacement power costs associated with
unplanned 2006 outages or reduced power operations at Palo Verde. The PSA deferrals associated
with these unplanned Palo Verde outages and reduced power operations are the subject of ACC
prudence reviews. See "PSA Deferrals Related to Unplanned Palo Verde Outages" in Note 5.

Operating Results - Three-month period ended June 30, 2006 compared with threemonth
period ended June 30, 2005

Our consolidated net income for the three months ended June 30, 2006 was $112 million
compared with $27 million for the comparable prior-year period. The three months ended June 30,
2005 included a net loss from discontinued operations of $58 million, substantially all of which was
related to the sale and operations of Silverhawk. Income from continuing operations increased $26
million in the period-to-period comparison, reflecting the following changes in earnings by segment:

Regulated Electricity Segment - Income from continuing operations increased
approximately $26 million primarily due to higher retail sales volumes related to
customer growth, effects of wanner readier on retail sales, income tax credits related
to prior years resolved in 2006, and lower interest expense. These positive factors
were partially offset by higher operations and maintenance expense related to
generation and customer service. Higher fuel and purchased power costs (as
discussed above) were substantially offset by the deferral of those costs in accordance
with the PSA.

Real Estate Segment -. Income from continuing operations decreased approximately
$3 million primarily due to decreased margins on parcel sales, partially offset by
increased margins on residential sales.

Marketing and Trading Segment - Income from continuing operations increased
approximately $3 million primarily due to higher unit margins on Wholesale sales.
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Additional details on the major factors that increased (decreased) net income are contained in the
following table (dollars in millions):

Increase (Decrease)
Pretax Afte r Ta x

$ (43)
40

$ (26)
24

26
16

(9)
30

16
10
(6)
18

3 2

(5) (3)

(6) (4)

(4)
(5)

(2)
(3)

6

$

1

2 0

4
10

4

26
59

85

Regulated electricity segment gross margin:
Higher fuel and purchased power costs
Increased deferred fuel and purchased power costs
Higher retail sales volumes due to customer growth,

excluding weather effects
Effects of warmer weather on retail sales

Miscellaneous items, net
Net increase in regulated electricity segment gross margin

Higher marketing and trading segment gross margin primarily due
to higher unit margins on wholesale sales

Lower real estate segment contribution primarily related to
decreased margins on parcel sales, partially offset by
increased margins on residential sales

Operations and maintenance increases primarily due to:
Generation costs, including maintenance and overhauls
Customer service costs, including regulatory demand-side

management programs and planned maintenance
Miscellaneous items, net

Lower interest expense, net of capitalized financing costs, primarily
due to lower debt balances, partially offset by higher rates

Income tax credits related to prior years resolved in 2006

Miscellaneous items, net

Net increase in income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations related to the sale of Silverhawk

Net increase in net income $

Regulated Electricity Segment Revenues

Regulated electricity segment revenues. were $133 million higher for the three months ended
June 30, 2006 compared with the prior-year period primarily as a result of:

a $75 million increase in revenues related to recovery of PSA deferrals, which had no
earnings effect because of amortization of the same amount recorded as fuel and
purchased power expense (see "Deferred Fuel and Purchased Power Costs" above),

• a $36 million increase in retail revenues related to customer growth, excluding
weather effects,

a $22 million increase in retail revenues related to wanner weather,
r

a $10 million increase in Off-System Sales due to higher prices, and

a $10 million decrease due to miscellaneous factors.
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Real Estate Segment Revenues

Real estate segment revenues were $28 million higher for Me three months ended June 30,
2006 compared with the prior-year period primarily as a result of;

a $32 million increase from residential sales due to higher prices and volumes,

an $11 million decrease from parcel sales due to timing, and

a $7 million increase due to miscellaneous sales.

Marketing and Trading Segment Revenues

Marketing and trading segment revenues were $19 million higher for the three months ended
June 30, 2006 compared with the prior-year period primarily as a result of:

a $12 million increase due to higher power prices au delivered wholesale electricity
sales,

a $10 million increase from higher prices on competitive retail sales in California,
and

a $3 million decrease in mark-to-market gains on contracts for future delivery due to
changes in forward prices.

Operating Results .- Six-month period ended June 30, 2006 compared with six-month period
ended June 30, 2005

Our consolidated net income for the six rondos ended June 30, 2006 was $125 million
compared with $51 million for the comparable prior-year period. The six months ended June 30,
2005 included a net loss from discontinued operations of $64 million, substantially all of which was
related to the sale and operations of Silverhawk. Income from continuing operations increased $7
million in the period-to-period comparison, reflecting the following changes in earnings by segment:

Regulated Electricity Segment - Income from continuing operations decreased
approximately $1 million primarily due to higher fuel and purchased power costs (as
discussed above), and higher operations and maintenance expense related to
generation and customer service. These negative factors were partially offset by
deferred fuel and purchased power costs, higher retail sales volumes due to customer
growth, income tax credits related to prior years resolved in 2006, effects of weather
on retail sales, a retail price increase effective April 1, 2005, lower interest expense,
and higher interest income.

Real Estate Segment - Income from continuing operations increased approximately
$11 million primarily due to increased margins on residential and parcel sales.

Marketing and Trading Segment - Income from continuing operations decreased
approximately $2 million primarily due to lower mark-to-market gains on contracts
for future delivery, partially offset by higher unit margins on wholesale sales.
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Additiona l deta ils  on the  ma jor fa ctors  tha t increa s ed (decrea s ed) net income a re  conta ined in the
following ta ble  (dolla rs  in m illions ):

Increase (Decrease)

Preta x Afte r Ta x

$ (98) s (60)

53 32

39
13
7

(13)
1

24
8
4

(7)
l

(4) (2)

18 11

(28) (17)

(11) (7)

7 4

Regulated electricity segment gross margin:
Higher fuel and purchased power costs
Increased deferred fuel and purchased power costs (deferrals

began April l, 2005)
Higher retail sales volumes due to customer growth,

excluding weather effects
Effects of weather on retail sales
Retail price increase effective April l, 2005
Miscellaneous items, net

Net increase in regulated electricity segment gross margin
Lower marketing and trading segment gross margin primarily

related to lower mark-to-market gains, partially offset by higher
unit margins on wholesale sales

Higher real estate segment contribution primarily related to
increased margins on residential and parcel sales

Operations and maintenance increases primarily due to:
Generation costs, including maintenance and overhauls
Customer service costs, including regulatory demand-side

management programs and planned maintenance
Lower interest expense, net of capitalized financing costs, primarily

due to lower debt balances, partially offset by higher rates
Higher other income, net of expense, primarily due tO miscellaneous

asset sales and increased interest income
Income tax credits related to prior years resolved in 2006

Miscellaneous items, net

6

Net increase (decrease) in income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations related to the sale of Silverhawk

and sales of real estate assets

$
l

(10)

4
10
3

7

Net increase in net income $

67

74

Regulated Electricity Segment Revenues

Regulated electricity segment revenues were $ l83 million higher for the six months ended
June 30, 2006 compared with the prior-year period primarily as a result of:

a $93 million increase in revenues related to recovery of PSA deferrals, which had no
earnings effect because of amortization of the same amount recorded as fuel and
purchased power expense (see "Deferred Fuel and Purchased Power Costs" above),

a $54 million increase in retail revenues related to customer growth, excluding
weather effects,
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an $18 million increase in retail revenues related to weather,

a $12 million increase in Off-System Sales primarily resulting from sales previously
reported in the marketing and trading segment that were classified beginning in April
2005 as sales in the regulated electricity segment in accordance with the APS retail
rate case settlement; .

a $10 million increase in Off-System Sales due to higher prices,

a $7 million increase in retail revenues due to a price increase effective April 1, 2005,
and

an $11 million decrease due to miscellaneous factors.

Real Estate Segment Revenues

Real estate segment revenues were $66 million higher for the six months ended June 30,
2006 compared widl the prior-year period primarily as a result of:

a $48 million increase from residential sales due to higher prices and volumes,

a $9 million increase from parcel sales due to timing, and

• a $9 million increase due to miscellaneous sales.

Marketing and Trading Segment Revenues

Marketing and trading segment revenues were $15 million higher for the six months ended
June 30, 2006 compared with the prior-year period primarily as a result of:

a $32 million increase from higher prices on competitive retail sales in California,

a $12 million decrease in off-system sales due to the absence of sales previously
reported in the marketing and trading segment that were classified beginning in April
2005 as sales in the regulated electricity segment in accordance with the APS retail
rate case settlement; ,

a $7 million decrease in mark-to-market gains on contracts for future delivery due to
changes in forward prices, and

a $2 million increase due to miscellaneous factors.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Capital Needs and Resources - Pinnacle West Consolidated

Capital Expenditure Requirements

The following table summarizes the actual capital expenditures for the six months ended
June 30, 2006 and estimated capital expenditures for the next three years:

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
(dollars in millions)

Six Months Ended
June 30,

Estimated for the Year Ended
December 31,

2006 2006 2007 2008

$ $ $ 323
169
207

16

715
142

2

859

s 362
203
279

13

857
119

6

982

APS
Distribution
Transmission
Generation
Other (a)

Subtotal
SucCor (b)
Other

Total $

184
55
73
10

322
100

5

427 s

322
120
184

23

649
232

6

887 $ s

(a) Primarily information systems and facilities projects.

(b) Consists primarily of capital expenditures for land development and retail and office
building construction reflected in "Real estate investments" and "Capital
expenditures" on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cab Flows.

Distribution and transmission capital expenditures are comprised of infrastructure additions
and upgrades, capital replacements, new customer construction and related information systems and
facility costs. Examples of the types of projects included in the forecast include lines, substations,
line extensions to new residential and commercial developments and upgrades to customer .
information systems. Major transmission projects are driven by strong regional customer growth.

Generation capital expenditures are comprised of various improvements to APS' existing
fossil and nuclear plants and the replacement of Palo Verde steam generators (see below). Examples
of the types of projects included in this category are additions, upgrades and capital replacements of
various power plant equipment such as turbines, boilers and environmental equipment. Generation
also includes nuclear fuel expenditures of approximately $35 million annually for 2006 through
2008.

The Palo Verde owners have approved the manufacture of one additional set of steam
generators. These generators will be installed in Unit 3 and are scheduled for completion in the fall
of 2007 at an approximate cost of $75 million (APS' share). Approximately $25 million of the Unit
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3 steam generator costs have been incurred through June 30, 2006, with the remaining $50 million
included in the capital expenditures table above. Capital expenditures will be funded with internally
generated cash and/or external financings.

Contractual Obligations

Our future contractual obligations have not changed materially from the amounts disclosed in
P a rt II, Item 7 of the  2005 Form 10-K, with the  exception of our a ggrega te :

iimel and purchased power commitments, which increased from approximately $1.9
billion at December 3 l, 2005 to $2.9 billion at June 30, 2006 as follows (in billions):

2006

$0.5

2007-2008

$0.6

2009-2010

$0.4

Therea fte r

$1 .4

Tota l

$2.9

See Note 4 for a list of payments due on total long-term debt and capitalized lease
requirements .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In 1986, APS entered into agreements with three separate VIE lessons in order to sell and
lease back interests in Palo Verde Unit 2. The leases are accounted for as operating leases in
accordance with GAAP. We are not the primary beneficiary of the Pro Verde VIEs and,
accordingly, do not consolidate them.

APS is exposed to losses under the Palo Verde sale leaseback agreements upon the
occurrence of certain events that APS does not consider to be reasonably likely to occur. Under
certain circumstances (for example, the NRC issuing specified violation orders with respect to Palo
Verde or the occurrence of specified nuclear events), APS would be required to assume the debt
associated with the transactions, make specified payments to the equity participants, and take title to
the leased Unit 2 interests, which, if appropriate, may be required to be written down in value. If
such an event had occurred as of June 30, 2006, APS would have been required to assume
approximately $228 million of debt and pay the equity participants approximately $182 million.

Guarantees and Letters of Credit

We have issued guarantees and letters of credit 'it support of our unregulated businesses. We
have also obtained surety bonds on behalf of APS Energy Services. We have not recorded any
liability on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets with respect to these obligations. We
generally agree to indemnification provisions related to liabilities arising from or related to certain of
our agreements, with limited exceptions depending on the particular agreement. See Note 15 for
additional information regarding guarantees and letters of credit.

Credit Ratings

The ratings of securities of Pinnacle West and APS as of August 7, 2006 are shown below.
The ratings reflect the respective views of the rating agencies, from which an explanation of the
significance of their ratings may be obtained. There is no assurance that these ratings will continue
for any given period of time. The ratings may be revised or withdrawn entirely by the rating
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agencies, if, in their respective judgments, circumstances so warrant. Any downward revision or
withdrawal may adversely affect the market price of Pinnacle West's or APS' securities arid serve to

.increase the cost of and access to capital. It may also require additional collateral related to certain
derivative instruments (see Note 10).

Moody' s Standard & Poor's

Pinnacle West
Senior unsecured"
Commercial paper
Outlook

Ba a n (P )
P -3

Ne ga tive

BB+ (prelim)
A-3

Stable

AP S
Baan BBB-Senior unsecured

Secured lease
obligation bonds

Commercial paper
Outlook

Ba a n
P -2

Ne ga tive

BBB-
A-3

S ta ble

\

l")Pinnacle West has a combiNed shelf registration under SEC Rule 415. Moody's assigns a
provisional (P) rating and Standard & Poor's assigns a preliminary (prelim) rating to such shelf
registrations. Pinnacle West currently has no outstanding, rated senior unsecured securities.

Debt Provisions

Pinnacle West's and APS' debt covenants related to their respective bank financing
arrangements include a debt to capitalization ratio. Certain of APS' bank financing arrangements
also include an interest coverage test. Pinnacle West and APS comply with these covenants and each
anticipates it will continue to meet these and other significant covenant requirements. For each of
Pinnacle West and APS, these covenants require that the ratio of consolidated debt to total
consolidated capitalization cannot exceed 65%. At June 30, 2006, the ratio was approximately 48%
for Pinnacle West and 46% for APS. The provisions regarding interest coverage require a minimum
cash coverage of two times the interest requirements for APS. The interest coverage was
approximately 4 times under APS' bank financing agreements as of June 30, 2006. Failure to
comply wide such covenant levels would result in an event of default which, generally speaking,
would require the immediate repayment of the debt subject to the covenants and could cross-default
other debt. `

Neither Pinnacle West's nor APS' financing agreements contain "rating triggers" that would
result in an acceleration of the required interest and principal payments in the event of a rating
downgrade. However, in the event of a further rating downgrade, Pinnacle West and/or APS may be
subject to increased interest costs under certain financing agreements.

A11 of Pinnacle West's bank agreements contain "cross-default" provisions that would result
in defaults and the potential acceleration of payment under these loan agreements if Pinnacle West or
APS were to default under certain other material agreements. All of APS' bank agreements contain
cross-default provisions that would result in defaults and the potential acceleration of payment under
these bank agreements ifAps were to default under certain other material agreements. Pinnacle
West and APS do not have a material adverse change restriction for revolver borrowings.
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See Note 4 for fuMet discussions.

Capital Needs and Resources - By Company

Pinnacle West (Parent Company)

Our primary cash needs are for dividends to our shareholders and principal and interest
payments on our long-term debt. The level of our common stock dividends and future dividend
growth will be dependent on a number of factors including, but not limited to, payout ratio trends,
free cash flow and financial market conditions.

Our primary sources of cash are dividends from APS, external fmancings and cash
distributions from our other subsidiaries, primarily SunCor. An existing ACC order requires APS to
maintain a common equity ratio of at least 40% and prohibiWMS from paying common stock
dividends if the payment would reduce its common equity below that threshold. As defined in the
ACC order, the common equity ratio is common equity divided by the sum of common equity and
long-term deb including current maturities of long-term debt. At June 30, 2006, APS' common
equity ratio, as defined, was approximately 54%.

Pinnacle West sponsors a qualified defined benefit and account balance pension plan for the
employees of Pinnacle West and our subsidiaries. We contribute at least the minimum amount
required under IRS regulations, but no more Dian the maximum tax-deductible amount. The
minimum required funding takes into consideration the value of the plan assets and our pension
obligation. The assets in the plan are comprised of common stocks, bonds, common and collective
trusts and short-term investments. Future year contribution amounts are dependent on fund
performance arid valuation assumptions of plan assets. We contributed $53 million in 2005. The
contribution to our pension plan in 2006 is estimated to be approximately $50 million, $29 million of
which has been contributed through June 30, 2006. The contribution to our other postretirement
benefit plan iii 2006 is estimated to be approximately $29 million. APS and other subsidiaries fund
their share of the contributions. APS' share is approximately 97% of both plans.

In January 2006, Pinnacle West infused into APS $210 million of the proceeds firm the sale
of Silverhawk. See "Equity Infusions" in Note S for more information.

On February 28, 2006, Pinnacle West entered into an Uncommitted Master Shelf Agreement
with Prudential Investment Management, Inc. ("Prudential") and certain of its affiliates. The
agreement provides the terms under which Pinnacle West may offer up to $200 million of its senior
notes for purchase by Prudential affiliates at any time prior to December 3 l, 2007. The maturity of
notes issued under the agreement cannot exceed five years. Pursuant to the agreement, on
February 28, 2006, Pinnacle West issued and sold to Prudential affiliates $175 million of its 5.91%
Senior Notes, Series A, due February 28, 2011 (the"Series A Notes").

. On April 3, 2006, Pinnacle West repaid $300 million of its 6.40% Senior Notes due April,
2006. Pinnacle West used the proceeds of the Series A Notes, cash on hand and commercial paper
proceeds to repay these notes.
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On July 19, 2006, the Pinnacle West Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of
$0.50 per share of common stock, payable on September 1, 2006, to shareholders of record on
August l, 2006.

In connection with the FERC Order discussed under "Federal" in Note 5, the FERC revoked
a previous FERC order allowing Pinnacle West to issue securities or incur long-term debt without
FERC approval. On May 3, 2006, the FERC issued an order approving Pinnacle West's application
to issue a broad range of debt and equity securities through June 30, 2008. Pinnacle West does not
expect this FERC order to limit its ability to meet its capital requirements.

AP S

APS' capital requirements consist primarily of capital expenditures and optional and
mandatory redemptions of long-term debt. APS pays for its capital requirements with cash from
operations and, to the extent necessary, external financings. APS has historically paid its dividends
to Pinnacle West with cash from operations. See "Pinnacle West (Parent Company)" above for a
discussion of the common equity ratio that APS must maintain in order to pay dividends to Pinnacle
West.

Although provis ions  in AP S ' a rticles  of incorpora tion a nd ACC fina ncing orders  e s ta blis h
ma ximum a mounts  of preferred s tock a nd debt tha t APS  ma y is s ue, APS  does  not expect a ny of thes e
provis ions  to limit its  a bility to meet its  ca pita l requirements

On August 3, 2006, APS issued $400 million of debt as follows: $250 million of its 6.25%
Notes due 2016 and $150 million of its 6.875% Notes due 2036. A portion of the proceeds will be
used to pay at maturity approximately $84 million of APS' 6.75% Senior Notes due November 15,
2006, to fund its construction program and for other general corporate purposes. A portion of the
proceeds may also be used to pay any liability determined to be payable as a result of the review by
the Internal Revenue Service of a tax refund the Company received in 2002.

See "Deferred Fuel and Purchased Power Costs" above and "Power Supply Adjustor" in
Note 5 for information regarding the PSA approved by die ACC. Although APS defers actual retail
fuel and purchased power costs on a current basis, APS' recovery of the deferrals from its ratepayers
is subject to the ACC's approval of annual PSA adjustments and periodic surcharge applications.
During the six months ended June 30, 2006, APS recovered approximately $93 million of PSA
deferrals, which had no effect on earnings because of amortization of the same amount recorded as
fuel and purchased power expense.

See "Cash Flow Hedges" in Note 10 for information related to collateral provided to us by
counterparties.

Pinnacle West Energy

See Note 17 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements above for a
discussion of the sale of our 75% ownership interest in Silverhawk.
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Other Subsidiaries

During the past three years, SunCor funded its cash requirements with cash from operations
and its own external financings. SunCor's capital needs consist primarily of capital expenditures for
land development and retail and office building construction. See the capital expenditures table
above for actual capital expenditures during the six months ended June 30, 2006 and projected
capital expenditures for the next three years. SunCor expects to fund its future capital requirements
with cash from operations and external financings.

El Dorado expects minimal capital requirements over the next three years and intends to
focus on prudently realizing the value of its existing investments.

APS Energy Services expects minimal capital expenditures over the next three years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

In preparing the financial statements in accordance with GAAP, management must often
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues,
expenses and related disclosures at the date of the financial statements and during the reporting
period. Some of those judgments can be subjective and complex, and actual results could differ from
those estimates. Our most critical accounting policies include the impacts of regulatory accounting,
the determination of the appropriate accounting for our pension and other postretirement benefits and
derivatives accounting. There have been no changes to our critical accounting policies since our
2005 Form l0-K. See "Critical Accounting Policies" in Item 7 of the 2005 Form l0-K for further
details about our critical accounting policies.

OTHER ACCOUNTING MATTERS

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. l09." This guidance requires us to
recognize the tax benefits of an uncertain tax position if it is more likely than not that the benefit will
be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority. The Interpretation is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. We are currently evaluating this new guidance and believe it
will not have a material impact on our financial statements.

PINNACLE WEST CONSOLIDATED _ FACTORS AFFECTING
OUR FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

Factors Affecting Operating Revenues, Fuel and Purchased Power Costs

General Electric operating revenues are derived from sales of electricity in regulated retail
markets in Arizona and from competitive retail and wholesale power markets in the western United
States. These revenues are affected by electricity sales volumes related to customer mix, customer
growth and average usage per customer as well as electricity rates and tariffs and variations in
weather from period to period. Competitive sales of energy and energy-related products and services
are made by APS Energy Services in certain western states that have opened to competition.
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Retail Rate Proceedings The key issue affecting Pinnacle West's and APS' financial
outlook is the satisfactory resolution of APS' retail rate proceedings pending before the ACC. As
discussed in greater detail in Note 5, these proceedings consist of a general rate case request, an
application for a 1.9% temporary rate increase that is subject to die ACC's completion of an inquiry
regarding unplanned 2005 Palo Verde outages, and a "pendency review" of amounts collected
through the May 2, 2006 interim PSA adjustor, including a "prudence audit" of unplanned 2006 Palo
Verde outages to be conducted by the ACC stair.

Fuel and Purchased Power Costs Fuel and purchased power costs are impacted by our
electricity sales volumes, existing contracts for purchased power and generation fuel, our power plant
performance, transmission availability or constraints, prevailing market prices, new generating plants
being placed in service, variances in deferrals and amortization of fuel and purchased power since
April 1, 2005 and our hedging program for managing such costs. See "Power Supply Adjustor" in
Note 5 for information regarding the PSA, including PSA deferrals related to unplanned Palo Verde
outages and reduced power operations that are the subject of ACC prudence reviews. See "Natural
Gas Supply" in Note 12 for more information on fuel costs. APS' recovery of PSA deferrals from its
ratepayers is subject to the ACC's approval of annual PSA adjustments and periodic surcharge
applications.

Customer and Sales Growth The customer and sales growth referred to in this paragraph
applies to Native Load customers and sales to them. Customer growth in APS' service territory
averaged about 3.8% a year for the three years 2003 through 2005, we currently expect customer
growth to average about 4.2% per year from 2006 to 2008. We currently estimate that total retail
electricity sales in kilowatt-hours will grow 3.7% on average, from 2006 through 2008, before the
effects of weather variations. Customer growth was 4.5% higher for the six-month period ended
June 30, 2006 when compared with the prior-year period.

Actual sales growth, excluding weather-related variations, may differ from our projections as
a result of numerous factors, such as economic conditions, customer growth, usage patters and
responses to retail price changes. Our experience indicates that a reasonable range of variation in our
kilowatt-hour sales projection attributable to such economic factors can result in increases or
decreases in annual net income of up to $10 million.

Weather In forecasting retail sales growth, we assume normal weather patterns based on
historical data. Historical extreme weather variations have resulted in annual variations in net
income in excess of $20 million. However, our experience indicates that the more typical variations
from normal weather cart result in increases or decreases in annual net income of up to $10 million.

, Wholesale Power Market Conditions The marketing and trading division focuses
primarily on managing APS' risks relating to fuel and purchased power costs in connection with its
costs of serving Native Load customer demand. The marketing and trading division, subject to
specified parameters, markets, hedges and trades in electricity, fuels and emission allowances and
credits.

Other Factors Affecting Financial Results

Operations and Maintenance Expenses Operations and maintenance expenses are
impacted by growth, power plant additions and operations, inflation, outages, higher trending
pension and other postretirement benefit costs and other factors .
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Depreciation and Amortization Expenses Depreciation and amortization expenses are
impacted by net additions to utility plant and other property, which include generation construction,
acquisition, the sale of generation (see discussion of the sale of Silverhawk --. Note 17), changes in
depreciation and amortization rates, and changes in regulatory asset amortization.

Property Taxes Taxes other than income taxes consist primarily of property taxes, which
are affected by tax rates and the value of property in-service and under construction. The average
property tax rate for APS, which currently owns the majority of our property, was 9.2% of assessed
value for 2005 and 2004. We expect property taxes to increase as new power plants, the acquisition
of the Sundance Plant in 2005 and our additions to transmission and distribution facilities are
included in the property tax base.

InterestExpense Interest expense is affected by the amount of debt outstanding and the
interest rates on that debt. The primary factors affecting borrowing levels in thenext several years
are expected to be our capital requirements and our internally generated cash flow. Capitalized
interest offsets a portion of interest expense while capital projects are under construction. We stop
accruing capitalized interest on a project when it is placed in commercial operation.

Retail Competition Although some very limited retail competition existed in Arizona in
1999 and 2000, there are currently no active retail competitors providing unbundled energy or other
utility services to APS' customers. We cannot predict when, and the extent to which, additional
competitors will re-enter APS' service territory.

Subsidiaries SunCor's net income was $56 million in 2003, $45 million in 2004 and $56
million in 2005.

APS Energy Services' and EI Dorado's historical results are not indicative of future
performance .

General Gur financial results may be affected by a number of broad factors. See "Forward-
Looking Statements" for further information on such factors, which may cause our actual future
results to differ from those we currently seek or anticipate.

Market Ris ks

Our operations include managing market risks related to changes in interest rates, commodity
prices and investments held by our nuclear decommissioning trust fund.

Interest Rate and Equity Risk

We have exposure to changing interest rates. Changing interest rates will affect interest paid
on variable~rate debt and the market value of debt securities held by our nuclear decommissioning
trust fund. The nuclear decommissioning trust fund also has risk associated with the changing
market value of its investments. Nuclear decommissioning costs are recovered in regulated
electricity prices.
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Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the commodity price and
transportation costs of electricity, natural gas, coal and emissions allowances. We manage risks
associated with these market fluctuations by utilizing various commodity instruments that qualify as
derivatives, including exchange-traded futures and options and over-the-counter forwards, options
and swaps. Our ERMC, consisting of officers and key management personnel, oversees company-
wide energy risk management activities and monitors the results of marketing and trading activities
to ensure compliance with our stated energy risk management and trading policies. As part of our
risk management program, we use such instruments to hedge purchases and sales of electricity, fuels
and emissions allowances and credits. The changes in market value of such contracts have a high
correlation to price changes in the hedged commodities. In addition, subject to specified risk
parameters monitored by theERMC, we engage in marketing and trading activities intended to profit
from market price movements.

The mark-to-market value of derivative instruments related to our risk management and
trading activities are presented in two categories consistent with our business segments:

Regulated Electricity -- non-trading derivative instruments that hedge our purchases
and sales of electricity and fuel for APS' Native Load requirements of our regulated
electricity business segment, and

Marketing and Trading - non-trading and trading derivative instruments of our
competitive business segment.

The following tables show the pretax changes in mark-to-market of our non-trading and
trading derivative positions for the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in millions):
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Six Months Ended
June 30, 2006

Regulated Marketing
Electricity and Trading

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2005

Regulated Marke ting
Electricity and Trading

s 335 $ 18] s 33 S 107

(6) (3) 12 12

(4) 1 (1) (10)

(61) 4

(225) (49) 84 52

Mark-to-market of net positions
at beginning of period

Recognized in earnings:
Change in mark-to-market

for future period
deliveries - gains (losses)

Mark-to-market
gains (losses) realized
including ineffectiveness
during the period

Deferred as a regulatory (asset)
liability

Recognized in OCI:
Change in mark-to-market

for future period
deliveries - gains (losses) (a)

Mark~to-market
gains realized
during the period

Mark-to-market of net positions
at end of period $

(7)

32 s

(11)

119 $

(6)

126 $

(10)

151

(a) The gains (losses) in regulated mark-to-market recorded in OCI are due primarily to
increases (decreases) in forward natural gas prices.

The tables below show the fair value of maturities of our non-trading and trading derivative
contracts (dollars in millions) at June 30, 2006 by maturities and by the source for calculating the fair
values. See Note 1, "Derivative Accounting," in Item 8 of our 2005 Form 10-K for more discussion
of our valuation methods.

Regulated Electricity Tota l
Yea rs fa ir

the fe a fe t va lue

$ -- s 62

2006 2007.
s (20) s 63

2008

s 20

2009 2010

s (1) s

(2) 4 (1) (1)

Source of Fair Value

Prices actively quoted
Prices provided by

other external sources
Prices based on models

and other valuation
methods

To tai by maturity
(4)

$ s 63
(4)

(26) 3
(4)
15 $ (2) S $

(4)
(4)

(14)
(14) $

(30)
32

Na
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Marketing and
Trading .

2006

$ 9

2007
$ -_

2008

$

2009

S

Total
Years fair

2010 thereafter value

$ -- $ -- $ 9

66 19 85

Source of Fair Value

Prices actively quoted
Prices provided by
other external sources

Prices based on models
and other valuation
methods

Total by maturity

11
$  20

(2)
$ 64. $

16

35 $
(1)
(1) $

(1)
(1). $

2

2 $

25
119

The tablebelowshows the impact that hypothetical price movements of 10% would have on
the market value of our risk management and trading assets and liabilities included on Pinnacle
West's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2006 and December 3 l, 2005 (dollars in
millions).

Com m odity

J une 30, 2006
Ga in (Los s )

P rice  Up P rice  Down
10% 10%

Decem ber 3 1, 2005
Ga in (Los s )

P rice  Up P rice  Down
10% 10%

s 1 $ (1) $ $

Mark-to-market changes
reported in earnings (a):

Electricity
Mark-to-market changes

reported in OCI (b):
Electricity
Natural gas

85
88

(85)
(88)

66
103

(66)
(103)

Tota l $ 174 $ (174) $ 169 $ (169)

(a)

(b)

These contracts are primarily structured sales activities hedged with a portfolio of
forward purchases that protects the economic value of the sales transactions.
These contracts are hedges of our forecasted purchases of natural gas and electricity.
The impact of these hypothetical price movements would substantially offset the
impact that these same price movements would have on the physical exposures being
hedged.

Credit Risk

We are exposed to losses in the event of non-performance or non-payment by counterparties.
See Note 1, "Derivative Accounting" in Item 8 of our 2005 Form 10-K for a discussion of our credit
valuation adjustment policy. See Note 10 for tiirther discussion of credit risk.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY - RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Ge ne ra l

Throughout the following explanations of our results of operations, we refer to "gross
margin." Gross margin refers to electric operating revenues less fuel and purchased power costs.
Gross margin is a "non-GAAP financial measure," as defined in accordance with SEC rules. Exhibit
99.2 reconciles this non-GAAP financial measure to operating income, which is the most directly
comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP. We view gross
margin as an important performance measure of the core profitability of our operations. This
measure is a key component of our internal financial reporting and is used by our management in
analyzing our business. We believe that investors benefit from having access to the same financial
measures that our management uses. In addition, we have reclassified certain prior-period amounts
tO conform to our current-period presentation.

Deferred Fuel and Purchased Power Costs

8

APS' retail rate settlement became elective April 1, 2005. As paN of the settlement, the
ACC approved the PSA, which permits APS to defer for recovery or refund fluctuations in retail fuel
and purchased power costs, subject to specified parameters. In accordance with the PSA, APS defers
for future rate recovery 90% of the difference between actual retail fuel and purchased power costs
and the amount of such costs currently included in base rates. APS' recovery of PSA deferrals from
its customers is subject to the ACC's approval of annual PSA adjustments and periodic surcharge
applications. See "Power Supply Adjustor" in Note 5.

Since the inception of the PSA, APS has incurred substantially higher fuel and purchased

power prices than those authorized in APS' current base rates and has deferred those cost differences

in accordance with the PSA. The balance of APS' PSA deferrals at June 30, 2006 was $175 million.

APS estimates that its PSA deferral balance at December 31, 2006 will be approximately $ l55

million to Sl75 million, based on APS' hedged positions for fuel and purchased power at June 30,

2006 and recent forward market prices for natural gas and purchased power (which are subject to

change). The recovery of PSA defenals through ACC approved adjustors and surcharges recorded as

revenue is offset dollar-for-dollar by the amortization of those deferred expenses.

APS operated Palo Verde Unit I at reduced power levels from December 25, 2005 until
March 18, 2006 due to vibration levels in one of the Unit's shutdown cooling lines. During an
outage at Unit 1 from March 18, 2006 to July 7, 2006, APS performed the necessary work and
modifications to remedy the situation. APS estimates that incremental replacement power costs
resulting from Palo Verde's outages and reduced power levels were approximately $78 million
during the six months ended June 30, 2006. The related PSA defenals were approximately $70
million in that period. The Palo Verde replacement power costs were partially offset by $30 million
of lower than expected replacement power costs related to APS' fossil-fueled generating units during
the six months ended June 30, 2006. As a result, the corresponding deferrals were reduced in that
six-month period by $27 million.

The PSA deferral balance at June 30, 2006 and estimated balance as of December 3 l, 2006
each includes (a) $45 million related to replacement power costs associated with unplanned 2005
Palo Verde outages and (b) $70 million related to replacement power costs associated with
unplanned 2006 outages or reduced power operations at Palo Verde. The PSA deferrals associated
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with these unplanned Palo Verde outages and reduced power operations are the subject of ACC
prudence reviews. See "PSA Deferrals Related to Unplanned Palo Verde Outages" in Note 5.

See "Power Supply Adjustor" in Note 5 for further information regarding the PSA.

Operating Results .- Three-month period ended June 30, 2006 compared with three-month
period ended June 30, 2005

APS' net income for the three rondos ended June 30, 2006 was $94 million compared with
$64 million for the comparable prior-year period. The $30 million increase was primarily due to the
higher retail sales volumes due to customer growth, effects of warmer weather on retail sales, and
income tax credits related to prior years resolved in 2006. These positive factors were partially offset
by higher operations and maintenance expense related to generation and customer service costs and
higher depreciation and amortization related to increased depreciable assets. In addition, the increase
also related to the absence of a prior year cost-based contract for PWEC Dedicated Assets which was
partially offset by increased operations and maintenance expense and depreciation of thoseunits.
Higher fuel and purchased power costs (as discussed above)were substantially set by the deferral
of those costs in accordance with the PSA.

Additiona l deta ils  on the  ma jor fa ctors  tha t increa s ed (decrea s ed) net income a re  conta ined in
the  following ta ble  (dolla rs  in m illions ):

Increase (Decrease)
Pretax After Tax

s (43)
40

s (26)
24

40 24

26
16

(11)
68

16
10

(6)
42

(8)
(6)

(5)
(4)

(6)
(6)

(6)

(4)
(4)

(4)

Gross margin:
Higher fuel and purchased power costs
Deferred fuel and purchased power costs
Absence of prior year cost-based contract for PWEC Dedicated

Assets
Higher retail sales volumes due to customer growth,

excluding weather effects
Effects of warmer weather on retail sales

Miscellaneous items, net
Net increase in gross margin

Operations and maintenance increases primarily due to:
Costs ofPWEC Dedicated Assets not included in prior year

period
Generation costs, including maintenance and overhauls
Customer service costs, including regulatory demand-side

management programs and planned maintenance
Miscellaneous items, net

Depreciation and amortization increases primarily due to:
Higher depreciable assets due to transfer of PWEC Dedicated Assets
Higher other depreciable assets partially offset by lower depreciation
rates

Income tax credits related to prior years resolved in 2006

Miscellaneous items, net

(5)

Net increas e  in ne t income $

l
32 s

(3)
7
5

30
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Regulated Electricity Revenues

Regulated electricity revenues were $133 million higher for the dire months ended June 30,
2006 compared with the prior-year period primarily as a result of:

a $75 million increase in revenues related to recovery ofPSA defends, which had no
earnings effect because of amortization of the same amount recorded as fuel and
purchased power expense (see "Deferred Fuel and Purchased Power Costs" above),

a $36 million increase in retail revenues related to customer growth, excluding
weather effects,

a $22 million increase in retail revenues related to warier weather,

a  $10 million increa s e  in Off-Sys tem Sa les  due  to higher prices , a nd

a $10 million decrease due to miscellaneous factors.

Operating Results .-. Six-month period ended June 30, 2006 compared with six-month period
ended June 30, 2005

APS' net income for the six months ended June 30, 2006 was $88 million compared with $9 l
million for the comparable prior-year period. The $3 million decrease was primarily due to higher
fuel and purchased power costs (as discussed above), higher operations and maintenance expense
related to generation and customer service costs, and higher depreciation and amortization related to
increased depreciable assets. These negative factors were partially offset by deferred fuel and
purchased power costs, higher retail sales volumes due to customer growth, effects of weather on
retail sales, income tax credits related to prior years resolved in 2006, and a retail price increase
effective April l, 2005. In addition, the increase also related to the absence of a prior year cost-based
contract for PWEC Dedicated Assets which was partially offset by increased operations and
maintenance expense and depreciation of those units.
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Additional details on the major factors that increased (decreased) net income are contained in the
following table (dollars in millions):

Increase (Decrease)

Pretax Afte r Ta x

$ (98) s (60)

53 32

42 26

39
13

24
8

13
7

(15)
54

(25) (15)

(15) (9)

(12)
(5)

(7)
(3)

Gross margin:
Higher fuel and purchased power costs
Deferred fuel and purchased power costs (defends began

April 1, 2005)
Absence of prior year cost-based contract for PWEC Dedicated

Assets
Higher retail sales volumes due to customer growth,

excluding weather effects
Effects of weather on retail sales
Higher marketing and trading gross margin primarily

related to higher mark-to~Market gains
Retail price increase effective April i, 2005

Miscellaneous items, net
Net increase in gross margin .

Operations and maintenance increases primarily due to:
Generation costs, including maintenance and overhauls
Costs of PWEC Dedicated Assets not included in prior year

period
Customer service costs, including regulatory demand-side

management programs and planned maintenance
Miscellaneous items, net

Depreciation and amortization increases primarily due to:
Higher depreciable assets due to transfer of PWEC Dedicated

Assets
Higher other depreciable assets partially offset by lower

depreciation rates
Higher property taxes due to increased plant in service
Income tax credits related to prior years resolved in 2006

Miscellaneous items, net

(12)

(3)
(5)

(7)

Net decrease in net income $

2

(21) s

(2)
(3)
7
3

(3)

Regulated Electricity Revenues

Regulated electricity revenues were $i82 million higher for the six months ended June 30,
2006 compared with the prior~year period primarily as a result of

a $93 million increase in revenues related to recovery of PSA deferrals, which had no
earnings effect because of amortization of the sameamount recorded as fuel and
purchased power expense (see "Deferred Fuel and Purchased Power Costs" above),

a $54 million increase in retail revenues related to customer growth, excluding
weather effects,
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an $18 million increase in retail revenues related to weather,

a $12 million increase in Off-System Sales primarily resulting from sales previously
reported in marketing and trading that were classified beginning in April 2005 as
sales in regulated electricity in accordance with the APS retail rate case settlement,

a $10 million increase in Off-System Sales due to higher prices,

a $7 million increase in retail revenues due to a price increase effective April l, 2005 ,
and

a $12 million decrease due to miscellaneous factors.

Marketing and Trading Revenues

Marketing and trading revenues were $16 million lower for the six months ended June 30,
2006 compared with the prior-year period primarily as a result of:

a $15 million decrease in energy trading revenues on realized sales of electricity
primarily due to lower delivered electricity prices and lower volumes,

an $11 million increase in mark-to-market gains on contracts for future delivery due
to changes in forward prices, and

a $12 million decrease in Off-System Sales due to the absence of sales previously
reported in marketing and trading that were classified beginning in April 2005 as
sales in regulated electricity in accordance with the APS retail rate case settlement.

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY._LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Contractual Obligations

APS' future contractual obligations have not changed materially from the amounts disclosed
in Part II, Item 7 of the 2005 Form 10-K, with the exception of our aggregate:

fue l a nd purcha s ed power commitments , which increa s ed from a pproxima te ly $1.7
billion a t December 31, 2005 to $2.7 billion a t J une  30, 2006 a s  follows  (in billions ):

2006

$0.4

2007-2008

$0.5

2009-2010

$0.4

Therea fte r

$1 .4

Tota l

$2.7

See Note 4 for a list of APS' payments due on total long-term debt and capitalized lease
requirements .
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statements based on current expectations, and
neither Pinnacle West nor APS assumes any obligation to update these statements or make any
further statements on any of these issues, except as required by applicable law. These forward-
looking statements are often identified by words such as "estimate," "predict," "hope," "may,"
"believe," "anticipate," "plan," "expect," "require," "intend," "assume" and similar words. Because
actual results may differ materially from expectations, we caution readers not to place undue reliance
on these statements. A number of factors could cause future results to differ materially from
historical results, or from results or outcomes currently expected or sought by Pinnacle West or APS.
In addition to the Risk Factors described in Item lA of the 2005 Form 10-K, these factors include,
but are not limited to:

state and federal regulatory and legislative decisions and actions, including the
outcome and timing ofAPS' retail rate proceedings pending before the ACC,
the timely recovery of PSA deferrals, including approximately Sl 15 million of
deferrals at June 30, 2006 associated with unplanned Palo Verde outages and reduced
power operations that are the subject of ACC prudence reviews, ,
the ongoing restructuring of the electric industry, including the introduction of retail
electric competition in Arizona and decisions impacting wholesale competition,
the outcome of regulatory, legislative and judicial proceedings, both current and
future, relating to the restructuring,
market prices for electricity arid natural gas,
power plant performance and outages,
transmission outages and constraints,
weather variations affecting local and regional customer energy usage,
customer growth and energy usage,
regional economic and market conditions, including the results of litigation and other
proceedings resulting from the California energy situation, volatile fuel and
purchased power costs and the completion of generation and transmission
construction in the region, which could affect customer growth and the cost of power
supplies,
the cost of debt and equity capital and access to capital markets,
current credit ratings remaining in effect for any given period of time,
our ability to compete successfully outside traditional regulated markets (including
the wholesale market),
the performance of our marketing and trading activities due to volatile market
liquidity and any deteriorating counterparty credit and the use of derivative contracts
in our business (including the interpretation of the subjective and complex accounting
rules related to these contracts),
changes in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and the interpretation of those principles,
the performance of the stock market and the changing interest rate environment,
which affect the amount of required contributions to Pinnacle West's pension plan
and APS' nuclear decommissioning trust funds, as well as the reported costs of
providing pension and other postretirement benefits,
technological developments in the electric industry ,
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• the strength of the real estate market in SunCor's market areas, which include
Arizona, Idaho, New Mexico and Utah, and
other uncertainties, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond
the control of Pinnacle West and APS.
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Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RIS K

See "Pinnacle West Consolidated - Factors Affecting Our Financial Outlook - Market Risks"
in Item 2 above for a discussion of quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risks.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND P ROCEDURES

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The tem "disclosure controls and procedures" means controls and other procedures of a
company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") (15
U.S.C. 78a et seq.) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SEC's mies and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, widiout
limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a
company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to a company's management, including its principal executive and principal financial
officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Pinnacle West's management, with the participation of Pinnacle West's Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of Pinnacle West's disclosure
controls and procedures as of June 30, 2006. Based on that evaluation, Pinnacle West's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded dirt, as of that date, Pinnacle West's
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

APS' management, with the participation of APS' Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of APS' disclosure controls and procedures as of
June 30, 2006. Based on that evaluation, APS' Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that, as of that date, APS' disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

(b) Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The tem "internal control over financial reporting" (defined in SEC Rule l3a-l5(f))'refers to
the process of a company that is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance.
with GAAP.

No change in Pinnacle West's or AP S' internal control over financial reporting occurred
during die fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2006 that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, Pinnacle West's or APS' internal control over financial reporting.

\
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Part II - OTH;ER INFORMATION

Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 12 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1 of
dlis report in regard to pending or threatened litigation or other disputes.

Item IA. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the
factors discussed in Part I, "Item lA. Risk Factors" in the 2005 Form 10-K, which could materially
affect the business, financial condition or future results ofAPS and Pinnacle West. The risks
described in this report and the 2005 Form 10-K are not the only risks facing APS and Pinnacle
West. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be
immaterial also may materially adversely affect the business, financial condition and/or operating
results of APS and Pinnacle West,

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Proposal 1 - Election of Directors

At our Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on May 17, 2006, the following persons were
elected as directors:

Class III (Term to expire at
2009 Annual Meeting) Votes For Votes Withheld

Abstentions and
Broker Non-Votes

Jack E. Davis 86,958,623 1,821,065 N/A

Pamela Grant 86,967,924 1,811,764 N/A

Ma rtha  O. Hes s e 1,855,523 N/A

William S. Jameson, Jr.

86,924,165

86,990,842 1,788,846 N/A

Continuing Directors

The terms of Roy A. Herberger, Jr., Humberto S. Lopez, Kathryn L. Munro, and William L.
Stewart will expire in 2007. The terms of Edward N. Basha, Jr., Michael L. Gallagher, Brace J.
Nordstrom and William J. Post will expire in 2008.

Proposal 2 - Independent Auditors

At the same meeting, a proposal for the ratification of die selection of Deloitte & Touchy
LLP as independent Auditors of the Company for fiscal year ending 2006 was submitted to the
shareholders, and the voting was as follows:

\
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Proposal for the ratification
of the selection of Deloitte  &

Touche LLP for fiscal year ending
2006 Votes For Votes Against

Abstentions and
Broker. Non-Votes

87,880,830 234,347 664,51 1

Proposal 3 - Shareholder Proposal

Also at this annual meeting, a shareholder proposal requesting that the Board of Directors
take action to allow for the annual election of directors was submitted to the shareholders, and the
voting was as follows:

Proposal to elect each director
annually Votes For Votes Against

Abstentions and
Broker Non-Votes

61,797,460 12,834,465 14,147,763

Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Construction and Financing Programs

See "Liquidity and Capital Resources" in Part I, Item 2 of this report for a discussion of
construction and financing programs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Regulatory Matters

See Note 5 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1 of this
report for a discussion of regulatory developments.

Environmental Matters

See "Environmental Matters - Superfund" in Note 12 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1 of this report for a discussion of a Superfund site.

Mercury. By November 2006, the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality will
submit a State Implementation Plan to the EPA to implement the Clean Air Mercury Rule or an
alternate mercury program, as authorized by the EPA. See "Environmental Matters - Mercury" in
Part I, Item I of the 2005 Form 10-K. ADEQ issued a proposed mercury rule on July 25, 2006. The
proposed rule generally incorporates EPA's model cap-and-trade program, but requires sources to
acquire two allowances for every one allowance needed for compliance. The proposed rule also
requires coal-fired power plants to achieve a 90% mercury removal efficiency or to achieve certain
emission limits. APS is still evaluating the potential impacts of the proposed rule and cannot
currently estimate the expenditures which may be required.

I
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Federal Implementation Plan. In September 1999, the EPA proposed a FIP to set air
quality standards at certain power plants, including the Navajo Generating Station and the Four
Comers Power Plant. See "Environmental Matters - Federal knplementation Plan" in Part I, Item l
of the 2005 Form 10-K. On July 26, 2006, the Sierra Club'sued the EPA to compel the EPA to issue
a final FIP for Four Comers Power Plant. APS does not currently expect the FIP to have a material
adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows or liquidity.
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Item 6. EXHIBITS

(a ) Exhibits

Exhibit No. Registrant(s) Description

10.1 P inna cle  Wes t First Amendment to Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of
May 15, 2006, supplementing and
amending the AMended and Restated
Credit Agreement, dated as of
December 9, 2005, among Pinnacle West
Capital Corporation, as Borrower,
.TPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent
and the other parties thereto

12.1 Pinnacle West Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

12.2 APS Ratio of Earnings tn Fixed Charges

12.3 P inna cle  Wes t Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed
Charges and Preferred Stock Dividend
Requirements

31.1 P inna cle  Wes t Certificate of William J. Post, Chief
Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-
l4(a) and Rule l5d-l4(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act, as amended

31.2 P inna cle  Wes t Certificate of Donald E. Brandt, Chief
Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-
14(a) and Rule l5d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act, as amended

31.3 APS Certificate of Jack E. Davis, Chief .
Executive Otiicer, pursuant toRule 13a-
14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act, as amended

31.4 APS Certificate of Donald E. Brandt, Chief
Financial Oliicer, pursuant to Rule 13a-
l4(a) and Rule 15d-l4(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act, as amended

32.1 P inna cle  Wes t Certification of Chief Executive Otiicer
and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1850, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
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Exhibit No. Registrant(s) Description

Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 AP S

x

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1850, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 P inna cle  Wes t Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Gross Margin

99.2 AP S Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Gross Margin

In addition, the Company hereby incorporates the following Exhibits pursuant to Exchange
Act Rule l2b-32 and Regulation §229.l0(d) by reference to the filings set forth below:

Exhibit
No. Registrant(s) Description Previously Filed as Exhibit a

Date
Effective

3.1 P inna cle  Wes t Articles of Incorporation,
restated as of July 29,
1988

19.1 to Pinnacle West's
September 1988 Form 10-Q
Report, File No. 1-8962

11-14-88

3.2 P inna cle  Wes t Pinnacle West Capital
Corporation Bylaws,
amended as of
December 14, 2005

3.1 to Pinnacle West/APS
December 9, 2005 Form 8-K
Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and
1-4473

12-15-05

3.3 AP S Articles  of Incorpora tion,
res ta ted a s  of.May 25 ,
1988

4.2 to APS' Form S-3
Registration Nos. 33-33910
and 33-55248 by means of
September 24, 1993 Form 8-
K Report, File No. 1-4473

9-29-93

3.4 AP S Arizona Public Service
Company Bylaws,
amended as of June 23,
2004

3.1 to APS' .Tune 30, 2004
Form 10-Q Report, File No.
1-4473

8-9-04

a Reports Filed under File Nos. 1-4473 and 1-8962 were filed in the office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission located in Washington, D.C.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

P INNACLE WES T CAP ITAL CORP ORATION
(Registrant)

Dated: August 8, 2006 By: /s/ Donald E. Brandt
Donald E. Brandt
Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
and Officer Duly Authorized to sign this Report)

ARIZONA P UBLIC S ERVICE CGMP ANY
(Registrant)

Dated: August 8, 2006 By: /s/ Donald E. Brandt
Donald E. Brandt
Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Officer Duly Authorized to sign this Report)
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EXHIBIT D
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EXHIBIT D

P ROP OS ED LANGUAGE FOR ORDER

[Capita lized te rms used in the  pa ragraphs be low a re  intended to have  the  meanings given in the
Applic a tion]

IT IS  THEREFORE ORDERED tha t the  Compa ny is  he re by a uthorize d (i) to is sue , s e ll,

a nd  incur the Continu ing  Long-Te rm  De bt a nd  the  Continu ing  S hort-Te rm Debt, redeem,

refinance, refund, renew, reissue, roll-over, repay, and re-borrow from time to time such

Continuing Long-Te rm  De bt a nd Continuing S hort-Te rm  De bt, a nd e s ta blis h a nd a m e nd the

te rm s  a nd  p rov is ions  o f long-te rm  a nd  s hort-te rm  inde b te dne s s  from  tim e  to  tim e ,  (ii) to

de te rmine  the  form of s e curity, if a ny, for the  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt a nd the  Continuing

S hort-Te rm Debt, execute a nd de live r the Security Instruments, a nd e s ta blish a nd a me nd the

te rms and provis ions  of the  S ecurity Ins truments , as may be deemed appropriate by time Company

conne ction with  the Continuing Long-Te rm Debt and the Continuing S hort-Te rm Debt, a nd

(iii) to pa y a ll re la te d e xpe nse s , a ll a s  conte mpla te d in the  Applica tion a nd by the  e xhibits  a nd

tes timony presented during the  hea ring in this  ma tte r.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t only tra ditiona l inde bte dne ss  for borrowe d mone y (a nd

not the  othe r type s  of a rra nge me nts  de scribe d in pa ra gra ph 13 of the  Applica tion) is  subje ct to

A.R.S . S e ctions  301 a nd 302 a nd tha t, the re fore , such othe r a rra nge me nts  will not count a ga ins t

the Continuing Long~Term Debt or Continuing Short-Term Debt authorizations provided in this

in

De cis ion or re quire  prior Commiss ion a pprova l.



IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t the  Compa ny is  he re by a uthorize d to s ign a nd de live r

such documents and to engage in such acts as are reasonably necessary to effectuate the

authorization granted hereinabove.

IT IS  F UR THE R  O R DE R E D th a t th e purposes fo r wh ic h  the propose d issua nce s o f

Continuing Long-Te rm Debt and the Continuing Short-Term Debt are he re in a uthorize d are to

a ugme nt the  funds  a va ila ble  from a ll sources to fina nce  the Company's construction, resource

a cquis ition a nd ma inte na nce  progra ms , to re de e m or re tire  outs ta nding s e curitie s , to re pa y or

refund other outstanding long-term or shop-term debt and to meet certain of the Company's

working capital and odder cash requirements. Such purposes are within those permitted by A.R.S.

S e c tion  301  a nd  a re  pe rm itte d  re ga rd le s s  o f the  e xte n t to  which  the y m a y be  re a s ona b ly

chargeable to operating expenses or to income.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t P inna cle  We s t is  he re by gra nte d a n ongoing wa ive r of

a nd a uthoriza tion unde r A.C.C. R14-2-803 for the  purpos e  of gua ra nte e ing the  Com pa ny's

inde bte dne ss  from time  to time . The  Compa ny is  he re by a uthorize d to re imburse  P inna cle  We s t

for any amounts paid by Pinnacle West under any guarantee of the Company's debt from time to

time , a long with inte rest the reon to the  da te  of re imbursement a t a  ra te  of inte rest not grea te r than

the rate payable on the debt so guaranteed and paid by Pinnacle West.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED Tha t this  De cis ion sha ll be come  e ffe ctive  imme dia te ly.
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COMMENTS  OF ARIZONA P UBLIC S ERVICE C O MP ANY

ON S TAFF REP ORT
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1. INTRODUCTION

23

24 Arizona Public Service  Company ("APS" or the "Compa nv") hereby submits  the

25
following comments  on due StaffReport (the "Sta ff Report") tiled in the  above docket on

26

27
May 18, 2007. The Staff Report recognizes the continued benefits to APS and its

28 customers  of the  financia l flexibility tha t previous Arizona Corpora tion Commission
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("Commis s ion") financing orde rs  have  provided s ince  1984. The  Company s upports  the

Staff Report's fundamental recommendations but must suggest specific modifications and

clarifications, as discussed in greater detail below. In doing so, the Company seeks to

insure  that the  flexibility and other benefits  provided by a  new financing order are  not lost

because APS or APS' future lenders and investors are  unable to definitively confirm that

the Commission has clearly authorized a particular debt issuance or how any limitation on

that authority is  to be interpreted.

Pinna cle  We s t Ca pita l Corpora tion ("P inna cle  We s t") joins  in this  filing for the

purpos e  of the  s ubject ma tte r ofParagraph 14 be low. Paragraph 14 addresses  Pinnacle

West's request to guarantee the debt of APS, which likely constitutes a "reorganization"

of Pinnacle West under A.A.C. R14-2-803 .

Capita lized terms used in this  filing that are  not otherwise  specifically

I

defined in these comments have the meanings ascribed to those terns in the APS/Pinnacle

We s t Ve rifie d Applica tion in this  Docke t, da te d De ce mbe r 15, 2006 (the  "Applica tion").

11. CONDITIONS  TO IS S UANCES  OF DEBT

The Staff Report recommends Commission approval of the Company's requested

incre a s e  in its  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt limit to $4.2 billion if, "s ubs e que nt to a ny de bt

is s ua nce , APS  ca n s a tis fy the  following conditions : (1) common e quity Mus t re pre s e nt a t

le a s t 40 pe rcent of tota l [capita l] (common equity, pre fe rred s tock, long-te rm debt and

short-term debt) and (2) the debt service coverage ratio ("DSC") is equal to or greater than
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2. As explained in greater detail below, the Company agrees with the Staffs

recommendation regarding a common equity and debt service coverage test, subject to

specific clarifica tions and modifica tions. As a  pre liminary matter, however, the  Company

requests that instead of the tests applying to "any debt issuance," the tests should apply

only when the Company is  issuing long-term debt in recognition of the fact that the

Company normally issues short-tenn debt in the  font of commercia l paper on a  daily

basis. Computing these tests on a daily basis would be impractical and unnecessarily

burdensome. The Company agrees that a short-term debt component would be included

in the coverage calculations at the time the Company issues long-term debt.

Calculation of Common Equitv Test

3. Commis s ion De cis ion No. 65796 (April 4 , 2003), which prohibits  AP S  from

paying dividends unless it maintains a  minimum common equity ra tio of 40%, calculates

the  common e quity pe rce nta ge  a s  follows : "AP S ' common e quity [s ha ll] be  divide d by

the  s um of s uch common e quity a nd AP S  long-te rm de bt (including curre nt ma turitie s  of

s uch de bt)." (Commis s ion De cis ion No. 65796 a t 25.) Although the re  is  little  diffe re nce

between the two calculations under normal circumstances, for the sake of consistency of

applica tion, die calculation methodology in Commission *Decision No. 65796 should be

adopted for purposes of this  limitation. APS also proposes that the calculation be made as

of the end of APS ' mos t re ce nt fis ca l qua rte r, a djus te d to give  e ffe ct to the  is sua nce  of a ny

new indebtedness. Calculations of APS' common equity percentages under each

a pproa ch a t Ma rch 31, 2007, AP S ' mos t re ce nt fis ca l qua rte r, a re  a tta che d to this  filing a s
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Debt Service Coverage Ratio

4. The Staff Report recommends that the DSC be "calculated as operating income

plus  de pre cia tion a nd a mortiza tion a nd income  ta x divide d by inte re s t a nd [principa l] on

short-term and long-term debt less short-term debt and interest related to purchased power

and natural gas and using the most recent audited financial statements adj used to reflect

changes to outstanding debt." (S ta ff Re port a t 5, n. 1.)

5. APS acknowledges the Staff's request "for financial parameters to place conditions

on the  borrowings  to pre ve nt AP S  from ta ldng on a n e xce s s ive  a mount of de bt" (S ta ff

Re port a t 4). AP S  be lie ve s  tha t the  common e quity ra tio re fe re nce d in P a ra gra ph 2,

combined with a debt service coverage test, could effectively address this request. As

propos e d by the  S ta ff, howe ve r, the  DS C would re quire  nume rous  modifica tions  a nd

clarifications so that die DSC calculation methodology is clear under the various

circumstances when the DSC would need to be calculated. Absent these modifications

a nd cla ritica tie ns , ne ithe r AP S  nor AP S ' future  le nde rs  a nd inve s tors  will have the

re quire d ce rta inty tha t the  Commis s ion ha s  cle a rly a uthorize d AP S ' incurre nce  of a

s pe cific de bt obliga tion. As  a  re s ult, AP S  propos e s  a  "Modifie d DS C," a s  dis cus s e d

be low.

(a) The  inclus ion of long-te rm a nd s hort-te rm principa l de bt re pa yme nts  in the

"denominator" of the DSC calculation would result in (i) a debt service coverage

ca lcula tion incons is te nt with AP S ' his torica l fina ncing progra m a nd the  cove ra ge  te s ts

a pplie d to AP S  by its  le nde rs  a nd the  ra ting a ge ncie s  a nd (ii) nume rous  inte rpre tive  is sue s ,
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1

2

(b) Historically, APS' debt has not been amortized and repaid over the life of

the debt, as is the case with the debt of many other public service corporations regulated

by the Commission. With amortizing. debt, much like a  typical home mortgage loan, a
3

4

5

6

portion of each payment is  used to pay down principal. On the other hand, APS and other

la rge  inve s tor-owne d utilitie s  ge ne ra lly re pa y in full the ir outs ta nding de bt obliga tions  a t

maturity, usually with the proceeds of another debt issuance. During 2005, for example,

APS repaid approximately $568 million of maturing long-term debt and issued

approximate ly $412 million of new long-term debt. When APS repays its  long-term debt,

the DSC will be artificia lly reduced and will not provide an accurate  measure of APS '

financial health given that APS generally issues new debt to replace the "bullet maturity"

debt. Similarly, maturing short-term debt is typically rolled over with new issuances of

short-term debt. APS proposes a modified DSC (the "Modifie d DS C") tha t would exclude

principal debt repayments. The coverage test that would be reflected in the Modified DSC

is widely accepted in the financial community and is  the only type of coverage test found

in APS' credit agreements. In addition, the rating agencies evaluate  APS using this  type

of coverage test. Calculations of the DSC (using the Company's  best interpretation of that

test) and the proposed Modified DSC at December 31 , 2006 are attached to this tiling as

Exhib it B. l

(c ) If the  Commission determines that the  DSC, ra ther than the Modified DSC,
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is an appropriate financial test, APS requests that the Commission address the issues

| Under the DSC, the Staff also recommended the exclusion of "short-term debt and interest related to purchased
power and natural gas" 'dam the denominator of the DSC calculation. Under the Modified DSC, APS proposes that
this exclusion would no longer be necessary.
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related to the DSC that are set forth on Exhibit C, which APS believes are the significant,

but perhaps not the only, issues that must be addressed to resolve existing ambiguities.

III. OTHER STAFF REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

Short-Term Debt Limit

6. The Staff Report recommends that the Commission authorize APS to incur short-

term debt of up to 7% of APS' capitalization plus up to $500 million of additional short-

term borrowings for purchases of natural gas and power. (Staff Report at 5.) APS agrees

with this recommendati on but requests two modifications :

(a) First, the Staff Report recommends that, as a condition of APS incumhg the

additional $500 million of short-term debt, "APS has a Commission authorized adjustor

mechanism for recovery of these costs" (Staff Report at 6) . For purposes of clarity, AP S

suggests that the phrase "for recovery of these costs" be changed to "for recovery of

natural gas or power purchases .77

(b) Second, if the "Commission authorized mechanism" is terminated, APS

requests that the Commission's authorization for the related short-term debt would

terminate 12 months thereafter. This would provide APS with sufficient time to prudently

address its short-term debt balances.

Declaratory Order Regarding Traditional Indebtedness for Borrowed Monev

7. The Staff Report recommends that the Commission deny APS' request for a

declaratory order confirming that only traditional indebtedness for borrowed money

requires prior Commission authorization. (Staff Report at 5.) If the Commission accepts
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the Staffs recommendation in this regard, APS suggests that the Commission adopt the
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following additional provisions to avoid unintended and patently unfair consequences

should APS exceed its authorized debt limits solely as a result of future changes in United

States generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP ") or future changes in the

inte rpre ta tion of GAAP (collective ly, "GAAP Changes") :

(a) Any contract or other legally-binding arrangement to which APS was a

party as of the date  of the Commission's  order in this  matter (the "Exis ting Obliga tions"),

will hot be considered indebtedness for purposes of the order (including die order's debt

limitations, common equity test, and debt service coverage test) if the Existing Obligation

was not considered indebtedness under GAAP as of such date.

(b) If a  GAAP Change subsequently occurs that results  in an Existing
I

Obligation being reclassified as indebtedness, APS will notify the Commission of such

GAAP Change within 30 days after APS files  its  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or its

Annual Report on Form 10-K with the  Securities  and Exchange Commission following

the end of due fiscal quarter in which such GAAP Change occurs (the "Notifica tion

Period").

(c) If, after doe Comnlission's issuance of an order in this matter, APS enters

into a contract or binding arrangement that is not considered indebtedness under GAAP

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

but subsequently is considered indebtedness because of a GAAP Change, APS '

I obligations under such contract or arrangement will not be considered indebtedness for

purposes of the order (including the order's debt limitations, common equity test, and debt
2 4

25

26
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28

service coverage test) until further Commission action if, within the Notification Period,
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AP S  tile s  a n a pplica tion with the  Commis s ion s pe cifica lly re que s ting a pprova l of s uch

re cla s s ifie d de bt obliga tions .

Replacement of Existing Authorizations

8. The  S ta ff Re port re comme nds  tha t "[the ] a uthoriza tions  to incur s hort-te rm a nd

long-te rm de bt obliga tions  provide d in this  proce e ding s hould re pla ce  a ll e xis ting

a uthoriza tions , a nd a ll e xis ting a uthoriza tions  s hould te rmina te  upon the  e ffe ctive  da te  of

the  a udloriza tions  provide d in this  proce e ding." (S ta ff Re port a t 6.)

AP S  a gre e s  with S ta ffs  re comme nda tions  in this  re ga rd, which AP S  be lie ve s  we re

focused on Decision Nos. 55017 (May 6, 1986) and 54230 (November 8, 1984) (identified

in the  Applica tion a s  the  1986 Orde r a nd the  1984 Orde r, re s pe ctive ly), with the  following

exceptioris. Commission Decision Nos. 55120 (July 24, 1986) and 55320 (December 5,

1986) (the "Sade-Leaseback Authorizations"') are separate and independent financing

authorizations dirt must remain in fill] force and effect. Each of these Decisions, copies

of which a re  a tta che d a s Exhibits  D a nd E, re spe ctive ly, re la te s  to the  Compa ny's  s a le  a nd

le a s e ba ck of a  portion of Unit 2 of the  P a lo Ve rde  Nucle a r Ge ne ra ting S ta tion. The  S a le -

Leaseback Authorizations, pursuant to which APS entered into three separate sale-

leaseback transactions in 1986, are also financing authorizations in that they permit APS

to:
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"issue, assume, guarantee, and incur evidences of indebtedness in order to
consummate, and to perform its obligations and exercise its options under,
the Lease Transactions (including the issuance or incurrence of evidences of
indebtedness in connection with the financing of Capital Improvements as
required or permitted by the terms of the Leases, the costs of which will be
reflected in an adjustment to lease rentals) including, but not limited to, (i)
the issuance or incurrence of evidences of indebtedness by the Funding
Colporation, secured by the direct obligation of the Company; (ii) the

9.
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issuance or incurrence of evidences of indebtedness in connection with any
letter of credit or financial guaranty securing the Equity Investors for the
payment of amounts payable by the Company under die Lease and related
documents, (iii) die issuance or incurrence of evidences of indebtedness
necessary for any refunding of indebtedness, (iv) the assumption of
indebtedness by the Company upon the occurrence of certain events as
required by the Leases, (v) the adjustment of rents from time to time as
required by the Leases, and (vi) the extension of supplements to the Lease
as required or permitted by the Leases." (Decision No. 55120 at 9-10.)

10. It is important to APS and the numerous other parties to the sale-leaseback

transactions that the Sale-Leaseback Authorizations remain in full force and effect. The

parties entered into those transactions in reliance upon the Sale-Leaseback Authorizations .

Termination of Authorizations Under New Order

11. The Staff Repos recommends that "[the] short-term and long-term debt levels

authorized in this proceeding terminate on December 3 l, 2012." (Staff Report at 6.) In

orde r to a lle via te  pote ntia l conce rns  a bout the  va lidity of AP S ' inde bte dne s s  a fte r

De ce mbe r 31, 2012, AP S  s ugge s ts  tha t the  Commis s ion orde r in this  proce e ding confirm

that all short-term and long-tenn debt legally outstanding at December 31, 2012 remain

a uthorize d a nd va lid obliga tions  of AP S .

12. APS also requests that time December 3 I , 2012 termination date be extended until

the  Commis s ion is s ue s  a  ne w fina ncing orde r re pla cing the  the n-e xis ting orde r, provide d

that (a) APS files an application for a new financing order on or before December 31 ,

2011 and (b) the Commission has not issued an order pursuant to such application on or

be fore  De ce mbe r 31, 2012. This  will e ns ure  tha t AP S ' a bility to a cce s s  the  ca pita l

ma rke ts  is  not a bruptly te rmina te d, which would prohibit AP S  from finding its  ongoing
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ope ra tions  a nd me e ting its  obliga tions  a s  a  public s e rvice  corpora tion.
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Miscellaneous Comments

13. The  S ta ff Re port s ta te s  tha t "[t]o the  e xte nt tha t the  purpose s  s e t forth in the

a pplica tion ma y be  cons ide re d re a sona bly cha rge a ble  to ope ra ting e xpe nse s  or to income ,

AP S  re que s ts  tha t the  orde r or orde rs  from the  Commiss ion in this  ma tte r a uthorize  such

cha rge  or cha rge s  a nd tha t the y be  de e me d working ca pita l re quire me nts ." (S ta ff Re port

a t 3.) The  Applica tion did not re que s t the  Commis s ion to find tha t purpos e s  re a s ona bly

chargeable to operating expenses or to income "be deemed worldng capital requirements .
99

In orde r to comply with A.R.S . S e ction 40-302(A), the  Applica tion s ta te d tha t "[t]o die

extent that the purposes set forth herein may be considered reasonably chargeable to

ope ra ting e xpe nse s  or to income , the  Compa ny re que s ts  tha t the  orde r or orde rs  of the

Commis s ion in this  ma tte r a uthorize  s uch cha rge  or cha rge s ." (Applica tion a t 9.) The

Compa ny re s pe ctfully re que s ts  tha t the  Commis s ion's  orde r in this  ma tte r not include

language regarding "deemed working capital requirements" because not all the uses to

which ca sh proce e ds  from the  re que s te d fina ncing orde r would pote ntia lly be  use d ca n be

cla s s ifie d a s  "worldng ca pita l."

14. The  S ta ff Re port re fe re nce s  a  "wa ive r now in e xis te nce  (pe r De cis ion Nos . 65796

a nd 55017) ofA.A.C. R14-2-803" (S ta ff Re port a t 2) in conne ction with its

recommendation that the Commission "[authorize] Pinnacle West to guarantee APS' debt

from time  to time  in inde te rmina te  a mounts " (S ta ff Re port a t 7). No s uch wa ive r wa s

gra nte d to P inna cle  We s t in e ithe r of the  cite d De cis ions , but P inna cle  We s t supports  the
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15. The  S ta ff Re port re comme nds  tha t, "on e a ch occa s ion whe n AP S  e nte rs  into a  ne w

long-term debt agreement, APS file with Docket Control a description of the transaction

and a  demons tra tion tha t the  ra te s and terms a re  cons is te nt with thos e  ge ne ra lly a va ila ble

to comparable  entities  a t the  time." (Staff Report a t 7.) Recognizing that the  Staff Report

also recommends that the Commission deny APS' request for a declaratory order

confirming tha t only tra ditiona l inde bte dne s s  for borrowe d mone y re quire s  Commis s ion

approval (Staff Report a t 5), APS assumes that the  Staff's  filing recommendation would

cove r a ny tra ns a ction cla s s ifie d a s  long-te rm de bt from a  GAAP  pe rs pe ctive , re ga rdle s s  of

its  na ture  or s ize . If s o, AP S  be lie ve s  tha t s uch a  re quire me nt will re s ult in filings  for

tra ns a ctions  in which the  Commis s ion pre s uma bly will ha ve  little  or no inte re s t a nd which

will re quire  AP S  time  a nd e xpe ns e  to pre pa re . For e xa mple , e ve ry ca pita l le a s e  with a

term of 12 months or longer that APS enters  into would be subject to the  filing

re quire me nt, including ca pita l le a s e s  for ve hicle s , e quipme nt, a nd copy ma chine s . AP S

requests that such filing requirement be limited to long-term debt agreements involving

tra ditiona l inde bte dne s s  for borrowe d mone y. In a ddition, AP S  re que s ts  tha t s uch filing

re quire me nt e xclude  a ny long-te rm de bt a gre e me nt tha t ha s  a  principa l va lue  of le s s  tha n

$5 million. As  is  the  ca s e  with non-tra ditiona l inde bte dne s s , AP S  be lie ve s  tha t including

imma te ria l de bt a gre e me nts  a mong the  re quire d filings  will re s ult in filings  for

tra ns a ctions  in which the  Commis s ion pre s uma bly will ha ve  little  or no inte re s t on a n

individua l ba s is  a nd which will re quire  AP S  time  a nd e xpe ns e  to pre pa re .

16. The  S ta ff Re port "furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion of the  othe r fina ncing re que s ts
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made by APS in this  application except as  otherwise  specified [in the  Staff Repolt]."

11



(S ta ff Re port, Exe cutive  S umma ry.) Cons is te nt with the  S ta ffs  pos ition in this  re ga rd, a s

we ll a s  the  Compa ny's  s ugge s te d modifica tions  a nd cla rifica tions  a bove , the  Compa ny

has a ttached as Exh ib it F to this  tiling propos e d la ngua ge  for a  Commis s ion Orde r in this

ma tte r, including a lte rna tive  la ngua ge  in those  ca se s  in which the  Compa ny ha s  sugge s te d

diffe re nt a pproa che s  to the  re solution of a  spe cific is sue .

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 29[h day of May, 2007.

/ WBy: /744 I
Toma s  L. aw 41 4

ATTORNEY FOR ARIZONA PUBLIC
SERVICE COMPANY

By:
a

S ne ll & Wilme r, L.L.P .
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ORIGINAL and 13 cries filed with
Docket Control this 2 day of May 2007 .

COPIES hand-delivered this 29"' day of
May 2007, to :

Mr. Christopher C. Keeley
Chief Counsel,Legal Division
Arizona Corporation Commission
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona 5007

Mr. Ernest G. Johnson

Arizona Cooration Commission
1200 West ashingnon Street
Phoenix, Arizona 5007

Director, Utilities Division

Ms.
Hearing Division

Arizona Cooration Commission
1200 West washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona 5007

Lyn Farmer
Chief Administrative Law Judge,
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Exhibit C
P a ge  1 off

Exhib it C

Issues Regarding the DSC Requiring Commission Resolution

Questions regarding principal on 'long-term and short-term debt:

1 . Are  ma turitie s  of long-te rm de bt tha t e xis te d during the  prior ca le nda r ye a r

to be included, even if the  principa l on such debt has already been repaid?

2. Does APS assume that the short-term debt balance that exists at the prior

year-end is to be repaid, even if those balances may be rolled over?

3. Does APS include maturities of long-term debt that are expected to be paid

during the  upcoming ca le nda r ye a r?

4. S ince  ne w long-te rm de bt is  us ua lly is s ue d prior to the  ma turity da te  of a n

existing long-term debt series, does APS net the new long-term debt against the

matured/repurchased long-term debt during the upcoming calendar year?

5. If the new long-term debt issuance occurs before the calendar year of the

matured repurchased long-term debt but the use of proceeds in the financing

pros pe ctus  ide ntifie s  the  purpos e  a s  re pa ying the  ma turing long-te rm debt, does

APS net the new long-term debt against the maturing long-term debt?

S ince  s hort-te rm de bt is  oiie n incurre d prior to the  is s ua nce  of ne w long-

term debt, does APS assume maturing short-term debt and new long-term debt can

6.

be netted against each other?



Exhibit C
Page 2 off

Questions Regarding "Subsequent Adiustments":

7. The footnote definition of DSC states that the DSC calculation is "adjusted

to reflect changes to outstanding debt".

(a) Does this include long-term and short-term debt?

(b) Does it include both increases and decreases to debt balances?

(¢) Is  it me a nt to cove r both principa l a nd inte re s t?

(d) If long-te rm de bt doe s  not ma ture  for s e ve ra l ye a rs  a nd no principa l

pa yme nts  a re  re quire d until ma turity, doe s  tha t principa l pa yme nt

need to be added?

(e ) If inte re s t is  to be  a dde d, should it be  a nnua lize d?

(D Wha t ra te  of inte re s t should be  use d for short-te rm de bt tha t ha s  be e n

issued at various points in time?

APS must satisfy the DSC "subsequent to any debt issuance.77

(a) Doe s  AP S  do a  pro-forma  ca lcula tion tha t would a dd the  principa l

and annualized interest on the impending debt issuance?

(b) Please respond to questions 7(a), 7(c), 7(d) and 7(e) in re ga rd to the

pro-forma calculation of principal and interest.

Questions regarding the phrase "less short-term debt related to purchased power
and natural gas" in the definition of DSC:

9. How s hould AP S  ca lcula te  the  inte re s t offs e t for s hort-te rrn de bt re la te d to

8.

purchased power and natural gas costs?
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lzrou TBI Anzolu CURPOIATIDR cmunussIon\

F RENZ U. Jr-znnncs
Chairman

HARCIA uzsxs
Commissioner

SHARON I. HEGDAL
Commissioner

1

2

3

4

5

6

v

1.

e

9

mum 110. u-nas-86-105

m=:c1sI0n xo. 5 5 - 3 , 2 0

OID!!

IH THE MATTER or THE APPLICATION OF
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY TOR An
ORDER OR ORDERS (1) AUTHORIZING IT TO
ENTER INTO VARIOUS TRANSACTIONS AND
Acxnnczurs uurrnzc TO TBI BALI AND
OPERATING LnAsz OF ALL OR A PDRTIUN UF
THE cou@Any°s VHDIVIDED OWNERSHIP
INTEREST IN UNIT 2 DF ran PALO VERDE
NUCLEAR GENERATIRG STATION AND CERTAIN
COMMON FACILITIES;  (2)  Avrnoxzzznc IT
ro ISSUE OR INCDR EVIDENCES DF
INDE3TEDN£5S In couuzcrIom THBREWIT8;
(3) COWFIRHING THAT THE owutn TRUSTEE
AND THE EQUITY IHVBSTORS WILL nor BE
"PUBLIC SERVICE COlPDRATIONS";
(4) CONFIRMING THAT THE LEASES WILL BE
"OPERATING LIASES" FOR ACCOUNTING
PURPOSES; AND (5) DESCRIBING THE RATE-
MAKING tnzArn~ ~NT OF TBE PROPOSED
TRANSACTIONS.

)
)
>
)
)
)
)
)
>
)
)
>
)
)
)
)
)
>
)
)
>

arizona Uorpontion Gnmmfllii

DOCKETED

U s 19B5

I gdeunm av

I

DEC
Open fleeting
December 3, 1986
Phoenix., Arizona

IO

1 1

1 2

1:5

1 4

15

16

17

18

1 9

20 on November 17, 1986, Arizona Public Service Company (the "Company") filed

2 1 a Motion avivah the Commission request ing the Counission to issue an order

2 2 c o d i r n i n g  t h a t (1) the  Co ' l lmn iss ion 'a  o rder in  Decis ion  lo . 55120, dated

23 July 24,  1986,  ( the "order") authorizes the Company to  enter in to  Addit ional

24 Maze Transact ions (as here inaf ter  def ined) ad ( i i )  a11 o ther aapects o f  the

2 5 O r d e r , i n c l n d i o g , w i t h o u t l i m i t a t i o n , t h e l i m i t a t i o n a n d c o n d i t i o n s ,

2 6 - 1  a u t h o r i za t i o n s , s t a t u t o r y  f i n d i n g s ,  a n d  c o n n l n s i o o a  o f  1 -  s e t  f o r t h  t h e r e i n ,

27 are applicable to Additional Lease Transactions.

28

n THE cotnnssiom

i
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7

B

9 .,

The Dryer defines 'Lease Transactions" as 'one or :ore Elle

1 * e i *

2 laving considered the lotion, and being fully advised in the premises, the

3 Commission finds, concludes, and orders that:

4 nnrncs or FEW

5 1. The Company is an Arizona corporation engaged in providing electric

6 service to the public within wr sons of bison pwauant to authority granted

by this Coriss ion. '

2. Of April 22. 1986, the Company . filed an Application with the

Uomission requesting. long other things, authorization to enter into one or

10 more sale and leaseback transact ions relat ing to al l  or  a pot ion of  the

11 Company's 29.12 undivided onersMp interest in the Uni t z Faci l i t ies (as

12 hereinafter defined).

13 3 . W July 24, 1986, the Commission issued the Order authorizing the

14 Company, among other things, to 'under take and consummate the Lease

15 Transactions and to take all ouch actions as may be neceasaw or appropriate in

16 connection therewith, subject to the l imitations and conditions contained in

17 this incision".

18 ad leaseback transactions relating to (i) all or a portion of the Conpany'a

19 29.1! undivided ownership iotereat Io Unit 2, including, without limitation,

20 all or a portion of the Company's generation entitlement share in unit 2 and

21 (ii) certain real property interests in the Palo Verde plot lite and related

22 real property (such interest in Unit 2 and the real property interests being

23 hereinafter collectively referred to as the 'void 2 Facilities' )'.

24 authorization contained i n the Order, on

25
.

nest 18, 198, the Ccmnpany sold and leased het approriaately 80.7! of its

26 9.1! no divided ownership interest in the Unit 2 Facilities (the 'Initial Lease

27 aransactiona"). The total consideration to the Company fem the Initial Lease

CB 'Transactions vas $341 ,2M,U00.

4. Pursuant to the

I
.|

- -2 Decision Ro.5 5 5 ;  D

-
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8

9
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1 5. The Company in currently evaluating additional Lease Transactions

2 relating to its r aiming undivided ownership interest in the Unit z Pacilities

5 ("Additional Lease 1'ransactions"), including Additional Lease Traosactioos that

the Company proposes to coosumnate on or about December 15, 1986. Unlike the

5 Initial Lease Transactions, the proposed Member 1986, Lease 'Iraoaactionq may

6 not include a letter of credit issued in favor of the equity investors and may

7 include a portion of the Company's interest in facilities

associated with the operation of Unit 2. Another feature of the Initial Lease

Transactions, a stepped-up iovestnent tax, till not be available Io Additional

10 Lease Transactions.

11 6. Ly its Motion, the Company requests the Commission to issue an order

12 confirming that (i) the Order authorizes the CoMpany to enter into Additional

13 Lease Transactions ad (ii) all other aspects of the Order, including, without

14 limitation, the limitations ad condition, authorizations, statutory findings,

15 and conclusions of law therein, are applicable to Additional Lease

15 Transactions. 1

17 The Company is requesting the Commission to confirm that the Order

18 authorizes Additional Lease Transactions in order to provide potential lenders

19 and investors with the required explicit assurance that Commission approval for

2 0 t h e t r a n s a c t i o n s h a s b e e n o b t a i n e d . l e c s u s e t h e t e a t i n o n y i n t h e

21 July 10, 1986, Comisaion hearing; relating to the Lease Transactions discussed

2 2 t h e  I n i t i a l  L e a s e  T r a n s a c t i o n s  t h a t  ' e r e  t o  t a k e  p l a c e  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  m o n t h  i n

23 more detail than the possibility of Additional transactions, it is

24 conceivable that the bider may be iaaproperly construed to authorize only the

25 Initial lease Transactions.

25 8. The Additional Lease Transactions Vere approved in the Order to the

27 extent the Initial Lease Traossctioos Vere. They are also subject to the

28 limitations and conditions. Pursuant to the requiruaenta of the

Decision lo. _tq-3; 0.. 3 -
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4
Lease days

Lena

8

9

tense

Ann

1 Order, the Company will file with the Comniasioo (it all documents executed

2 pursuant .to the authorizations granted by the Order, including such documents

5 executed in connection with any Additional Lease Transactions, (ii) a plan of

disposition indicating the use to be made of the proceeds derived from any

5 Additional Traossctioos, and (i i i ) at least f ive (5) pr i or  to

6 closing. notification of any material changes in the Transactions

7 authorized Hy the Order.

9. The recoverability of the Company's payments under any

Additional lease Transactions vial be decided in Docket lo. 0-1345-85-367.

1 0 .

1 1 IT IS TBERZFDRE ORDERED that this Commission hereby

12 (i) confirms that the Order authorizes Additional Lease Traossctions;

13 confirms that all other aspects of the Order, including.. without

14 limitation, the limitations and cooditioos, authorizations, statutory

15 findings; and conclusions of law set for th thereto, are applicable to

16 Additional Lease Transactions. . I

17 IT IB FURTHER ORDERED that, without limiting the foregoing confirmation,

18 approval of the Additional Lease Transactions does oat constitute or imply

19 approval 3 disapproval by the Commission of any particular erpeoditure for

20 purposes of establishing just and reasonable rates.

2 1 1 e •

22 e • •

23 | a •

24. e e •

2 5 a e e

26 I e •

27 e 1 •

28

( i i )

- 4 .. Decision lo. $ 3 3 . 2 0
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IT 15 IURTBER ORDERED that this Decilinn shall become effective

>

, . 5-:mn
coruussxoruzn

41/
cornxIssxonzn

IR
Secretary Arizona

of this
Ar the Capitol, in
this §"' day

1986.

wnnzss YHBREOF, 1 . nuns MATTHEWS,
Zxecutive of the
Corporation 'Coxminiom have hereunto set my
hand end caused the official enl
Commission to be affixed
the City of Phoenix.
of  1 :~¢ . ._ ,g , I

. °» -IS\& .,"\

.unuzs aurrazws
Executive Secretary

1

2 immediately .

5 xv ORDER DF THE ARIZONA CORPDRATIUN comnsszou.

4 '

5 CHAIRMAN

6
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EXHIBIT F

PROPOSED LANGUAGE FOR ORDER

[Capitalized terms used in the paragraphs below and not otherwise defined are intended to have
the  meanings  given in the  Applica tion]

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED tha t the  Company is  hereby authorized (i) to issue , se ll,

and incur the  Continuing Long-Tenn Debt and the  Continuing Short-Term Debt, as such term is

deaned below, redeem, refinance, refund, renew, reissue, roll-over, repay, and re-bo1Tow firm

time to time such Continuing Long-Term Debt and Continuing Short-Term Debt, and establish

and amend the terms and provisions of long-term and shOrt-term indebtedness from time to time,

(ii) to de te rmine  the  form of security, if any, for the  Continuing Long-Term Debt and the

Continuing Short-Term Debt, execute and deliver the Security Instruments, and establish and

amend the terms and provisions of the Security Instruments, as may be deemed appropriate by

the Company in connection with the Continuing Long-Term Debt and the Continuing Short-

Term Debt, and (iii) to pay a ll re la ted expenses, a ll as contemplated in the  Application and by the

exhibits and testimony presented during the hearing in this matter.

IT IS FURTHERORDERED that the  Company is  authorized to issue  sho1t-term debt a t

any time  and firm time to time  (excluding current maturities  of long-te tm debt) in an amount not

to exceed 7% of the Company's capitalization plus up to an additional $500 million for

purchases of natural gas and power. (All short-term indebtedness outstanding on the date of this

Order or hereafter issued or incurred pursuant to this paragraph is referred to as "Continuing

Short-Term Debt." )



Exhibit F
Page 2 of 5

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t prior to the  is sua nce  or incurre nce  of the  up to $500

million of short-te rm de bt re la ting to purcha se s  of na tura l ga s  a nd powe r, the  Compa ny mus t

have a Commission authorized adjustor mechanism for recovery of natural gas or power

purchases and, if such mechanism is terminated, the authorization for the additional $500 million

of short-term debt will terminate 12 months thereafter.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t if a ll or a  portion of the  a uthorize d short-te rm de bt

relating to natural gas and power purchases becomes classified as long-term debt because the

amount remains outstanding for more than 12 months, such debt will continue to be counted as

Continuing Short-Tenn Debt and need not be counted against the Continuing Long-Tenn Debt

limit.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t imme dia te ly subse que nt to the  is sua nce  of a ny

Continuing Long-Te rm De bt:

(21) The Company must have a  minimum common equity ra tio of 40% (the  "Common

Equity Test"). For purposes of this test, the common equity ratio is calculated as common equity

divided by the sum of such common equity and the Company's long-term debt (including current

maturities of long-temi debt). The Common Equity Test will be calculated as of the end of the

most recent calendar quarter prior to the date of calculation, adjusted to give effect to the

issuance of any new indebtedness (including the proposed indebtedness for which the calculation

is being made).

(b) The Company's debt service coverage ratio ("DS C") must be equal to or greater

tha n 1.0. For purpose s  of this  te s t, the  DS C is  ca lcula te d a s  ope ra ting income  plus  de pre cia tion

a nd a mortiza tion plus  income  ta x, divide d by inte re s t on short-te rm a nd long-te rm de bt, us ing the

most recent audited financial statements adjusted to reflect the interest impact of changes to

2
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outstanding debt to the date of calculation, calculated as the annualized interest at the actual

interest rate on any new debt issued alter the 12 month period covered by the applicable audited

fina ncia l s ta te me nts  a nd re ma ining outs ta nding on the  da te  of ca lcula tion a nd iilMe r including

for purposes of this calculation, the annualized interest at the expected interest rate on the new

long-term debt to be issued or incured and for which the DSC calculation is being made.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t cha nge s  in Unite d S ta te s  ge ne ra lly a cce pte d

accounting principles  ("GAAP ") or changes in the  inte rpre ta tion of GAAP (collective ly, "GAAP

Changes") shall be  trea ted as follows:

(H) Any contra ct or othe r le ga lly-binding a rra nge me nt to which the  Compa ny is  a

party as of the  date  of this  Order (the  "Exis ting Obli,qa tions") will not be  considered

inde bte dne ss  for purpose s  of this  Orde r, including the  Continuing Long-Te rm De bt limit, the

Continuing S hort-Te nn De bt limit, the  Common Equity Te s t, a nd the  DS C, if the  Exis ting

Obligation was not considered indebtedness under GAAP as of the date of this Order, even if a

GAAP Change subsequently occurs that results in an Existing Obligation being considered

indebtedness. The Company will notify the Commission of any GAAP Change that results in an

Existing Obligation being classified as indebtedness within 30 days after the Company files its

Quarterly RepoN on Form 10-Q or its  Annual Report on Form 10-K with the  Securities  and

Excha nge  Commiss ion following the  e nd of the  Fisca l qua rte r in which such GAAP  Cha nge

occurs  (the  "Notifica tion P e riod").

CU) If, a fte r the  da te  of this  Orde r, the  Compa ny e nte rs  into a  contra ct or odle r le ga lly-

binding arrangement that is not considered indebtedness under GAAP but subsequently is

considered indebtedness because of a GAAP Change, the Company's obligations under such

contract or other legally-binding arrangement will not be considered indebtedness for purposes

3
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of this  Order, including the  Continuing Long-Term Debt limit, the  Continuing Short-Term Debt

limit, the  Common Equity Test, and the  DSC, until further Commission action if, within the

Notifica tion Period, the  Company files  an applica tion with the  Commission specifica lly

requesting approval of such reclassified debt obligations.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the authorizations to incur short-term and long-term

debt obligations provided in this Order shall replace all existing authorizations for the incurrence

of short-term and long-term debt, and all such existing authorizations shall tenninate  upon the

effective date of this Order. Notwithstanding the above, the Commission's Decision No. 55120

(July 24, 1986) and Decision No. 55320 (December S, 1986) (the "Sale-Leaseback

Authoriza tions") will rema in in full force  and e ffect.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t the  short-te rm and long-te rm debt leve ls  authorized in

this  Order will te rminate  on December 31, 2012, provided that a ll short-term and long-term debt

outstanding at December 31 , 2012 that was previously authorized pursuant to this Order shall

remain authorized and valid obligations of the  Company. The December 31 , 2012 termination

date  will be  extended until the  Commission issues a  new financing order replacing the then-

existing order, provided that (a) the  Company files an applica tion for a  new financing order on or

before December 31, 2011 and (b) the Commission has not issued an order pursuant to such

application on or before  December 3 l, 2012.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that on each occasion when the Company enters into a  new

long-term debt agreement, the Company must file with Docket Control a description of the

transaction and a demonstration that the rates and terms are consistent with those generally

available  to comparable  entities  a t the  time. No such filing need be made for any such new long-

4
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term debt agreement not involving traditional indebtedness for borrowed money or that has a

principa l va lue  Of le ss  tha n $5 million.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t the  Compa ny is  he re by a uthorize d to s ign a nd de live r

such documents and to engage in such acts as are reasonably necessary to effectuate the

authorizations granted hereinabove.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t the  purpose s  for which the  propose d is sua nce s  of

Continuing Long-Term Debt and the Continuing Short-Term Debt are herein authorized are to

augment the fids available from all sources to finance the Company's construction, resource

acquisition and maintenance programs, to redeem or retire outstanding securities, to repay or

refund other outstanding long-term or short-term debt and to meet certain of the Company's

working capital and other cash requirements. Such purposes are within those permitted by A.R.S.

Section 301 and are permitted regardless of the extent to which they may be reasonably

chargeable to operating expenses or to income.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t P inna cle  We s t is  he re by a uthorize d unde r A.C.C. R14-

2-803 to guarantee the Company's indebtedness from time to time in indeterminate amounts.

The  Compa ny is  he re by a uthorize d to re imburse  P inna cle  We st for a ny a mounts  pa id by P inna cle

West under any guarantee of the Company's debt from time to time, along with interest thereon

to the date of reimbursement at a rate of interest not greater than the rate payable on the debt so

guaranteed and paid by Pinnacle West.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED tha t this  De cis ion sha ll be come  e ffe ctive  imme dia te ly.

1879013.7
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March 6, 2007

Docket Control
Arizona Corporation Commission
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, AZ 85007

RE:

Barbara Klemstine
Director
Regulation & Pricing

PUBLIC NOTICE UNDER DOCKET no. E-01345A-06-0779

Tel. 602-250-4563
Fax S02-250-3003
e-mail Barbara.Klemstine@aps.com

Mall Station 9708
PO Box 53999
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-3999
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Dear Sir or Madam:

Arizona Public Service ("APS") hereby certifies that the attached copy of the Public Notice was published within
Ape' service territory, which ran in the Arizona Republic on February 24, 2007.

If you or your staff have any questions, please feel free to call me.

Sincerely,
R

49
Barbara Klemstine

0

BAK/bec

Attachment

CC: Lyn Farmer~
Steve Irvine
Christopher Kempley
Docket Control (Original, plus 13 copies)
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AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

THE ARIZONA REPUBLIC

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF MARICOPA s s .

Marilyn Greenwood, being first duly sworn, upon wadi
deposes and says: That she is a legal advertising
representative of the Arizona Business Gazette, a newspaper
of general circulation in the county of Maricopa, State of
Arizona, published at Phoenix, Arizona, by Phoenix
Newspapers Inc., which also publishes The Arizona
Republic, and that the copy hereto attached is a true copy of
the advertisement published in the said paper on the dates as
indicated.

The Arizona Republic

02/24/2007

Sworn to before me this
26TH day of
February A.O. 2007

KAREN WAY
Notary Public - Arizona
arcana cwnrv
Expires 08/31/09 QW

Notary Luc
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'PUBLIC NoT1c1-8 or AN .
APPLICATI0N pop AN ORDER .

AU-THQRIZING THE ISSUANCE OF
LONG AND SHDRT-TERM DEBT-

. - AND RELATED GUARANTEBS
BY AR1ZONA PUBLICSBRVICE .

.CDMPANY AND PINNACLBWBST
CAPITAL GORPORATION .A

Phbliq S¢naeq€l3if1§»ny (Cammy) MY its parent, Pinnacle ws: Capital .

Cbnixniséién (C9=r°4§°4*Yi°= gr ordeg.-utlmoriiing the Company to isazejong-term
debt' up toa 'cap' of $§j.§z_.§il1ion and ghat-tellin deist up to a "cap" equaling-the sum .
of pk of the cbhpmuys capigéliiation plus S5oo million. Pinnacle West also .reduekted
authodzitidn to.pr6"vi§é igiiigankees of the Company's debt if needed. The application is.
available fer i|1spectio 3\4i*ipg Zkrsuhr .business hours at the office .of the Commission .

Phoenix, Ariwlli. arikl the Cognpanyfs offices at'4qo North 5" Street in Phoenix, Arizona..

CorporatiOn an Apgilicatibn with the Arizona Corporation

Q \

l
I

Intervention in the §Om!§1nissfqN's sWeédinizé on the applicationshall bepermittecl -
to any person entitled by hw to intervene indhfvinéa dL;egt.substantihl.interest !n.
this matter.'PersOnsdesiring to interveNe n?i1§Lt61e a,Motion.to intervene with the ....
Commission which must be served dpOnlapplicant and Which, at a minimifm,shall -
contain the followinglhformaxionz . . '- . .

1. The name, address telephone numberof the Proposed intervenor andof
. 'any person uponWhom service of dOéurNents-it to be shade if different than

theintavenor. ` ° . . j

1 - 2. A short statement of the proposed intervenor's interest in the proceeding.

.3. Whether thepropOsgd lntervenon desixges a formal evidentiary hearing on the
` -application and the renspns for such a hearing.

.4,- A statement certifying that a copy of the MotiOn to Intervene has been mailed

to Applicants.. ` - ' -

The granting of Motions to Intervene shall be governed by A.A.C. R144-105. except that

_.dl Motions to lntervelte must be filed within 15 days after the dau: of this notice.. .

f a
'l

.-< ...
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M.EMQB;AE!lIlM
EXHIBIT

TO: Docke t Control

FROM: Ernest s
Dire ctor
Utilitie s  Divis ion

4244647

DATE : May 18, 2007

S TAF F  R E P O R T F O R  AR IZO NA P UBLIC  S E R VIC E  C O MP ANY AND
P INNAC LE  W E S T C AP ITAL C O R P O R ATIO N AP P LIC ATIO N F O R  A
F INANC ING ORDER AUTHO RIZING VARIOUS F INANC ING
TRANS ACTIONS  DOCKET NO. E-01345A-06-0779

Atta che d is the  S ta ff Re port for Arizona  P ublic S e rvice  Compa ny a nd P inna cle  We s t
Ca p ita l Co rp o ra tio n 's  jo in t a p p lica tio n  re q u e s tin g  a u th o riza tio n  fo r va rio u s  fin a n c in g
transactions and a  decla ra tory order regarding long-te rm debt class ifica tions .

S ta ff re comme nds  conditiona l a pprova l of the  va rious  fina ncing tra nsa ctions  a nd de nia l
of the  request for a  declara tory order.

Any pa rty who wis he s  ma y file  comme nts  to the  S ta ff Re port with the  Commis s ion's
Docke t Control by 4:00 p.m. on or be fore  May 28, 2007.

EGG:DRR:tdp

Originator: Dennis Rogers

Attachment: Origina l and fourteen copies
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Service  Lis t for: Arizona  Public Se rvice  Company and P innacle  West Capita l Corpora tion
Docke t No. E-01345A-06-0779

Mr. Thomas Mum aw
Post Office  Box 53999 MS 8695
Phoenix, Arizona  85702-3999

Mr. Chris tophe r C. Ke e le y
Chie f Counse l, Le ga l Divis ion
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona  85007

Mr. Ernest G. Johnson
Dire ctor, Utilitie s  Divis ion
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona  85007

Ms . Lyn Fa nne r
Chie f Adminis tra tive  La w Judge , He a ring Divis ion
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona  85007
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STAFF REPORT
UTILITIES  DIVIS ION

ARIZONA CORP ORATION COMMIS S ION

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY AND PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL
CORP ORATION

DOCKET no . E-01345A-06-0779

APPLICATION FOR A FINANCING ORDER
AUTHORIZING VARIOUS FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

MAY 18, 2007
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY AND
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

DOCKET no. E-01345A-06-0779

On December 15, 2006, Arizona Public Service Company ("APS") and Pinnacle West
Capital Corporation ("Pinnacle West"), filed a joint application with the Arizona Corporation
Commission ("Commission") request ing Commission author iza t ion of var ious financing
transactions.

APS is a  wholly owned subsidiary of Pinnacle West . APS and Pinnacle West  are
requesting the following approvals:

First,  an increase in APS' long-term indebtedness threshold from $3,198,917,000 to
$4,200,000,000,

Second, an increase in APS' short-term indebtedness threshold firm 7 percent of its total
capitalization to the sum of 7 percent of total capitalization plus $500 million

Third,  APS to determine the terms and types of both long-term and short-term debt
instruments at the time(s) of commitment or sale without further Commission approval,

Fourth, APS to enter into new mortgages and deeds of trust or similar instrument that
would establish a lien on all or substantially all of APS' property, as security for all or any part
of APS' indebtedness,

Filth, APS to enter into separate security instruments of various types that establish liens
on separate APS properties or groups of APS properties to secure particular issues or groups of
issues of indebtedness (properties constructed in the future);

Sixth, Pinnacle West asks the Commission to continue the waiver now in existence (per
Decision Nos. 65796 and 55017) of A.A.C. R 14-2-803, or alternatively to authorize Pinnacle
West to guarantee APS' debt from time to time in indeterminate amounts,

Seventh, APS seeks authorization to reimburse Pinnacle West for any amounts that
Pinnacle West is required to pay under any such guarantee along with interest on such amounts
at a rate not greater than the rate of interest payable on the debt so guaranteed and paid by
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation,

Eighth, APS seeks a declaratory order confirming that only traditional indebtedness for
borrowed money requires prior Commission authorization and that other arrangements would not
be considered continuing long-term debt when considering the sum of total long-term debt in
relation to the total debt direshold, and

Docket No. E-01345A-06~0779



Ninth, APS reques ts  tha t it may use  funds  to the  extent tha t the  purposes  se t forth in the
applica tion may be  considered reasonably chargeable  to worldng capita l requirements .

An increase  in APS ' long-te rm debt to $4,200,000,000 would crea te  a  capita l s tructure  of
43.3 pe rce nt e quity a nd 56.7 pe rce nt long-te rm de bt. S ta ff conclude s  tha t incurre nce  of the
s hort-te rm a nd long-te nn de bt for which AP S  re que s ts  a uthoriza tion, a s  modifie d by S ta ff, is
within AP S ' corpora te  P owe rs , is  compa tible  with the  public inte re s t, would not impa ir AP S '
a bility to provide  se rvice , a nd would be  cons is te nt with sound fina ncia l pra ctice s  lg subse que nt
to any debt issuance , APS can sa tis fy the  following conditions:(1) common equity must represent
a t le a s t 40 pe rce nt of tota l ca pita l (common e quity, pre fe rre d s tock, long-te rm de bt a nd short-
te rm debt) and (2) the  debt se rvice  coverage  ra tio ("DSC") must be  equa l to or grea te r than 1.0.

Staff recommends authorization of the long-term debt threshold proposed by APS subject
to the condition that subsequent to any debt issuance common equity must represent at least 40
percent of total capital and the DSC must be equal to or greater than 1.0 (calculated using the
most recent audited financial statements adjusted to reflect changes to outstanding debt).

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion for AP S  to incur short-te rm de bt not to e xce e d
$500 million above  7 pe rcent of tota l capita l a s  long a s  the  amount exceeding 7 pe rcent of tota l
capita l is  sole ly for costs  re la ting to na tura l gas  or power purchases . .

Staff further recommends that all authorizations to incur long-term debt terminate on
December 31, 2012.

Sta ff furthe r re comme nds  tha t the  a uthoriza tions  to incur short-te rm a nd long-te rm de bt
obliga tions  provide d in this  proce e ding s hould re pla ce  a ll e xis ting a uthoriza tions  a nd tha t a ll
exis ting authoriza tions  should te rmina te  upon the  e ffective  da te  of the  authoriza tions  provided in
this  proceeding.

S ta ff furthe r recommends  denia l of P innacle  West's  reques t for authoriza tion of a  wa ive r
of A.A.C. R14-2-803 purs ua nt to  A.A.C. R14-2-806. In the  a lte rna tive , S ta ff re comme nds
a uthoriza tion for P inna cle  We s t to gua ra nte e  AP S ' de bt from time  to time  in inde te rmina te
amounts.

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion for AP S  to re imburs e  P inna cle  We s t for de bt
s e rvice  cos ts  pa id by P inna cle  We s t on be ha lf of AP S  in conjunction with the  provis ion of
guarantees of APS debt and a  cost of money on those  payments a t a  ra te  not to exceed that of the
unde rlying loa n(s ).

S ta ff furthe r re commends  authoriza tion of the  othe r financing reques ts  made  by APS  in
this  applica tion except as  otherwise  specified.

S ta ff furthe r recommends  tha t short-te rm debt in excess  of 7 pe rcent of tota l capita l, tha t
is  use d sole ly for cos ts  re la ting to na tura l ga s  or powe r purcha se s  not be  a pplie d towa rd AP S '
long-term debt threshold even when the  amount remains outstanding for more  than 12 months.

Docket No. E-01345A-06-0779



S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  de nia l o f AP S ' b roa de r re que s t for a  de cla ra tory orde r
coniinning tha t only tra ditiona l inde bte dne s s  for borrowe d mone y re quire s  prior Commis s ion
authoriza tion.

Docket No. E-01345A-06-0779
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Arizona  Public Se rvice  Company and P innacle  West Capita l Corpora tion
Docke t No. E-01345A-06-0779
Page 1

Introduction

On De ce mbe r 15, 2006, Arizona  P ublic S e rvice  Compa ny ("AP S ") a nd P inna cle  We s t
Ca pita l Corpora tion ("P inna cle  We s t") file d a  joint a pplica tion with the  Arizona  Corpora tion
Commis s ion ("Commis s ion"). In this  a pplica tion, AP S  re que s ts  Commis s ion a uthoriza tion of
va rious  fina ncing tra ns a ctions  a nd a  de cla ra tory orde r re ga rding the  cla s s ifica tion of ce rta in
fina ncia l ins trume nts . P inna cle  We s t re que s ts  Commis s ion a uthoriza tion to gua ra nte e  the
indebtedness of APS.

Notic e

On March 6, 2007, APS  and P innacle  Wes t filed a ffidavits  of publica tion ve rifying public
notice  of the  fina ncing a pplica tion. AP S  a nd P inna cle  We s t publis he d notice  of the  fina ncing
a pplica tion in The  Arizona  Re public on Fe brua ry 24, 2007. The  a ffida vit of publica tion  is
a ttached a long with a  copy of the  Notice .

Compliance

There  are  no compliance  issues outstanding for APS.

Background

AP S  is  a  wholly owne d subs idia ry of the  P inna cle  We s t. Both AP S  a nd P inna cle  We s t
a re  Arizona  corpora tions , a nd e a ch ha s  its  principa l pla ce  of bus ine s s  in P hoe nix, Arizona .
De cis ion No. 55017 ("l986 Orde r") of Ma y 1986 e s ta blishe d AP S ' long-te rm de bt thre shold a t
$2,698,917,000. De cis ion No. 65796 of April 2003 a uthorize d APS  to is sue  a n a dditiona l $500
million in long-te rm de bt to re pa y P inna cle  We s t for cons truction of utility pla nt. De cis ion No.
65796 a lso designated the  $500 million issuance  as  separa te  from the  continuing debt used in the
ca lcula tion of the  tota l de bt tha t is  bound by the  $2,698,917,000 thre s hold. Thus , AP S  ha s
$2,698,917,000 of gene ra l debt authoriza tion and $500 million of specific debt authoriza tion for
a  tota l of $3,198,917,000.

Description and Terms of Proposed Financing

Long-Term Debt

APS now a sks  for authoriza tion of up to $4.2 billion in long-te rm indebtedness  inclus ive
of the  $500 million de bt is sue d pursua nt to De cis ion No. 65796. AP S  a sks  tha t this  thre shold
apply only to long-te rm debt tha t exis ts  for more  than thirty days .

APS a lso reques ts  tha t the  Commiss ion's  authoriza tion of such debt pe rmit APS, without
furthe r Commiss ion approva l, to redeem, re finance , re fund, renew, re is sue , roll-ove r, repay, or
re -borrow any of its  outs tanding long-te rm debt, to incur or issue  additiona l long-te rm debt, or to
establish, amend, or revise  any te rms or provis ions  of or re la ting to any long-te rm debt as  long as
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total long-tenm indebtedness (including current maturities thereof) at any one time outstanding
does not exceed $4.2 billion for any period of more than thirty days. In other words, APS
requests authorization to conduct a variety of activities enumerated in the application that are
necessary to secure and maintain long-term debt, subj et to certain conditions.

Short-Term Debt

AP S  a ls o s e e ks  a uthority to incre a s e  its  s hort-te nn borrowing ca pa city.
302 .D s ta te s  tha t AP S  ma y is s ue  s hort-te rm de bt in  a mounts  up  to  7  pe rce nt of its  to ta l
capita liza tion without Commiss ion approva l. The  applica tion seeks  authoriza tion to is sue  short-
te rm debt up to a  tota l of 7 pe rcent of APS ' tota l capita liza tion plus  $500 million.

ANS also requests that the Commission's authorization of such debt permit APS, without
further Commission approval, to redeem, refinance, refund, renew, reissue, roll-over, repay, or
re-borrow any of its outstanding short-tenn debt, to incur or issue any additional short-term debt,
and to the establish, amend, or revise any terms or provisions of or relating to any short-term
debt as long as total short~term debt does not exceed the sum of (1) 7 percent of APS' total
capitalization and (2) an additional $500 million. In other words, APS requests authorization to
conduct a variety of activities enumerated in the application that are necessary to secure and
maintain short-term debt, subj et to certain conditions.

Terms and Conditions of Debt

APS seeks Commission authorization to detennine the terms and types of both long-term
and short-term debt instruments at the time(s) of commitment or sale without further
Commission approval.

APS se e ks  a uthority to e nte r into ne w mortga ge s , de e ds  of trus t, or s imila r ins trume nts
tha t would e s ta blish a  lie n on a ll or subs ta ntia lly a ll of AP S ' prope rty, including a fte r-a cquire d
property, a s  security for a ll or any part of APS ' indebtedness .

AP S  s e e ks  a uthority to e nte r into s e pa ra te  s e curity ins tnime nts  of va rious  type s  tha t
establish liens on separa te  APS properties  or groups of APS properties  to secure  particular issues
or groups  of issues  of indebtedness . This  language  is  written with the  intent to include  propertie s
constructed in the  future .

Pinnacle West asks the Commission to continue the waiver now in existence (per
Decision Nos. 65796 and 55017) of A.A.C. R14-2-803, or alternatively, to authorize Pinnacle
West to guarantee APS' debt from time to time in indeterminate amounts.

APS seeks authoriza tion to re imburse  Pirmacle  West for any amounts  tha t P innacle  West
is  re quire d to pa y unde r a ny such gua ra nte e  a long with inte re s t on such a mounts  a t a  ra te  not
greater than the ra te  of interest payable  on the debt so guaranteed and paid by Pinnacle  West.
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To the  extent tha t the  purposes  se t forth in the  applica tion may be  conside red reasonably
cha rgeable  to ope ra ting expenses  or to income , APS  reques ts  tha t the  orde r or orde rs  from the
Commiss ion in this  ma tte r a uthorize  such cha rge  or cha rge s  a nd tha t the y be  de e me d working
capita l requirements .

Declaratorv Accounting Order

APS seeks a declaratory order confirming that only traditional indebtedness for borrowed
money requires prior Commission authorization and that other obligations would not be
considered continuing long-term debt when considering the sum of total long-term debt in
relation to the total debt threshold. The application describes examples of these other obligations
as long-term power purchase agreements, long-term fuel supply contracts, or similar agreements.
In response to a Staff data request, APS stated that it currently has two agreements that are
classified as long-terrn debt per generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). APS seeks
to exclude these two agreements from treatment as debt in relation to the debt threshold through
the declaratory order. These agreements are a vehicle capital lease with a balance of
approximately $6 million and a trailer rental capital lease with a balance of approximately
$75,000.

Purpos e

APS s ta tes  in the  applica tion tha t the  proceeds  from the  issuance  of long-te rm and short-
te rm debt will be  used to finance  cons truction, re source  acquis ition, and ma intenance  programs,
to re de e m or re tire  outs ta nding s e curitie s , to re pa y or re fund othe r outs ta nding long-te rm or
short-te rm debt; and to mee t ce rta in of APS ' worldng capita l and odde r ca sh requirements . The
a pplica tion a lso de scribe s  tha t the  purpose  of a ny gua ra nte e s  of AP S ' de bt by P inna cle  We s t
would be  to a llow APS to achieve  grea te r access  to the  financia l marke ts .

Engineering Analysis

Staff concludes  tha t (see  Attachment A for de ta ils ):

The  load and customer growth ra tes  of APS are  reasonably prob ected based on past
load and cus tomer growth ra tes  and overa ll popula tion growth expected for Arizona .

2. The  cus tome r re lia bility me a s ure s  for the  la s t five  ye a rs  on a n a ggre ga te  s ys te m
basis  indica te  tha t APS is  managing its  dis tribution sys tem on a  comparable  pa r with
the  be tte r pe rforming utilitie s  in the  na tion with re ga rd to re lia bility. AP S  is  in a
good pos ition to  continue  this  tre nd with continue d e mpha s is  on re lia bility a nd
appropria te  infras tructure  inves tment.

3. AP S  is  ma lting inve s tme nt in its  ca pita l pla nt ove r the  ne xt five  ye a rs  in a  ma nne r
tha t indica te s  tha t ne w cus tome rs  will be  a de qua te ly a nd time ly se rve d a nd tha t a ll
customers can expect a re a s ona ble  le ve l of re lia bility. AP S ' Five Ye a r Cons truction
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Work P la n is  a ppropria te , a nd a ssocia te d cos t e s tima te s  a re  re a sona ble . Howe ve r,
th is  doe s  no t imply a  s pe cific  tre a tme nt o r re comme nda tion  fo r ra te  ba s e  o r
ra temaking purposes  in APS ' future  ra te  filings .

S ta ff finds  tha t AP S ' growth, re lia bility, a nd ca pita l inve s tme nt pla n a re  inte gra lly
related and dependent on access to capita l.

Financ ia l Ana lys is

Long-term and Short-term Debt Thresholds

In response to a Staff data request, APS stated that its capital structure as of December
31, 2006 consisted of 52.7 percent equity ($3,204,770,000) and 47.3 percent long-term debt
($2,878,500,000). There was no short-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2006.

A pro-forma capital structure reflecting issuance of long-term debt at the requested $4.2
billion threshold consists of43.3 percent equity and 56.7 percent long-term debt.

In its  applica tion, APS  reques ts  pe rmiss ion to increa se  its  long-tenn and short-te rm debt
thre sholds . APS a lso a sks  for gene ra l authoriza tion to take  on new debt in unspecified amounts
over time . The  genera l na ture  of this  reques t ca lls  for financia l pa ramete rs  to place  conditions  on
the  borrowings  to pre ve nt APS  from ta king on a n e xce ss ive  a mount of de bt. As  thre sholds  a re
ongoing in na ture , the  financia l pa ramete rs  employed by S ta ff to condition the  ì uture  borrowings
mus t a lso be  ongoing in na ture . De bt s e rvice  cove ra ge  ra tio ("DS C") is  a n e ffe ctive  pa ra me te r
for this  purpos e  a s  it indica te s  the  a bility to s e rvice  de bt in a ll a s pe cts  a nd is  dyna mic, i.e .,
re fle cts  cha nge s  in ope ra ting re sults . Equity-to-tota l ca pita liza tion is  a lso a ppropria te  to show a
ba lance  shee t pe rspective  of financia l leve rage  and risk. Accordingly, S ta ff concludes  tha t DSC
a nd e quity-to-to ta l ca pita liza tion  pa ra me te rs  a re  e ffe ctive  for p la cing conditions  on de bt
issuances  within a  framework of threshold authoriza tions .

DS C re pre s e nts  the  numbe r of time s  in te rna lly ge ne ra te d ca s h will cove r re quire d
principa l a nd inte re s t pa yme nt on s hort-te rm a nd long-te rm de bt. A DS C gre a te r tha n 1 .0
indica te s  tha t ope ra ting ca s h flow is  s ufficie nt to cove r de bt obliga tions . A DS C le s s  tha n 1.0
means  tha t debt se rvice  obliga tions  cannot be  me t by ca sh gene ra ted from ope ra tions  and tha t
another source  of funds is  needed to avoid default.

AP S  re que s ts  pe rmis s ion to ta ke  on short-te nn de bt of 7 pe rce nt of tota l ca pita liza tion
plus  $500 million. At pre se nt, AP S  ma y obta in short-te rm de bt in a n a mount up to 7 pe rce nt of
tota l capita liza tion widiout authoriza tion from the  Commiss ion. APS  uses  short-te rm borrowings
to finance  the  purchase  of na tura l gas  for genera tion of e lectricity and for the  purchase  of power
from othe r provide rs . Fue l a nd powe r purcha se s  a re  critica l a ctivitie s  for me e ting e le ctric loa d
re quire me nts . P rude nt procure me nt pra ctice s  ma y be  a ccompa nie d by la rge  short-te rm ca pita l
requirements . Accordingly, S ta ff ha s  de te rmine d tha t s hort-te rm borrowing in e xce s s  of 7
pe rce nt of AP S ' tota l ca pita liza tion is  a ppropria te  to fa cilita te AP S ' purcha se  of na tura l ga s  or
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powe r s ince  it ha s  a n a djus te r me cha nis m providing for re cove ry of thos e  cos ts  in  wha t is
anticipa ted to be  a  short-te rm.

Approva l of the  re que s te d ne w de bt limits  would e limina te  the  ne ce s s ity for AP S  to file
financia l applica tions  whenever it has  the  need to ente r into any new debt agreements . Approva l
of the s e  ne w de bt limits  would  provide  AP S  with  the  fle xib ility to  ta ke  a dva nta ge  of a ny
fa vora ble  conditions  in the  fina ncia l ma rke ts  whe n ca pita l ne e ds  a rise . Approva l to e xce e d the
short-te rm de bt limita tion of 7 pe rce nt of ca pita liza tion for purpose s  re la te d to the  purcha se  of
na tura l gas  or power would facilita te  APS' e ffective  management of purchases  necessary to meet
e le ctric loa d re quire me nts . Accordingly, a uthoriza tion to incre a s e  the  long-te rm de bt a nd the
s hort-te rm de bt is  a ppropria te  but s hould  include  a  s pe cific  te rmina tion  da te  to  ma inta in
re a s ona ble  ove rs igh t o f AP S ' ca p ita l fina ncing  by compe lling  it to  s e e k re a u thoriza tion .
Additiona lly, a n incre a se  in the  short-te rm borrowing ca pa city is  a ppropria te  only whe n short-
te rm borrowing above  7 percent of capita liza tion is  limited to purchases  of na tura l gas  and power
and does  not exceed $500 million above  7 percent of capita liza tion.

Declaratory Accounting Order

APS ha s  re que s te d a  de cla ra tory orde r confirming tha t only tra ditiona l inde bte dne ss  for
borrowe d mone y re quire s  prior Commiss ion a uthoriza tion a nd tha t othe r obliga tions  would not
be  cons ide red continuing long-te rm debt when cons ide ring the  sum of die  tota l of long-te rm debt
in re la tion to the  tota l de bt thre s hold. Conce rns  re ga rding incurre nce  of e xce s s ive  de bt e xis t
re ga rdle s s  of the  form it ta ke s . Is s ua nce  of a  de cla ra tory orde r a s  re que s te d by AP S  would
e xe mpt ce rta in fina ncing a ctivitie s  from a ppropria te  controls  e s ta blishe d by the  long-te rm de bt
limita tions  e s ta blis he d by the  Commis s ion. P roviding AP S  a  me cha nis m for circumve nting
these  controls  has no merit.

Conclusions and Recommendations

S ta ff conclude s  tha t incurre nce  of the  s hort-te rm a nd long-te rm de bt for which AP S
reques ts  authoriza tion, a s  modified by S ta ff; is  within APS ' corpora te  Powers , is  compa tible  with
the  public inte re s t, would not impa ir AP S ' a bility to provide  s e rvice , a nd would be  cons is te nt
with sound financia l practices  if, subsequent to any debt issuance , APS can sa tis fy the  following
conditions : (1) common equity must represent a t leas t 40 pe rcent of tota l equity (common equity,
pre fe rre d s tock, long-te rm de bt a nd s hort-te rm de bt) a nd (2) the  de bt s e rvice  cove ra ge  ra tio
("DSC") is  equa l to or grea te r than 1.0.1

Sta ff further concludes  tha t:

1. APS should be  authorized to incur up to $4.2 billion in long-te rm indebtedness .

1 DSC for this purpose is calculated as operating income plus depreciation and amortization and income tax divided
by interest and principle on short-term and long -term debt less short-term debt and interest related to purchased
power and natural gas and using the most recent audited financial statements adjusted to reflect changes to
outstanding debt.

Docket No. E-01345A~06-0779 I



Arizona  Public Se rvice  Company and P innacle  West Capita l Corpora tion
Docke t No. E-01345A-06-0779
Page 6

2. AP S  s hould be  a uthorize d to incur s hort-te rm de bt of 7 pe rce nt of tota l ca pita l plus
$500  million  e xc lu s ive ly fo r the  pu rpos e  o f fina nc ing  na tu ra l ga s  a nd  powe r
acquis itions .

3. APS  should be  authorized to conduct the  activitie s  enumera ted in the  applica tion tha t
are  necessary to secure  and maintain debt.

4 . The  s hort-te rm a nd  long-te rm de bt le ve ls  a u thorize d  in  th is  p roce e ding  s hould
terminate  on December 31 , 2012.

5. The  a uthoriza tions  to incur short-te rm a nd long-te rm de bt obliga tions  provide d in this
proce e ding should re pla ce  a ll e xis ting a uthoriza tions , a nd a ll e xis ting a uthoriza tions
s hould te rmina te  upon the  e ffe ctive  da te  of the  a uthoriza tions  provide d 'm this
proceeding.

6. AP S ' le ve ls  of long-te rm de bt should be  ca lcula te d a ccording to ge ne ra lly a cce pte d
accounting principle s .

S ta ff recommends  increas ing AP S ' a uthorize d long-te rm de bt thre s hold to $4.2 billion
subj e t to the  following conditions : (1) common equity must represent a t lea s t 40 pe rcent of tota l
ca pita l (common e quity, pre fe rre d s tock, long-te rm de bt a nd short-te nn de bt) a nd (2) the  de bt
se rvice  coverage  ra tio ("DSC") must be  equa l to or grea te r than 1.0.

S ta ff furthe r recommends  tha t the  short-te rm and long-te rm debt leve ls  authorized in dis
proceeding te rminate  on December 31, 2012.

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  tha t the  a uthoriza tions  to incur short-te rm a nd long-te rm de bt
obliga tions  provide d in this  proce e ding s hould re pla ce  a ll e xis ting a uthoriza tions  a nd tha t a ll
exis ting authoriza tions  should te rmina te  upon the  e ffective  da te  of the  authoriza tions  provided in
this  proceeding.

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion for AP S  to incur short-te rm de bt not to e xce e d
$500 million a bove  7 pe rce nt of tota l ca pita l a s  long a s  1) the  e xce s s  ove r 7 pe rce nt of tota l
capita l sha ll be  used sole ly for costs  re la ting to na tura l gas  or power purchases  and 2) APS has  a
Commission authorized adjustor mechanism for recovery of these  costs .

S ta ff furthe r recommends  tha t short-te rm debt in excess  of 7 pe rcent of tota l capita l tha t
is  use d sole ly for cos ts  re la ting to na tura l ga s  or powe r purcha se s  not be  a pplie d towa rd AP S '
long-te rm debt thre shold even when the  amount rema ins  outs tanding for more  than 12 months .
S ta ff re comme nds  de nia l of AP S ' broa de r re que s t for a  de cla ra tory orde r confirming tha t only
traditiona l indebtedness  for borrowed money requires  prior Commiss ion authoriza tion.

S ta ff furthe r recommends  authoriza tion for APS to (1) conduct the  activitie s  enumera ted
in the  a pplica tion tha t a re  ne ce ssa ry to s e cure  a nd ma inta in de bt, (2) to de te rmine  the  form of
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se curity, if a ny, for the  continuing long-te rm de bt a nd the  continuing short~te rm de bt, e xe cute
a nd de live r the  se curity ins trume nts , a nd e s ta blish a nd a me nd the  te rms  a nd provis ions  of the
se curity ins trume nts , a s  ma y be  de e me d a ppropria te  by AP S  in conne ction with the  long-te nn
debt and the  short-te rm debt, and (3) to re imburse  P innacle  Wes t for debt se rvice  cos ts  pa id by
Pinnacle  West on beha lf of APS and a  cos t of money on those  payments  a t a  ra te  not to exceed
the  ra te  in the  underlying 1oan(s).

Staff further recommends that, on each occasion when APS enters into a new long-term
debt agreement, APS f ile with Docket Control a description of the transaction and a
demonstration that the rates and terns are consistent with those generally available to
comparable entities at the time.

Sta ff furthe r recommends  denia l of P innacle  West's  reques t for authoriza tion of a  wa ive r
of A.A.C. R14-2-803 purs ua nt to  A.A.C. R14-2-806. In the  a lte rna tive , S ta ff re comme nds
a uthoriza tion for P inna cle  We s t to gua ra nte e  AP S ' de bt from time  to time  in inde te rmina te
amounts.
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ATTACHMENT A

MEMORANDUM

TO: S te ve  Irvine

FROMM Steve  Taylor
Ele ctric Utilitie s  Engine e r
Utilitie s  Divis ion

'I "

THRU : De l S mith
Engine e ring S upe r
Utilitie s  Divis ion

DATE : February 21, 2007

S UBJECT: ARIZO NA P UBLIC S ERVICE CO MP ANY ("AP S ") F INANC ING
AP P LICATION DATED DEC. 15, 2006, DOCKET no. E-01345A-06-0_79

On December 15, 2006, APS submitted an application to the Arizona Corporation
Commission ("Commission") for authorization to:

(1) Incre a se  the  long te rm inde bte dne ss  of AP S  from $3.2 billion (rounde d) in the  1986
Orde r (De cis ion Numbe r 55017) a nd the  2003 Orde r (De cis ion Numbe r 65796) to the  ne w
a mount of $4.2 billion.

(2) Incre a s e  the  s hort te rm de bt limit of AP S  from 7% of AP S ' ca pita liza tion to 7% of
AP S ' ca pita liza tion plus  $500 million.

The  increa sed long te rm indebtedness  reques t will gene ra lly be  utilized for AP S ' ca pita l
construction program and the  increased short te rm indebtedness  request will genera lly be  utilized
to meet seasona l and fluctua ting working capita l requirements . Both increases  a re  directly re la ted
to the  growth of APS and the  associa ted requirements  to build new and upgrade  exis ting e lectric
sys te m infra s tructure . This  Engine e ring S ta ff Re port will the re fore  focus  on AP S ' loa d a nd
cus tomer growth, cus tomer re liability and capita l cons truction program and the  inte rre la tionship
of these  three  e lements and address if the  proposed increases in long tern and short te rm debt are
reasonable  and appropria te  from an engineering perspective .

Utility Ove rvie w

Arizona  P ublic S e rvice  ("AP S ") is  the  principa l s ubs idia ry of P inna cle  We s t Ca pita l
Corpora tion and provides  e lectric se rvice  to over 1 million Arizona  cus tomers  in a  34,646 square
mile  a re a  cove ring prima rily the  ce ntra l portion of the  s ta te  plus  sma lle r a re a s  in the  southe rn
pa rt of the  s ta te . P e a k loa d for 2006 wa s  7,652 me ga wa tts  ("MW"), a  9% incre a s e over the
previous  peak. APS gene ra tion loca ted in Arizona  and New Mexico provided 6,833 MW in 2006

1 I



prima rily from coa l (3,337 MW), followe d by nucle a r (1,868 MW) a nd the n ga s , oil a nd othe r
(l,628MW).

APS' headquarte rs  a re  loca ted a t 400 North 5th Stree t in Phoenix, AZ 85004.

Load and Customer Growth for APS

APS is  projecting an ove ra ll load growth ra te  (measured in Megawatt-hours) a t an annua l
a ve ra ge  of 3.0% for the  2007 through 2011 time  pe riod. It ha s  e xpe rie nce d a n a nnua l a ve ra ge
loa d growth ra te  of 4 ,6% for the  2003 through 2006 time  pe riod. This  loa d growth ra te  is
consis tent and comparable  across  the  residentia l, commercia l and industria l classes of customers.

This  loa d growth ra te  is  a ls o  cons is te nt with  the  growth ra te  of the  cus tome r ba s e
(measured in number of me te red cus tomers ). APS  is  projecting an ove ra ll cus tomer growth ra te
a nnua l a ve ra ge  of 3.8% for the  2007 through 2011 time  pe riod. It ha s  e xpe rie nce d a n a nnua l
average  of 3.9% customer growth ra te  for the  2003 through 2006 time  period.

Refe r to Exhibit 1 for his torica l and projected load and cus tomer base  de ta ils .

The s e  AP S ' growth e s tima te s  a re  a ppropria te  for Arizona  which ha s  be e n re porte d by
va rious  ne ws agencies a s  th e fastest growing state in  th e  c o u n t ry . Census data
(wvvw.censusscope.org) a lso supports  the se  high his torica l growth ra te s  of a pproxima te ly 40%
per decade  for the  s ta te  of Arizona  and s lightly higher (close  to 45%) for metropolitan a reas  such
as Phoenix.

Cus tome r Re lia bility fo r AP S

Arizona 's  s ta tute s  and rule s  a re  s ilent in rega rd to de fining a  specific measure  of re liable
se rvice . Howe ve r, the  Commiss ion ha s  a dopte d a  North Ame rica n Re lia bility Council ("NERC")
de finition of re lia bility for S ta ffs  us e  in the  Bie nnia l Tra ns mis s ion As s e s s me nt. Re lia bility is
compris e d of two compone nts : a de qua cy a nd s e curity. Ade qua cy is  the  a bility of a n e le ctric
system to supply the  aggrega te  e lectrica l demand and energy requirements  of its  customers  a t a ll
times , taking into account scheduled and rea sonably expected unscheduled outages  of sys tem
e lements . Security is  the  ability of an e lectric sys tem to withs tand sudden dis turbances  such a s
e le ctric short circuits  or una nticipa te d loss  of sys te m e le me nts . The se  compone nts  of re lia bility
are  subj ective , are  not easily measured and leave much to interpreta tion.

Ma ny utilitie s  use  nume rica l indice s  a s  a  me a sure  of a n a ve ra ge  cus tome r's  dis tribution
s e rvice  re lia bility. S uch re lia bility indice s  a re  typica lly compute d on a n a nnua l ba s is . A utility
may then se t re liability ta rge ts  based upon benchmarked da ta  from its  own sys tem. The  Ins titute
of Ele ctrica l a nd Ele ctronic Engine e rs  ("IEEE") ha s  a dopte d a  s ta nda rd de finition for s e ve ra l
re liability indices  for e lectric dis tribution sys tems and es tablished a  na tiona l benchmark da tabase
via  a  1995 IEEE s urve y of the  e le ctric utility indus try. The  mos t commonly us e d re lia bility
ind ice s  a re  S ys te m Ave ra ge  In te n 'up tion  Fre que ncy Inde x ("S AIFI"),  S ys te m Ave ra ge
In te rru p tio n  Du ra tio n  In d e x ("S AIDI"),  Cu s to me r Ave ra g e  In te rru p tio n  Du ra tio n  In d e x
("CAIDI") a nd Mome nta ry Ave ra ge  Inte rruption Fre que ncy Inde x ("MAIFI").
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Average SAIFI SAIDI CAIDI MAIFI
Top qua rtile 0.90 54 55 1.5

S e cond qua rtile 1.10 90 76 5.4

Ave ra ge 1.26 117 88 6.6

Third qua rtile 1.45 138 108 11.1

Bottom  qua rtile 3.90 423 197 13.7

S AIF I is  the  a ve ra ge  num be r of s us ta ine d  in te rrup tions  e xpe rie nce d  by cus tom e rs  pe r
ye a r whe re  a  s us ta ine d  in te rrup tion  is  ge ne ra lly de fine d  a s  m ore  tha n  5  c on tinuous  m inu te s .
S AIDI is  the  a ve ra ge  num be r of s us ta ine d  in te rruption  m inute s  e xpe rie nce d  by cus tom e rs  pe r
ye a r.  CAIDI is  the  a ve ra ge  dura tion of a  s us ta ine d inte rruption a nd is  e qua l to  S AIDI divide d by
S AIFI.  MAIFI is  the  a ve ra ge  num be r of m om e nta ry inte rruptions  e xpe rie nce d by cus tom e rs  pe r
ye a r whe re  a  m om e nta ry inte rruption is  ge ne ra lly de fine d a s  5 m inute s  or le s s  a nd is  a s s ocia te d
with  the  no rm a l func tion  o f e le c tric  s ys te m  re s to ra tive  de v ic e s  s uc h  a s  c irc u it b re a ke rs  a nd
re c los ure s .  P e r Rura l Utilitie s  S e rvice  (RUS ) Bulle tin  161-5, the  RUS  cons ide rs  a  S AIDI of five
h o u rs  (3 0 0  m in u te s )  o r  m o re  p e r  c o n s u m e r  a s  u n a c c e p ta b le  e x c e p t  u n d e r  v e ry u n u s u a l
c ircum s ta nce s ,  s uch a s  a  na tura l d is a s te r.  The  MAIF1 s ta tis tic  is  a  le s s e r us e d m e a s ure  in  the
indus try a s  it is  not indica tive  of longe r outa ge s , howe ve r, it doe s  me a s ure  a n "a nnoya nce  fa ctor"
with cus tom e rs  whe n s hort inte rruptions  (5  m inute s  or le s s ) a re  e xce s s ive  ca us ing the  fre que nt
re s e tting of ma ny e le ctronic de vice s  in the  home  or bus ine s s . The  IEEE 1995 S urve y e s ta blis he d
typica l re lia b ility inde x va lue s  for the  e le c tric  u tilitie s  in  the  Unite d  S ta te s  a s  d is p la ye d  in  the
Ta b le  l be low.

Ta b le  1
Typ ic a l Re lia b ility In d e x Va lu e s  fo r  US  Utilit ie s '

S ta ff propos e s  to compa re  in Ta ble  2 a ctua l AP S  dis tribution s ys te m re lia bility indice s  to
the  typica l re lia bility indice s  conta ine d in  Ta ble  l.  The  AP S  da ta  utilize d for th is  com pa ris on is
the  a ve ra ge  of the  la s t five  ye a rs  re lia bility inde xe s  for AP S  in e a ch of the  4 m e a s ure d inde xe s .
The s e  me a s ure s  a re  a n a ggre ga te  of a ll me a s ure s  ma de  on a n AP S  s ys te m wide  ba s is . Although
the re  a re  obvious ly some  va ria tions  in the  me a sure s  in diffe re nt pa rts  of AP S ' 34,646 squa re  mile
s e rvice  te rritory due  to  a  va rie ty of fa c tors ,  the  a ggre ga te  m e a s ure  is  a  re a s ona ble  indica tor of
ove ra ll re lia b ility.  Add itiona lly,  the s e  AP S  m e a s ure s  in  Ta b le  2  e xc lude  "Ma jo r E ve n t Da ys "
g e n e ra lly a s s o c ia te d  with  m a jo r s to rm s  a n d  s c h e d u le d  o u ta g e s  g e n e ra lly a s s o c ia te d  with
m a in te na nce  o r cons truc tion  work a c tiv itie s  p re  a rra nge d  to  m in im ize  cus tom e r im pa c t.  Th is
a djus tm e nt,  in  S ta ffs  v ie w, provide s  a  fa ire r outs ide  com pa ris on  to  the  IEEE 1995 da ta  which
wa s  n o t c o lle c te d  with  th e  d e g re e  o f s p e c ific ity to  d iffe re n tia te  a ll o u ta g e s  in c lu d e d  in  th e
S urve y.

On this  ba s is , S ta ff ca n ma ke  a n obje ctive  a s s e s s me nt of the  qua lity of s e rvice  be ing
provided to APS  dis tribution sys tem cus tomers . The  re sults  of this  comparison a re  summarized
in Table  2 be low with the  APS five  yea r ave rage  s ta tis tics  pos itioned in the  corre sponding IEEE
qua rtile  from Ta ble  1. The  re s ults  s how tha t a ll AP S  re lia bility inde xe s  corre s pond to S e cond
Quartile  performance .

1 1995 IEEE S urve y

3



Ra n kin g SAIFI SAIDI CAIDI MAIFI
Top qua rtile X X X X
S e cond qua rtile 1.06 89.2 73.8 2.5

Third  qua rtile X X X X
Bottom  qua rtile X X X X

Ye a r S AIF I S AID I CAIDI MAIFI
2002 0.96 75 72 2.3

2003 1.16 94 7 1 2.6

2004 0.99 78 69 2.5

2005 1.13 108 81 2.6

2006 1.07 9 1 76 2.5

Ye a r S AIF I S AID I CAIDI
2002 1.04 101 97

2003 1.33 104 78

2004 1.12 9 1 81

2005 1.33 141 106

2006 1.19 123 103

Ta b le  2
AP S  R e lia b ility In d e x Va lu e s  Co m p a re d  to  Typ ic a l fo r  US  Utilit ie s

An a dditiona l com pa ris on re vie wing the  im prove m e nt or de gra da tion of the s e  re lia bility
s ta tis tics  ove r the  la s t 5 ye a rs  is  a lso use ful to de te rmine  the  like ly future  tre nd of the se  me a sure s .
The  AP S  s ta tis tic s  by ye a r a nd  withou t "Ma jo r E ve n t Da ys " a re  no te d  be low in  Ta b le  3 .  The
re s ults  indica te  fa irly s ta ble  pe rform a nce  ove r the  five  ye a r pe riod with no unus ua l de via tions  in
the  individua l ye a rs  or incre a s ing tre nds  of conce rn.

Ta b le  3
AP S  Re lia b ility  In d e x with o u t  "Ma jo r  Eve n t  Da ys "  fo r  La s t  F ive  Ye a rs

"Ma jor Eve nt Da ys" a re  a ssocia te d with ma jor s torms  a nd othe r unusua l e ve nts  a nd a re
norma lly not include d in compa risons  to othe r utilitie s  due  to the  unique  na ture  of e ve nts  tha t
utilitie s  mus t pre pa re  for in diffe re nt ge ogra phic a re a s . The y a re  none the le s s  a  me a s ure  of
pe rformance  tha t can be  used in yea r to yea r comparisons  in any pa rticula r utility to disce rn any
tre nds  tha t should be  a ddre s se d. The  AP S ' s ta tis tics  by ye a r a nd with "Ma jor Eve nt Da ys" a re
note d be low in Ta ble  4. Note  tha t MAIFI (mome nta ry inte rruptions  of 5 minute s  or le s s ) a re  not
me a s ure d in "Ma jor Eve nt Da ys " due  to unknown na ture  of ca us e s  in s torm conditions . The
re sults  in Ta ble  4 a ga in indica te  fa irly s ta ble  pe rforma nce  ove r the  five  ye a r pe riod with some
increas ing trends  noted, however, the re  a re  no indica tions  of s ignificant conce rn in this  five  yea r
tes t period.

Ta b le  4
AP S  Re lia b ility  In d e x with  "Ma jo r  Eve n t  Da ys "  fo r  La s t  F ive  Ye a rs

The s e  s ta tis tics  in  Ta ble s  1  through 4  a nd the  com pa ris ons  re vie we d im ply tha t AP S  is
m a na ging its  dis tribution s ys te m  on a  com pa ra ble  pa r with  the  be tte r pe rform ing utilitie s  in  the
na tion  with  re ga rd  to  re lia b ility.  Additiona lly,  AP S  re v ie ws  a nd  prio ritize s  the  pe rform a nce  of

4 I



Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 5 Ye a r Tota l

S O P roduction 320 262 289 214 210 1,295
S Transmission 174 222 283 182 214 1,075
s  Dis tribution 320 307 317 326 333 1,603
S General Plant 82 133 134 123 119 591

$ Tota l 896 924 1,023 845 876 4,564

the ir a pproxima te ly 1,200 dis tribution fe e de rs  (4 kV through 21 kg) a nd ma ke s  corre sponding
inve s tme nt for e ffe ctive  us e  of a va ila ble  funds . S imila r a tte ntion is  pa id to the  tra ns mis s ion
s ys te m (69  kV th rough  500  kg ) with  a  fo rce d  ou ta ge  pe r 100  mile  pe r ye a r me tric  a nd
corre s ponding prioritiza tion of ne e de d work. In both the  tra ns mis s ion a nd dis tribution ca s e s ,
continued capita l and ma intenance  inves tment in e lectric sys tem infra s tructure  will be  necessa ry
to ma inta in this  pre sent leve l of re liability e specia lly in view of the  increas ing load and cus tomer
requirements  discussed earlie r.

Cons truc tion  Work P lan  for 2007 through 2011 for AP S

APS has  submitted Five  Year Capita l Budge t Expenditures  with itemiza tion by cla sses  a s
noted and discussed below:

Note : a ll $ a re  in millions

Additiona l de ta il in  e a ch cla s s  of e xpe nditure  is  provide d in Exhibit 2 . AP S  ha s  the
re s pons ibility to ma ke  prude nt infra s tructure  inve s tme nt to e ns ure  re lia ble  a nd cos t e ffe ctive
e lectric se rvice  to its  cus tomers . S ta ff ha s  no pos ition and makes  no recommenda tion on the se
expenditures  for pnudency or ra temaking purposes , however, the  following genera l obse rva tions
are noted.

A review of the  production cla ss  shows  tha t projected expenditure s  a re  divided be tween
nuclea r plant fue l and other nuclea r upgrades  a t approximate ly 35% of tota l production class  and
foss il, hydro and gas  plant upgrades  a t approxima te ly 65% of tota l production cla ss . In tota l, the
production prob e cte d e xpe nditure s  a re  a pproxima te ly 28% of AP S  five  ye a r tota l proje cte d
e xpe nditure s . The s e  production to ta ls  a re  ge ne ra lly comme ns ura te  with  me e ting growth
projections  and ma inta ining re liable  se rvice .

A review of the  transmiss ion cla ss  shows tha t projected expenditures  a re  cons is tent with
proje cts  in the  APS  Te n Ye a r P la n a nd the  la te s t ACC Bie nnia l Tra nsmiss ion Asse ssme nt. The
tra ns mis s ion proje cte d e xpe nditure s  a re  a pproxima te ly 24% of AP S  five  ye a r tota l proje cte d
expenditures  and are  genera lly commensura te  with meeting growth prob sections and mainta ining
re liable  se rvice .

A review of the  dis tribution cla ss  shows tha t projected expenditures  a re  divided be tween
Ne w Cus tome r Cons truction a t a pproxima te ly 60% of tota l dis tribution cla s s  a nd dis tribution
upgra de s  a t a pproxima te ly 40% of tota l dis tribution cla s s . In tota l, the  dis tribution proje cte d
e xpe nditure s  a re  a pproxima te ly 35% of AP S  five  ye a r tota l proje cte d e xpe nditure s . The s e
dis tribution tota ls  a re  gene ra lly commensura te  with mee ting growth projections  and ma inta ining
re liable  se rvice .
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A re vie w of the  ge ne ra l p la nt cla s s  s hows  tha t proje cte d  e xpe nditure s  a re  d ivide d
be twe e n informa tion te chnology sys te ms  a t more  tha n 50% (not pre cise ly disce rna ble ) of tota l
genera l plant class  and the  remaining genera l plant ca tegory associa ted with new se rvice  cente rs
a nd office /p la nt build ing upgra de s . In  to ta l, the  ge ne ra l p la nt proje cte d  e xpe nditure s  a re
approxima te ly 13% of APS five  yea r tota l projected expenditure s . These  gene ra l plant tota ls  a re
genera lly commensura te  with meeting growth prob actions  and mainta ining re liable  se rvice .

The  overa ll pe rcentage  dis tributions  of each capita l expenditure  class  a re  genera lly in line
with  S ta ffs  e xpe c ta tions  a nd  compa ra b le  with  o the r u tilitie s a d jus te d  fo r powe r p la n t
diffe rences .

Conclusions and Recommendations

Ba se d on the  re vie w of AP S ' a nticipa te d loa d a nd cus tome r growth, cus tome r re lia bility
s ta tis tics  and 2007-2011 Cons truction Work P lans , it is  S ta ffs  conclus ion tha t:

The  load and cus tomer growth ra te s  of APS a re  reasonably projected based on pas t
load and cus tomer growth ra tes  and overa ll popula tion growth expected for Arizona .

The  customer re liability measures  for the  las t five  years  on an aggrega te  system basis
indica te  APS is  managing its  dis tribution sys tem on a  comparable  pa r with the  be tte r
pe rforming utilitie s  in the  na tion with re ga rd to re lia bility. AP S  is  in a  good pos ition
to  con tinue  th is  tre nd  with  con tinue d  e mpha s is  on  re lia b ility a nd  a ppropria te
infra s tructure  inves tment.

3. APS is  making inves tment in its  capita l plant over the  next five  years  in a  manner tha t
indica te s  new cus tomers  will be  adequa te ly and time ly se rved and a ll cus tomers  can
e xpe ct a  re a s ona ble  le ve l of re lia bility. AP S ' Five  Ye a r Cons truction Work P la n is
a ppropria te  a nd a s socia te d cos t e s tima te s  a re  re a sona ble . Howe ve r, this  doe s  not
imply a  specific trea tment or recommenda tion for ra te  ba se  or ra te  making purposes
in AP S ' future  ra te  filings .

S ta ff kinds  APS  growth, re liability and capita l inves tment plans  a re  integra lly re la ted
and dependent on access to capital.

2 Unisource Energy Services (Docket E-04204A-06-0493)

2.

4.

1.
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E-01345A-05-0816
E-01345A-05-0826 &
E-01345A-05-0827

f\l'5- 17
APS Construction Expenditure Projection (as of 08/28/06)

$Mllllons
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Nuclear [APS Share)

Nuclear Fuel

Steam Generator, Unit 3

Reactor Vessel Head, Units 1, 2, 3

WaterReclamation Projects - Reservoir & Evan Pond Work

Low-PressureTulaneReplacement

Other Nuclear PowerPlant Improvements - Inducesregulatory, safety,
reliability, or effldency projedsnot listedabove 20 16 6 as

Total Nuclear

Fossil 6 Hvdro (APS Share)
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e

CB so

Choila Envimnmenlal- Inckzdes Bughouse, Scrubber, andother
Environmental proleds 59 72 57 42 33 264

Four Comers Environmental - Induces NOX abatement, particulate
control, and otherEnvironmentalprojects 10 9 21 34 47 121

Navajo Environmental - Includes NOX abatement and usher
Environmental projects a 2 2 2 e

Other Coal Plant projects - Induces regulatory, safety, reliabllity, and
efficiency projects at ado! plants 39

4

CB

44

7

4

38

6

2

Environmental Projects at Gas Plants

Long-Term Service Agreement Costs at Redhawk. West Phoenix

Yuma Peaking Plant

44
2
1

51

40

7

1

15 Q

205

26

SO

66

Er Gas Plant projects - lrsdudss capital costs for regulatory, safety,
ability, and efhdency projects at gas plants 15

3

33

2

a

2

5 14 75

7Chills I Irving Decomissicnlng

Total Fossil& Hydro (1) 185 179 191 1 3 8 142 836

Total Production 320 262 289 214 210 1 ,29s
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* 1

E-01345A-05-0816
E-01345A-05-0826 a
E-01345A-05-0827 APS Construction Expenditure Projection (as of 08/26/06)

SWIUDM

2007 zoo; :man
5- yr
Total

Transmission & Distribution

40 45

Transmlsslon

Selected Major Transmission Projects

Palo Verde - TS5 (TS5 to be localed northwest ofWhite Tanks)

T55 - TSB (TSP Io be located near existing Racewaysubstation) 28 51

93

BE

TS5 - TS1 (TSP to be located southwest( of 195th Av & Deer Valley)

TSP - Paw Valry . '

TSP - Pinnacle Peak 5DDkV

10

10

s

14 12

14

36

9

U

45

5

13

i s

37 42

36

37

113

93Palo Verde - North Gila 500kV

All OtherTransmissionInfrastructure Addilions aUpgrades - induces
Line& Substailon additions & upgrades for 69kV and above voyage
not listed above 114 94 137 49 72 466

Transmission Reiabllity Projects - Induces Breaker, Capacitor. and
Reader projects; HomelaMSecurity-relatedsparetransibrmers & .
breakers, and other major reliabilityproieds

Transmission relocations & emergency projects

Total Transmission (2)

21

5

114

19

5

222

25

5

283

24

5

182

34

5

214

123

25

1,o7s

BD GO so 59 53 323

38 39 45 47 49 218

Distribulkvh .
Distribution Infrastructure projects - Induces Line & Substations
additions & upgrades

Distribution Reliability Projects - induces projects for substation,
overhead, and underground equipment

Other Distribution Prqfeds - Safety, Relotzlion l Conversion,
agency, and other pauiects 20 20 25 25 29 120

Customer Construction
Meters
Transformers
Service a Line Exlenslons
Street Light / Dusk-in-Dawh

25
34

Na
4

25
33

123
4

25
32

12a
4

25
31

134
4

25
28

135
4

126
158
638
20

Total Distribution 320 307 317 325 333 1,soa

Total Transmission 8. Distribution 494 529 G00 508 547 2,678

General Plant

Customer Service infofmaiion systems

Distribution operations & work-management systems

Material Logistics Information System

6

11

15

g

1 4

12

1

7

11

25

5

10

19

47

53

45

Alt Other Info Sys Projects -inducesinfrastructure additions, equipment
reply¢:emer\L and alt other Generation, Tao, andShared Services
systems& Telecom

Facilities - induces new servicecenters_ upgrades of existingfacilities,
and replacements of mechanic equipment,plumbing,eta at APS
facilities.

32 51 54 42 41 zoo

31 57 51 36 42 217

Other General Plant 2 1 2 2 2 g

Total General Plant 82 133 134 123 119 591

Total APS 896 924 1,023 845 876 4,555

(1) Assumes no self-build ccsls for new generation projects other than Yuma peaking plant.

Excludes costs for TrensWest Express and other new transmission projects associated with new resource acquisitions.

Page 2 of 2 AP S 08356
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Arizona Public Service ("APS") hereby certifies that the attached copy of the Public Notice was published within
APS' service territory, which ran in the Arizona Republic on February 24, 2007.

Docket Control
Arizona Corporation Commission
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, AZ 85007

March B, 2007

Dear Sir or Madam:

RE:

Sincerely,

Attachment

If you or your staff have any questions, please feel free tocall me.

Barbara Klemstine

cc:

BAK/bec

Barbara Klemstine
Director
Regulation & Pricing

PUBLIC NOTICE UNDER DOCKET no. E-01345A-06-0779

Lyn Farmer
Steve Irvine
Christopher Kempley
Docket Control (Original, plus 13 copies)

Tel. 602-250-4553
Fax 602-250-3003
e~mail Barbara.KIemstlne@aps.oom
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Mail Station 9708
PO Box 53999
Phoenix, Arizona B5072-3999
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THE ARIZONA REPUBLIC

S TATE OF AR1ZONA
COUNTY OF MARICOP A s s .

Marilyn Greenwood, being first duly sworn, upon oath
deposes and says: That she is. a legal advertising
representative of the Arizona Business Gazette, a newspaper
of general circulation in the county of Maricopa, State of
Arizona, published at Phoenix, Arizona, by Phoenix
Newspapers Inc., which also publishes The Arizona
Republic, and that the copy hereto attached is a true copy of
die advertisement published in the said paper on the dates as
indicated.

The Arizona Republic

02/24/2001

Sworn to before me this
26"" day of
February A.D. 2007

KAREN WAY
Notary pubic - Arizona
Néxicopa County
Expires 08/31/09 _MUM

Nota ry Laic

t
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EXHIBIT

BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

MIKE GLEASON
Chairman

WILLIAM A. MUNDELL
Commissioner

JEFF HATCH-MILLER
Commissioner

KRISTIN K. MAYES
Commissioner

GARY PIERCE
Commissioner

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF )
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY FOR )
AN ORDER OR ORDERS AUTI-IORIZING IT )
TO ISSUE, INCUR, AND AMEND EVIDENCES )
OF LONG-TERM INDEBTEDNESS, TO )
EXECUTE NEW SECURITY INCTRUMENTS )
TO SECURE ANY SUCH INDEBTEDNESS, )
TO REPAY AMOUNTS PAID UNDER ANY )
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION )
GUARANTEE OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE )
COMPANY INDEBTEDNESS OF AND FOR )
DECLARATORY ORDER )

DOCKET no. E-01345A-07-0779

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF )
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION )
FOR AN ORDER OR ORDERS AUTI-IORIZING )
IT TO GUARANTEE THE INDEBTEDNES OF )
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY )

DIRECT TESTHVIGNY

OF

GORDON L. FOX

PUBLIC UTILITIES ANALYST MANAGER

UTILITIES DIVISION

ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

JULY 18, 2007
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

DOCKET NO. E-01345A-06-0779

On December 15, 2006, Arizona Public Service Company ("APS") and Pinnacle West Capital
Cor por a t ion ("P inna cle Wes t ")  f i led a  joint  a pp lica t ion with the Ar izona  Cor por a t ion
Commiss ion ("Commiss ion')  r eques t ing Commiss ion author iza t ion of  va r ious  f inancing

transactions and a declaratory order regarding long-tenn debt classifications. On May 18, 2007,
S ta ff  f i led a  S ta ff  Repor t  r ecommending condit iona l approva l of  the va r ious  f inancing
transactions and denial of the request for  a declaratory order.  On May 29, 2007, APS tiled
comments on the Staff Report. On June 22, 2007, the Commission Chief Administrative Law
Judge issued a Procedural Order scheduling a hearing in this matter  for  July 23, 2007, and
ordering APS, Staff and any intervenor to file with Docket Control all exhibits to be used at the
hearing no later than July 18, 2007. The purpose of this testimony by Staff witness Gordon L.
Fox is to comply with the requirements of the Procedural Order and to present Staff's final
position, which includes consideration of APS' comments to the Staff Report.

Staff understands that APS supports Staff's fundamental recommendations but seeks specific
modifications and clarifications. S ta ff  has  only minor  content ions  with APS '  comments
including: (l) the need to provide exemptions for  exist ing obligat ions rela ted to the sa le-
leaseback of Unit 2 of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station to the termination of existing
authorizations on December 31, 2012, (2) allowing an exemption to the tennination of the long-
term debt  threshold on December  31,  2012 under  specified circumstances,  and (3) Staffs
preferred use of annual audited financial statements as opposed to quarterly financial reports for
application of the common equity test.

Staff makes the following recommendations :

Staff recommends increasing APS' authorized long-term debt threshold to $4.2 billion subj act to
the following conditions: (1) common equity divided by common equity and long-term debt
(including current maturities) is 40 percent or greater using the most recent audited financial
statements adjusted to reflect changes to outstanding debt and (2) modified debt service coverage
ratio is equal to or greater than 2.0.

Staff fur ther  recommends that  the shor t-term and long-term debt levels author ized in this
proceeding terminate on December 31, 2012.

Staff fur ther  recommends tha t  the author iza t ions to incur  shor t-term and long-term debt
obligations provided in this proceeding replace all existing authorizations to incur new short-
term and long-term debt obligations, that all existing authorizations to incur new short-term and
long-term debt obligations terminate upon the effective date of the authorizations provided in
this proceeding, and that all existing obligations remain valid.

Staff further recommends authorization for APS to incur short-term debt not to exceed $500
million above 7 percent of total capital provided that (1) the excess over 7 percent of total capital



sha ll be  used sole ly for cos ts  re la ting to na tura l ga s  or power purchase s  and (2) a s  APS  has  an
a uthorize d a djus tor me cha nism for re cove ry of the se  kinds  of cos ts . In the  e ve nt tha t a djus tor
mechanism is  te rmina ted, the  short-te rm debt authoriza tions  granted should continue  for only an
additiona l 12 months .

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion for AP S  to (l) conduct the  a ctivitie s  e nume ra te d in the
applica tion tha t a re  necessa ry to secure  and ma inta in debt, (2) to de te rmine  the  form of security,
if any, for the  continuing long-te rm debt and the  continuing short-te rm debt, execute  and de live r
the  s e curity ins trume nts , a nd e s ta blis h a nd a me nd the  te rms  a nd provis ions  of the  s e curity
ins trume nts , a s  ma y be  de e me d a ppropria te  by AP S  in conne ction with the  long-te rm de bt a nd
the  short-te rm debt, and (3) to pay a ll re la ted expenses , a ll as  contempla ted in the  applica tion and
by the  exhibits  and te s timony.

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  tha t whe n AP S  e nte rs  into a  s ingle  a gre e me nt/tra ns a ction or a n
a ggre ga te  of s imila r a gre e me nts /tra nsa ctions  or a n a me ndme nt(s ) to a n e xis ting a gre e me nt(s )
with a  s ingle  entity in which APS  incurs  long-tenn debt exceeding $5,000,000 within a  ca lenda r
ye a r, tha t AP S  tile  with Docke t Control within 90 da ys  a  de scription of the  tra nsa ction(s ) a nd a
de mons tra tion tha t the  ra te s  a nd te rms  we re  cons is te nt with  thos e  ge ne ra lly a va ila ble  to
comparable  entities  a t the  time .

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  de nia l of P inna cle  We s t's  re que s t for a uthoriza tion of a  wa ive r of
A.A.C. Rule  14-2-803 pursua nt to A.A.C. Rule  14-2-806. In the  a lte rna tive , S ta ff re comme nds
a uthoriza tion for P inna cle  We s t to gua ra nte e  AP S ' de bt from time  to time  in inde te rmina te
amounts.

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion for AP S  to re imburs e  P inna cle  We s t for de bt s e rvice
cos ts  pa id by P innacle  West on beha lf of APS in conjunction with the  provis ion of gua rantees  of
APS debt and a  cos t of money on those  payments  a t a  ra te  not to exceed tha t of the  unde rlying
1oan(s).

S ta ff furThe r re comme nds  de nia l e t AP S ' re que s t for a  de cla ra tory orde r confining tha t only
traditiona l indebtedness  for borrowed money requires  prior Commiss ion authoriza tion.

.

An increase  in APS ' long-te rm debt to $4,200,000,000 would crea te  a  current capita l s tructure  of
43.3 percent equity and 56.7 percent long-terrn debt..



Dire c t Te s timony of Gordon L. Fox
Docke t No. E-01345A-06-0779
P a ge  1

1 INTRODUCTION

2 Q- Please state your name, occupation, and business address.

3

4

5

My na me  is  Gordon L. FOX. I a m a  P ublic Utilitie s  Ana lys t Ma na ge r e mploye d by the

Arizona  Corpora tion  Commis s ion  ("ACC" or "Colnrn is s ion") in  the  Utilitie s  Divis ion

("S ta ff"). My bus iness  address  is  1200 West Washington S tree t, Phoenix, Arizona  85007.

6

7 Q- Brie fly de s cribe  your re s pons ibilitie s  a s  a  P ublic Utilitie s  Ana lys t Ma na ge r.

8

9

1 0

11

In my ca pa city a s  a  P ublic Utilitie s  Ana lys t Ma na ge r, I s upe rvis e  a na lys ts  whos e  dutie s

include  prepa ra tion of te s timonies  to provide  the  Commiss ion with S ta ff recommenda tions

regarding ra te  base , opera ting income, cos t of capita l, ra te  des ign, securitie s  issuance  and

othe r financia l regula tory ma tte rs .

1 2

1 3 Q- Please describe your educational background and professional experience.

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

20

I have  seventeen years ' regula tory utility auditing and ra te  ana lysis  experience  (14 years  a t

the  Commiss ion a nd 3 ye a rs  a t RUCO) a nd four ye a rs ' e xpe rie nce  with a  ca ble  TV utility

with re s pons ibility for pre pa ring a nd pre s e nting ra te  a pplica tions  be fore  juris dictiona l

a uthoritie s . I ha ve  ma s te r a nd ba che lor de gre e s  in Accounting, a nd I ha ve  e a rne d the

following profe s s iona l a ccounting a nd fina nce  ce rtifica tions : Ce rtifie d P ublic Accounta nt

("CP A"),  Ce rtifie d  Ma n a g e me n t Ac c o u n ta n t ("CMA") a n d  Ce rtifie d  in  F in a n c ia l

Ma na ge me nt ("CFM").

2 1

22 Q. What is the purpose of your testimony in this case?

23

24

25

On De ce mbe r 15, 2006, Arizona  P ublic S e rvice  Compa ny ("AP S ") a nd P inna cle  We s t

Ca pita l Corpora tion ("P inna cle  We s t") file d  a  jo int a pplica tion with  the  Commis s ion

re que s ting Commiss ion a uthoriza tion of va rious  fina ncing tra nsa ctions  a nd a  de cla ra tory

L u

26

A.

A.

A.

A.

orde r re ga rding long-te rm de bt c la s s ifica tions . On Ma y 18 , 2007 , S ta ff file d  a  S ta ff
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Docke t No. E-01345A-06-0779
Page 2

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Re port re comme nding conditiona l a pprova l of the  va rious  fina ncing tra ns a ctions  a nd

de nia l of the  re que s t for a  de cla ra tory orde r. On Ma y 29, 2007, AP S  tile d comme nts

("Cornrne n ts ") on  the  S ta ff Re port. O n  J u n e  2 2 ,  2 0 0 7 ,  th e  Co mmis s io n  Ch ie f

Adminis tra tive  La w Judge  is sue d a  P roce dura l Orde r sche duling a  he a ring in this  ma tte r

for July 23, 2007, a nd orde re d AP S , S ta ff a nd a ny inte rve nor to file  with Docke t Control

a ll e xhibits  to be  us e d a t the  he a ring no la te r tha n J uly 18, 2007. The  purpos e  of this

te s timony is  to comply with the  re quire me nts  of the  P roce dura l Orde r a nd to pre s e nt

S ta ff s  upda te d pos ition tha t include s  cons ide ra tion of AP S ' Comme nts  to  the  S ta ff

9 Re port.

1 0

11 EXHIBITS

1 2 Q- What exhibits does Staff anticipate using at the hearing?

13

1 4

Sta ff anticipa te s  us ing this  te s timony, the  S ta ff Report and its  a ttachments  and a ll exhibits

use d by APS . The  S ta ff witne ss  is  Mr. Gordon L. Fox.

1 5

1 6

17

STAFF'S RESPONSE TO APS' COMMENTS TO THE STAFF REPORT

What is  Staff's  genera l understanding of APS' Comments  to the  StaffReport?Q.

1 8 S ta ffs  unde rs ta nding is  tha t AP S  s upports  S ta ffs  funda me nta l re comme nda tions  but

seeks  specific modifica tions  and cla rifica tions .1 9

2 0

2 1

22

MODIFICATIONS TO THE CONDITIONS TO ISSUANCES OF LONG-TERM DEBT

Does  APS seek modifications  to Staffs  recommended conditions  to is suances  of debt?Q.

23

24

25

26

A.

A.

A. Ye s . S ta ff re comme nde d "incre a s ing AP S ' a uthorize d long-te nn de bt thre s hold to $4.2

billion s ubj e t to the  following conditions : (l) common e quity mus t re pre s e nt a t le a s t 40

pe rce nt of tota l ca pita l (common e quity, pre fe rre d s tock, long-te rm de bt a nd s hort-te rm

de bt) a nd (2) the  de bt s e rvice  cove ra ge  ra tio ("DS C") mus t be  e qua l to or gre a te r tha n



Dire ct Te s timony of Gordon L. Fox
Docke t No. E-01345A-06-0_79
Page 3

1 1.0." AP S  se e ks  thre e  modifica tions  to S ta ff" s  re comme nde d conditions  to is sua nce s  of

2 debt.

3

4 Modifica tion No. 1 .- Applica tion of Conditions

5 Q- What is the first modification requested by APS?

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

The  Exe cutive  S umma ry of the  S ta ff Re port, in s umma rizing S ta ffs  re comme nda tion,

s ta te s , "S ta ff recommends  authoriza tion of the  long-te rm debt threshold proposed by APS

subject to the  condition tha t subsequent to a ny de bt (emphasis  added) issuance  common

equity must represent a t lea s t 40 pe rcent of tota l capita l and the  DSC must be  equa l to or

grea te r than 1.0 (ca lcula ted us ing the  most recent audited financia l s ta tements  adjus ted to

re flect changes  to outs tanding debt)."

1 2

13

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

AP S  ide ntifie d a  dis cre pa ncy be twe e n S ta ffs  re comme nda tion in the  S ta ff Re port tha t

a pplie s  the  conditions  to  long-te rm de bt is s ua nce s  ve rs us  S ta ffs  s ta te me nt in  the

Exe cutive  S umma ry tha t a pplie s  the  conditions  to a ny de bt is sua nce s . AP S  s ta te s , "The

Compa ny a gre e s  tha t a  s hort-te nn de bt compone nt would be  include d in the  cove ra ge

ca lcula tions  a t the  time  the  Compa ny is s ue s  long-te rm de bt." (Comme nts  a t 3). S ta ff

a gre e s  with the  Compa ny's  cla rifica tion tha t the  conditions  would be  a pplie d a t the  time

the  Company issues  long-tenn debt and tha t the  ca lcula tion would include  short-tem debt.

20

2 1

22

Modification No. 2 ... Calculation of Common Equity Test

What is the second modification requested by APS?Q.

23

24

25

26

The  S ta ff Re port de fine s  the  40 pe rce nt e quity te s t a s  a  fra ction with common e quity a s

the  numera tor and the  aggrega te  of common equity, pre fe rred s tock, long-tenn debt and

s hort-te rm de bt a s  the  de nomina tor. AP S  s ugge s ts  us ing the  de finition a dopte d in

De cis ion No. 65796 tha t use s  common e quity a s  the  nume ra tor a nd common e quity a nd

A.

A.

9
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1

2

long-te rm debt (including current maturities) as  the  denomina tor. APS sugges ts  this

change  "for the  sake  of consis tency." (Comments  a t 3). Staff has  no objection to the

3 Company's suggested change.

4

5 In a ddition, a ccording to the  S ta ff Re port, the  40 pe rce nt e quity te s t would use  "the  mos t

6 recent audited financial statements adjusted to reflect changes to outstanding debt." APS

7 instead proposes to use "the most recent fiscal quarter." (Comments at 3). Staff continues

to advocate use of audited financial statements.8

9

1 0 Modifica tion No. 3 - Debt Service  Coverage Ratio

1 1 What is  the  third modifica tion requested by APS?

1 2

13

1 4

15

1 6

For the  purpose  of measuring the  DSC conditiona l requirement for debt issuance , the  S ta ff

Re port de fine s  DSC a s  ope ra ting income  plus  de pre cia tion a nd a mortiza tion a nd income

tax divided by inte res t and principle  on short-te rm and long-te rm debt le ss  short-te rm debt

and inte res t re la ted to purchased power and na tura l gas  and using the  most recent audited

Financia l s ta tement adjusted to reflect change to outstanding debt.

1 7

1 8

1 9

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

26

A.

Q.

APS proposes to use a  "Modified DSC" that would exclude principal debt repayments.

(Comments  a t 5). Exhibit B of APS ' Comments  provides  a  de ta iled example  of its

proposed Modified DSC calculation. Staff has no objection to use of the Modified DSC

as a  conditional requirement for debt issuance. Howe ve r, the  Modifie d DSC is  not

directly comparable  to Sta ff's  proposed DSC. In ge ne ra l, the  Modifie d DS C is  a

considerably less restrictive standard. Staff's  DSC is roughly twice as restrictive as the

Modified DSC. If the Commission were to adopt the modified DSC approach, it would be

necessary to adjust it upward. In other words , s ince Staff recommended a  1.0 DSC

conditional requirement, a similar conditional requirement is a Modified DSC of 2.0.

i
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1 CLARIFICATION/MODIFICATION TO SHORT-TERMDEBTRECOMMENDATIONS

2 Q. Does APS seek clarification/modification to Staff's recommended conditions to

3 issuances of short-term debt?

4 Ye s . S ta ff re comme nde d "a uthoriza tion for AP S  to incur s hort-te rm de bt not to e xce e d

5

6

7

8

$500 million a bove  7 pe rce nt of tota l ca pita l a s  long a s  1) the  e xce s s  ove r 7 pe rce nt of

tota l capita l sha ll be  used sole ly for costs  re la ting to na tura l gas  or power purchases  and 2)

ANS has  a  Commission-authorized adjus tor mechanism for recovery of these  costs ." (S ta ff

Re port a t 6) APS  se e ks  two cla rifica tions /modifica tions  to S ta ffs  re comme nda tion.

9

1 0 Clariiica tion/Modifica tion No. 1 .-. Define  "thes e  cos ts ."

11 Q- Wh a t is the firs t c la rific a tion /modiiic a tion to S ta ff's s ho rt-te rm de b t

1 2 re comme nda tions  re que s te d  by AP S ?

13

1 4

APS suggests replacing the phrase "for recovery of these costs" to "for recovery of natural

gas or power purchases" to provide clarity. Staff supports this change.

1 5

1 6 Q- What is the second clarification/modification to Staff's short-term debt

1 7 recommendations requested by APS?

18

1 9

20

21

22

23

APS sugges ts  tha t the  authoriza tion re la ted to issuance  of short-te rm debt granted by the

Commis s ion  no t te rmina te  concomita n tly with  the  te rmina tion  o f a  Commis s ion -

authorized adjus tor mechanism. Ins tead, APS reques ts  tha t, in the  event tha t the  adjus tor

mechanism is  tennina ted, the  short-te rm debt authoriza tions  granted should continue  for

a n a dditiona l 12 months  to provide  AP S  "with s ufficie nt time  to prude ntly a ddre s s  its

s hort-te rm de bt ba la nce s ." (Comme nts  a t 6). S ta ff ha s  no obje ction to the  Compa ny's

24 suggested change.

25

A.

A.

A.
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1 DEFINITION OF DEBT

2 Q,

3

4

What is Staff's comment regarding APS' suggestion that the Commission adopt

provisions to avoid unintended consequences resulting from future changes in

generally accepted accounting principals ("GAAP")?

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

11

APS correctly notes  tha t future  changes in GAAP could have  unintended consequences as

the y pe rta in to the  conditions  re comme nde d by S ta ff for is s ua nce s  of long-te rm de bt.

Ma king provis ions  to a void s uch uninte nde d cons e que nce s  is  prude nt. S ta ff ha s  no

obje ction to (1) e s ta blis hme nt of a  "Notifica tion P e riod" cons is te nt with AP S ' propos a l

(Comments  a t 7), and (2) exempting from debt, for purposes  of applying the  conditions  for

is s ua nce  of de bt, (a ) e xis ting le ga lly-binding a rra nge me nts  tha t a re  not cons ide re d

indebtedness  unde r GAAP as  of the  e ffective  da te  of the  Colnmiss ion's  orde r in this  ca se

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

a nd (b) future  le ga lly-binding a rra nge me nts  tha t a re  not cons ide re d inde bte dne ss  unde r

GAAP on the ir e ffective  da tes  tha t subsequently become indebtedness under GAAP due  to

cha nge s  in GAAP  until furthe r Commis s ion a ction if, AP S  file s  within the  Notifica tion

P e riod, a n a pplica tion with the  Commiss ion spe cifica lly re que s ting a  de cis ion re ga rding

whe the r to  inc lude  o r e xclude  the  ob liga tion(s ) s ub je ct to  the  cha nge  in  GAAP  in

ca lcula tions  for purposes  of applying the  conditions  for issuance  of debt es tablished in this

1 8 case.

1 9

I
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1 REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING AUTHORIZATIONS

2 Q-

3

4

What is Staffs comment to APS' assertion that the authorizations granted in

Decision Nos. 55120 and 55320 relating to sale-leaseback of Unit 2 of the Palo Verde

Nuclear Generating Station must remain in full force and effect andnot terminated

5

6

7

8

by Staff's recommendation "that the authorizations to incur short-term and long-

term debt obligations provided in this proceeding replace all existing authorizations

and that all existing authorizations terminate upon the effective date of the

authorizations provided in this proceeding"?

9

10

11

S ta ffs  unde rs ta nding of the  Comme nts  is  tha t AP S  is  in ge ne ra l a gre e me nt with this  S ta ff

re comme nda tion  but is  re que s ting  e xe mptions  for a uthoriza tions  to  incur inde bte dne s s

gra nte d in De cis ion Nos . 55120 a nd 55320.

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

19

20

21

S ta ffs  re c o m m e n d a tio n  is  in te n d e d  to  p ro v id e  c la rity g o in g  fo rwa rd  re g a rd in g  a ll

a uthority gra nte d by the  Commis s ion to incur ne w inde bte dne s s . S ta ff" s  re comme nda tion

is  n o t in te n d e d  to  a ffe c t a n y e xis tin g  d e b t th a t h a s  a lre a d y b e e n  in c u rre d ,  h o we ve r,

o b lig a tio n s  s h o u ld  n o t b e  e xte n d e d  (i. e . ,  n e w d e b t in c u rre d ) u n d e r e xis t in g  d e b t

a rra nge me n ts  un le s s  thos e  e xte nde d o b lig a t io n s  c o m p ly with  th e Commis s ion 's

a uthoriza tions  gra nte d in  this  ca s e . Ac c ord ing ly,  S ta ff a g re e s  tha t c la rific a tion  o f its

re comme nda tion is  a ppropria te  to dis tinguis h be twe e n te rmina tions  of a uthoriza tions  tha t

pe rta in  to  e xis ting  inde b te dne s s  ve rs us  te rmina tions  o f a u thoriza tions  tha t pe rta in  to

e xte ns ions  of de bt unde r e xis ting a rra nge me nts . With  tha t c la rific a tion , S ta ff s e e s  no

22

23

re a s on to provide  e xe mptions  for e xis ting obliga tions  re la te d to the  s a le -le a s e ba ck of Unit

2 of the  P a lo Ve rde  Nucle a r Ge ne ra ting S ta tion a s  s ugge s te d by the  Compa ny.

24

A.
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1 TERMINATION OF EXISTING AUTHORIZATIONS

2 Q. Does APS seek clariiication/modiiication to Staff's recommendation "that the short-

3 term and long-term debt levels authorized in this proceeding terminate on December

4

5

31, 2012"?

Yes, APS seeks two clarifications/modifications to Staffs recommendation.

6

7

8

Cla rific a tio n /Mo d ific a tio n No . 1 - Exis ting  Ob liga tions  Re ma in  Va lid

Wha t is  APS ' firs t s ugges ted  c la rifica tion/modifica tion  to  S ta ff's  recommenda tion  for

a  te rmina tion da te  for debt authoriza tions ?

Q.

9

1 0

1 1

12

1 3

1 4

APS suggests that the Commission order in this proceeding "confine that all short-term

and long-term debt legally outstanding at December 31, 2012 remain authorized and valid

obligations of APS." (Comments at 9). Staff has no objection to APS' suggested

clarification that only authorizations of new debt terminate at December 31, 2012, and that

existing obligations at that date remain valid.

1 5

1 6 Q- What is APS' second suggested clarification/modification to Staff's recommendation

for a termination date for debt authorizations?1 7

1 8

19

20

2 1

22

23

24

AP S  re que s ts  "tha t the  De ce mbe r 31, 2012 te rmina tion da te  be  e xte nde d until the

Commiss ion issues  a  new financing orde r replacing the  then-exis ting orde r, provided tha t

(a ) AP S  tile s  a n a pplica tion for a  ne w fina ncing orde r on or be fore  De ce mbe r 31, 2011

and (b) the  Commiss ion has  not issued an order pursuant to such applica tion on or be fore

December 3 l, 2012. This  will ensure  tha t APS ' ability to access  the  capita l marke ts  is  not

a bruptly te rmina te d, which would prohibit APS  from Me nding its  ongoing ope ra tions  a nd

mee ting its  obliga tions  as  a  public se rvice  corpora tion." (Comments  a t 9).

25

A.

A.

A.

i
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1 Q-

2

What is Staffs comment to APS' second suggested clarification/modification to

Staff's recommendation for a termination date for debt authorizations?

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

11

1 2

1 3

Due  to the  immedia te  needs  for short-te rm authoriza tions  (to fund na tura l ga s  and power

acquis itions), S ta ff supports  this  APS reques t for short-te rm debt. However, the  needs  for

long-te nn de bt a re  of a  diffe re nt na ture  a nd ha ve  gre a te r long-te nn e ffe cts . The re fore ,

S ta ff doe s  no t s upport AP S ' re que s t a s  it pe rta ins  to  long-te rm de b t. A ge ne ra l

a uthoriza tion to is sue  de bt unde r a  spe cifie d thre shold is  not ne ce ssa ry for APS  to ha ve

a cce s s  to the  ca pita l ma rke ts . In the  e ve nt tha t the  Commis s ion doe s  not gra nt AP S

ge ne ra l a uthoriza tion to is sue  long-te rm de bt within a  spe cifie d thre shold, the  Compa ny

could file  a  reques t for a  specific debt issuance . The  Commiss ion may find tha t granting a

spe cific a uthoriza tion is  pre fe re ntia l to gra nting a  ge ne ra l a uthoriza tion a t tha t time . S ta ff

re comme nds  tha t the  Commiss ion not pre ma ture ly a s se ss  the  circums ta nce s  tha t might

exis t in the  future  and reserve  its  decis ion until the  future  circumstances can be  eva lua ted.

1 4

1 5 MIS C E LLANE O US  C O MME NTS

1 6 Authorized Use of Funds

1 7 Q- Wh a t is  th e  n a tu re  o f AP S ' co mme n t n o .  1 3 , . whic h a ddre s s e s  "worldng  ca p ita l

1 8 requirements"'?

1 9

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

26

A.

A. The  S ta ff Re port s ta te s  tha t "[t]o the  e xte nt tha t the  purpose s  se t forth in the  a pplica tion

ma y be  cons ide re d re a s ona bly cha rge a ble  to ope ra ting e xpe ns e s  or to income , AP S

requests  tha t the  order or orders  from the  Commission in this  matte r authorize  such charge

or cha rges  and tha t they be  deemed working capita l requirements ." (S ta ff Report a t 3). In

its  comments , APS cla ims tha t its  applica tion did not conta in such a  reques t. According to

APS , it ins te a d re que s te d tha t "[t]o the  e xte nt tha t the  purpose s  se t forth he re in ma y be

cons ide re d re a s ona bly cha rge a ble  to ope ra ting e xpe ns e s  or to income , the  Compa ny

requests  tha t the  order or orders  of the  Commission in this  matte r authorize  such charge  or

i
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1

2

3

4

cha rge s ." In  its  comme nts , AP S  a s ks  tha t the  Commis s ion 's  orde r in  this  ma tte r not

include  the  phrase  "deemed working capita l requirements" because , according to APS, not

a ll the  use s  to which ca sh proce e ds  from the  re que s te d fina ncing orde r would pote ntia lly

be  used can be  class ified as  "working capita l."

5

6 Q- Does Staff have a response to this comment?

7

8

9

1 0

11

1 2

1 3

1 4

Yes . ANS correctly note s  tha t its  applica tion does  not include  the  language  used by S ta ff

pe rta ining to working capita l requirements . S ta ff is  not opposed to the  Company's  reques t

tha t the  Commiss ion's  orde r in this  ma tte r omit S ta ffs  la ngua ge  "de e me d working ca pita l

requirements ." S ta ff note s  tha t providing for working ca pita l is  a n a cce pta ble  us e  of

inde bte dne ss  a nd tha t working ca pita l, in tum, supports  pa yme nt of ope ra ting e xpe nse s .

In e s se nce , a uthoriza tion to is sue  de bt for working ca pita l is  not dire ctly dis tinguisha ble

from a uthoriza tion to incur de bt for ope ra ting e xpe nse s . I.e ., in pra ctice , s ince  ca pita l is

fungible , it is  not possible  to tie  fund sources  to fund uses .

1 5

1 6 Wa ive r o f A.A.C. R14-2-803

1 7 Q-

1 8

Does Staff have a response to the Cornpanyassertion that the Staff Report reference

to a "waiver now in existence (per Decision Nos. 65796 and 55017) of A.A.C. R14-2-

1 9 803" is  an  e rror?

20 Yes. The  Company correctly noted tha t no such waiver was  granted.

2 1

A.

A.
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1

2 Q,

3

Filing Requirements  for Nomina l Debt Incurrence

Does  Staff have  a  response  to the  Company's  proposa l to limit filings  in accordance

with S ta ffs  re commenda tion tha t "on each occas ion when APS ente rs into a  new

4 long-term debt agreement that APS tile with Docket Control a description of the

transaction and a demonstration that the rates and terms were consistent with those5

6

7

8

generally available to comparable entities at the time" to long-term debt agreements

involving traditional indebtedness or borrowed money and exclude any long-term

debt agreement that has a principal value of less than $5 million?

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

Ye s . To  a v o id  th e  p o te n tia l fo r n u m e ro u s  filin g s  re g a rd in g  in s ig n ific a n t d e b t, S ta ff

s upports  the  conce pt of not re quiring a  com plia nce  tiling e a ch tim e  a  nom ina l a m ount of

de bt is  incurre d. S ta ff doe s  not a gre e  with AP S ' re que s t "tha t s uch filing re quire m e nts  be

lim ite d  to  long -te rm  de b t a g re e m e n ts  invo lv ing  tra d itiona l inde b te dne s s  fo r bo rrowe d

m one y." AP S  s hould  be  d ilige n t in  a ll o f its  tra ns a c tions  to  incur de b t re ga rd le s s  of the

form  it ta ke s .  Accord ingly, S ta ff re comme nds  tha t AP S  ma ke  a  complia nce  filing for e a ch

individua l a gre e m e nt/tra ns a ction or for the  a ggre ga te  of s im ila r a gre e m e nts /tra ns a ctions

with a  s ingle  e ntity to incur long-te rm de bt e xce e ding $5,000,000 within a  ca le nda r ye a r.

17

1 8 STAFF'S RECOMMENDATIONS

1 9 Q. What are Staff's recommendations?

20 S ta ff ma ke s  the  following re comme nda tions  :

2 1

22

23

24

25

26

A.

A.

Staff recommends increasing APS' authorized long-term debt threshold to $4.2 billion

subject to the  following conditions: (l) common equity divided by common equity and

long-term debt (including current maturities) is 40 percent or greater using the most recent

audited financia l s ta tements  adjusted to reflect changes  to outs tanding debt and (2)

modified debt service coverage ratio is equal to or greater than 2.0.

i
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1 S ta ff furthe r recommends  tha t the  short-te rm and long-te rm debt leve ls  authorized in this

2 proceeding te rmina te  on December 31, 2012.

3

4

5

6

7

8

S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  tha t the  a uthoriza tions  to incur short-te rm a nd long-te rm de bt

obliga tions  provide d in this  proce e ding re pla ce  a ll e xis ting a uthoriza tions  to incur ne w

s hort-te rm a nd long-te rm de bt obliga tions , tha t a ll e xis ting a uthoriza tions  to incur ne w

s hort-te rm a nd long-te mi de bt obliga tions  te rmina te  upon the  e ffe ctive  da te  of the

a uthoriza tions  provide d in this  proce e ding, a nd tha t tha t a ll e xis ting obliga tions  re ma in

9 va lid .

IO

11 S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion for AP S  to incur s hort-te rm de bt not to e xce e d

12

1 3

1 4

15

1 6

$500 million above  7 pe rcent of tota l capita l provided tha t (1) the  excess  ove r 7 pe rcent of

tota l capita l sha ll be  used sole ly for cos ts  re la ting to na tura l ga s  or power purchase s  and

(2) APS has  an authorized adjus tor mechanism for recovery of these  kinds  of cos ts . In the

e ve nt tha t the  a djus tor me cha nis m is  te rmina te d, the  s hort-te rm de bt a uthoriza tions

granted should continue  for an additiona l 12 months .

1 7

1 8

19

20

21

22

23

24

Sta ff furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion for APS  to (1) conduct the  a ctivitie s  e nume ra te d

in the  applica tion tha t a re  necessary to secure  and mainta in debt, (2) to de te rmine  the  form

of s e curity, if a ny, for the  continuing long-te rm de bt a nd the  continuing short-te nn de bt,

e xe cute  a nd de live r the  s e curity ins trume nts , a nd e s ta blis h a nd a me nd the  te rms  a nd

provis ions  o f the  s e curity ins trume nts , a s  ma y be  de e me d  a ppropria te  by AP S  in

conne ction with the  long-te rm de bt a nd the  s hort-te rm de bt, a nd (3) to pa y a ll re la te d

expenses, a ll as  contempla ted in the  applica tion and by the  exhibits  and testimony.

25

1
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1 Sta ff furthe r recommends  tha t when APS ente rs  into a  s ingle  agreement/transaction or an

2 a ggre ga te  of s imila r a gre e me nts /tra ns a ctions  or a n a me ndme nt(s ) to  a n  e xis ting

3

4

5

6

7

a g re e me n t(s ) with  a  s ing le  e n tity in  wh ich  AP S  incu rs  long -te nn  de b t e xce e d ing

$5,000,000 within a  ca le nda r ye a r, tha t AP S  tile  with Docke t Control within 90 da ys  of

the  tra nsa ction or a ggre ga tion of tra nsa ctions  of a t le a s t $5,000,000 a  de scription of the

tra nsa ction(s ) a nd a  de mons tra tion tha t the  ra te s  a nd te rms  we re  cons is te nt with those

genera lly ava ilable  to comparable  entitie s  a t the  time .

8

9 S ta ff furthe r recommends  denia l of P innacle  Wes t's  reques t for authoriza tion of a  wa ive r

10 of A.A.C. Rule  14-2-803 purs ua nt to  A.A.C. Rule  14-2-806. In the  a lte rna tive , S ta ff

11 recommends  authoriza tion for P innacle  Wes t to gua rantee  APS ' debt from time  to time  in

1 2 inde te rmina te  amounts .

1 3

1 4 S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  a uthoriza tion for AP S  to re imburs e  P inna cle  We s t for de bt

1 5

1 6

1 7

se rvice  cos ts  pa id by P innacle  Wes t on beha lf of APS in conjunction with the  provis ion of

guarantees of APS debt and a  cost of money on those payments a t a  ra te  not to exceed that

of the  underlying 1oan(s).

1 8

1 9 S ta ff furthe r re comme nds  de nia l of AP S ' re que s t for a  de cla ra tory orde r confirming tha t

20 b o rro we d  mo n e y re q u ire s  p rio r Co mmis s io n

2 1

o n ly tra d itio n a l indebtedness for

authoriza tion.

22

23 Q. Does this conclude your Direct Testimony?

24 Ye s , it doe s .A.

i


